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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 29 OCTOBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:  Good morn ing  Mr  Kennedy,  good morn ing  

everybody.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you ready?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We are  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Cha i r  may we  –  may we ind ica te  tha t  

today we p lan  sub jec t  to  your  d i rec t ions to  be  ca l l ing  th ree  

w i tnesses.   The f i rs t  w i l l  be  Mr  Mar t in  Drev in  f rom DLS.   10 

The second w i l l  be  Mr  Hendr i k  Van Den Heever  a lso  f rom 

DLS.   And the  th i rd  w i tness w i l l  be  a  Ms Carene 

Geldenhuys who was a t  the  re levant  t ime a t  DLS and they 

w i l l  a l l  dea l  w i th  aspects  o f  the  procu rement  p rocess 

re la t ing  to  some o f  the  re levant  cont rac ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May we then –  may we then w i th  your  

leave ask  to  ca l l  Mr  Mar t in  Drev in .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   D- r -e -v - i -n  and Cha i r  a l l  o f  these  20 

a f f idav i t s  a re  to  be  found fo r  today are  to  be  found in  the  

same Dene l  Bund le  04 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And Mr  Drev in ’s  a f f idav i t  i s  Exh ib i t  

W16.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  then ask  leave to  ca l l  h im and 

to  have h im sworn  in?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes thank you.   P lease admin i s te r  the  

oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR DREVIN:   My fu l l  name Mar t in  Johan Drev in .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Do you have any ob jec t ions to  tak ing  

the  prescr ibed oa th?  

MR DREVIN:   No I  do  no t .  10 

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MR DREVIN:   Yes .  

REGISTRAR:   Do  you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  g ive  

w i l l  be  the  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e l se  bu t  the 

t ru th ;  i f  so  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say,  so  he lp  

me God.  

MR DREVIN:   So  he lp  me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you;  you may p roceed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Drev in  you have  20 

in  f ron t  o f  you a  f i le  w i th  a  sect ion  open a l ready fo r  you  

aga ins t  marke r  W16 and i f  you can look a t  the  page  

number  a t  the  top  le f t  hand corne r  the  las t  few d ig i t s  237  

you see tha t?  

MR DREVIN:   Yes .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Am I  cor rec t  tha t  th is  i s  the  f i rs t  page 

o f  you r  s ta tement /a f f idav i t?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  I  may take  you now to  page 251.    

MR DREVIN:   Got  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Do you see near  the  top  there  is  

s ignature  above the  typed name Mr  Mar t in  Drev in .  I s  tha t  

your  s ignatu re?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  my s ignature .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you s igned th is  10 

in  f ron t  o f  Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Wi th  t ak ing  the  oa th  or  the  

a f f i rmat ion?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t  thank you.   Have you been 

th rough th i s  document  and i t s  annexures and can you  

conf i rm fo r  the  Cha i r  p lease tha t  you are  sa t is f ied  w i th  i t s  

contents  and tha t  those contents  a re  t rue  and cor rec t?  

MR DREVIN:   I  have been th rough i t  and I  am sat is f ied  20 

Cha i r.   Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Cha i r  we wou ld  then ask 

fo rmal ly  fo r  you r  leave to  admi t  the  a f f idav i t  w i th  i t s  

annexures s ta r t ing  a t  page 257 tha t  i s  Dene l  Bund le  04  

Exh ib i t  W16.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   The s ta tement /a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mar t in  

Drev in  s ta r t ing  a t  page 237 is  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  W16.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you  Cha i r.   Wi th  your  leave 

may I  lead the  w i tness on  what  I  be l ieve  is  uncont rovers ia l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I ssues re la t ing  to  h is  background  

e tce te ra?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Mr  Drev in  you cur ren t ly  

employed a t  DLS is  tha t  cor rec t?  10 

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And what  i s  your  job  t i t le?  

MR DREVIN:   My job  t i t le  i s  Program Manager  Hoefys ter  

Phase 2 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Hoefys ter  Phase 2?  

MR DREVIN:   Phase 2 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   You are  en  eng ineer  by  

background?  

MR DREVIN:   Yes  I  am.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   A sen ior  eng ineer.   You  jo ined 20 

as  a  sen ior  eng ineer  in  2008,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Were  you invo lved in  re la t ion  to  the  

Hoefys ter  Pro jec t  Phase 1?  

MR DREVIN:   I  was invo l ved in  t he  Pro jec t  Phase  1  as  a  
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Sys tems Eng ineer.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Now you then re fe r  to  in  

parag raph 13 to  your  be ing  invo l ved in  –  in  re la t ion  to  the  

cont rac t  var ia t ion  orde r.   What  d id  tha t  invo l ve?  

MR DREVIN:   The cont rac t  fo r  Hoefys te r  ac tua l l y  r igh t  f rom 

the  s ta r t  inc luded Phase 1  and Phase 2  the  deve lopment  

and the  indust r ia l i sa t ion  and p roduct ion .   But  w i th  –  be fore  

Phase 2  s ta r ted  o f f  there  were  fu r ther  negot ia t ions  tha t  

changed the  cont rac t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t  and then you… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Drev in .   I  am go ing  to  ask  you to  ra ise  

your  vo ice  p lease .   Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Mr  Drev in .   You then re fer  

to  your  be ing  moved in  October  2011 to  a  newly  c rea ted 

depar tment  in  In fan t ry  Systems.   D id  th i s  –  d id  th i s  mean 

tha t  you were  ca r ry ing  on  dea l ing  w i th  i ssues re la t ing  to  

Hoefys ter  o r  were  you removed f rom tha t?  

MR DREVIN:   That  means tha t  I  was –  I  was s t i l l  i nvo l ved 

in  Hoefys ter.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   S t i l l  i nvo lved.   And then the re  was a 20 

fu r ther  change in  your  job  funct ions in  1 .5  where  you were  

now tasked to  concent ra te  on l y  on  Hoefys te r.  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Dur ing  the  des ign  and manufac tu re  

e tce te ra .   And then you re fer  to  DLS be ing  awarded the  
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Hoefys ter  Phase 2  order  and you then became respons ib le  

fo r  the  execut ion  o f  the  order  and tha t  was around October  

2013.  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   And then you se t  ou t  you r  

p rev ious work  background.   Then you re fe r  a l so  once you  

became Program Manager  fo r  Hoefys ter  Phase 2  your  

respons ib i l i t i es  in  1 .7 .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r igh t  thank you.   Now le t  us  ge t  to  10 

the  –  the  meat  o f  your  a f f idav i t .   I f  you  can tu rn  p lease to  

parag raph 2  tha t  s ta r ts  on  page 240.    

MR DREVIN:   I  have got  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Now here  you a re  dea l ing  w i th  

the  p la t fo rm hu l l  request  fo r  quota t ion  abbrev ia ted  as  RFQ,  

i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And so  there  was a  request  fo r  

quota t ions i ssued in  2012 and i f  you then look ahead to  

parag raph 3  there  was a  request  fo r  quota t ions issued in  20 

2014.   Were  there  two d i f fe ren t  separa te  RFO’s  the  one in  

2012 and the  o ther  in  2014 fo r  the  same th ing? 

MR DREVIN:   The one in  2014 was a  request  fo r  update .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Was fo r  what?  

MR DREVIN:   A request  fo r  update .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   For  updates .  I  see so  i t  re la ted  to  the  

same … 

MR DREVIN:   The same.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The same sub jec t  mat te r.   R igh t .   Now 

you re fer  to  the  RFQ in  2014 I  am in  paragraph 3 .2  be ing  

synced out  as  an  updated request  by  Mr  Henk Van Den 

Heever.   He w i l l  be  the  w i tness tha t  fo l lows you.   And then 

you re fer  to  the  spec i f i ca t ion .   You  were  no t  invo lved in  i t?  

MR DREVIN:   No  the  spec i f i ca t ion  is  ac tua l l y  comes f rom 

Pat r ia  the  p la t fo rm supp l ie r.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Who in  fac t  had to  d raw up the 

RFQ? 

MR DREVIN:   That  was Supp ly  Cha in .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Supp ly  Cha in .   R igh t .  And you  are  on  

the  techn ica l  s ide  ra ther  than the  Supp ly  Cha in  s ide ,  am I  

r igh t?  

MR DREVIN:   Cor rec t .   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   A l r igh t  and then you  re fer  to  

input  a lso  f rom a  qua l i t y  assurance  depar tment .  

MR DREVIN:   Yes .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And … 

MR DREVIN:   The RFQ has got  th is  d i f fe ren t  annexures.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR DREVIN:   And d i f fe ren t  annexures were  the  

respons ib i l i t y  o f  d i f fe ren t  depar tments .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Can I  jus t  p lease ask  you  

aga in  to  t ry  and speak a  b i t  more  c lear l y  and a  b i t  more  

loud so  we can a l l  hea r  and the  record ing  can p ick  i t  up .   

Thank you.   Now you then re fer  in  paragraph 3 .6  to  the 

updated request  fo r  p roposa ls .   May I  take  you in  the  same 

bund le  to  one o f  the  annexures –  page 252?   

MR DREVIN:   I  have got  the  page.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Now 252 is  one o f  the  le t te rs  

tha t  you re fer  to  w i th  the  name and s ignature  o f  Mr  Van 

Den Heever  the  Procurement  Off i ce r  fo r  DLS,  co r rec t?  10 

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And 252 is  a  le t te r  sent  to  LMT.   253  

is  a lso  a  le t te r  t o  LMT a  longer  l e t te r.   And – and  tha t  i s  

accompan ied by  cer ta in  emai ls .   Then I  can take  you  

p lease to  259 tha t  i s  a  le t te r  f rom Mr  Van Den Heever  to  

VR Laser.  

MR DREVIN:   I  found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Another  one a t  260,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then a  fu r ther  le t te r  –  a  ser ies  o f  20 

le t te rs  to  DCD f rom page 264.  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Now so these were  th ree  

ent i t ies  LMT,  VR Laser  and DCD.  

MR DREVIN:   Yes .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   What  was the  purpose o f  th is  le t te r  as  

you unders tood i t?  

MR DREVIN:   Th is  was the  request  to  update  the i r  o f fe rs  o f  

2012.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The i r  o f fe rs .   So had they –  had each  

o f  these th ree  ent i t ies  submi t ted  proposa ls  p rev ious l y 

wh ich  were  now be ing  asked to  be  updated? 

MR DREVIN:   Yes be fore  the  –  or  dur ing  the  negot ia t ions  

fo r  Phase 2  we pr i ced some o f  the  more  expens ive  

components  we went  ou t  fo r  RFQ to  ensure  tha t  our  p r ice  10 

bas is  was s t i l l  i n  l ine .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  i f  they  –  my quest ion  i s  s imp ly  

th is .   I f  they  are  be ing  asked to  update  proposa ls  

p resumably  they submi t ted  or ig ina l  p roposa ls  p r io r  to  be ing  

asked to  be  upda ted.  

MR DREVIN:   Yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And when d id  they do  tha t?   Was tha t  

in  response to  the  2012 request  o r  the  2014 request?   The 

or ig ina l  p roposa l .  

MR DREVIN:   2012 request .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   2012.   Now in  tha t  p rocess in  2012  

had i t  been submi t ted  –  had i t  been adver t i sed genera l l y  to  

the  marketp lace resu l t ing  in  on ly  th ree  peop le  respond ing 

or  had they been spec i f i ca l l y  inv i ted  in  2012 to  submi t  

p roposa ls  jus t  those th ree?  
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MR DREVIN:   They were  spec i f i ca l l y  inv i ted .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Inv i ted .   Why  was i t  no t  pu t  ou t  as  i t  

were  on  open tender  in  2012?  Are  you ab le  to  answer  

tha t?  

MR DREVIN:   No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   A l r igh t .   Now i f  I  can  take  you 

back p lease to  your  a f f idav i t .   Paragraph 3 .6  and we here  

now a t  page 241.   You re fer  to  a  request  fo r  the  updates  to  

conta in  a  breakdown o f  p r ices ,  what  were  they be ing  asked  

fo r  now was the  pr ice  fo r  the  armour  hu l l  –  the  armour  hu l l  10 

exc lud ing  mine  pro tec t ion .   Then a  pr ice  fo r  m ine  

pro tec t ion  on ly.   And then pr ices  to  exc lude a l l  j igs  and  

f i x tu res  as  Pat r ia  was respons ib le  fo r  the  supp ly  o f  these.   

And then fu r ther  –  yes.   Now why were  you as  Dene l  Land  

Serv i ces  want ing  to  have a  sp l i t  o f  the  pr ices  –  a  

breakdown in  the  pr ices?  

MR DREVIN:   There  was a  though t  tha t  the  work  cou ld  be  

d ished out  to  d i f fe ren t  supp l ie rs  and tha t  we cou ld  g ive  the  

cont rac t  fo r  the  m ine pro tec t ion  to  one company  and a  

cont rac t  fo r  the  armour  hu l l  to  a  d i f fe ren t  company.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r igh t  then .   Thank you.   Now you  

then re fe r  to  responses hav ing  been rece ived f rom these  

th ree  ent i t ies ,  cor rec t?  

MR DREVIN:   Ja  i t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  jus t  have a  moment  Cha i r.    
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  I  may take  you now p lease Mr  

Drev in  to… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Drev in  a re  you dr ink ing  tea?  I t  i s  no t  

r igh t  tha t  you shou ld  be  dr ink ing  tea  wh i le  you are  g iv ing  

ev idence there .   I  am go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  f i ve  m inutes  to  

a l low you to  f in ish  your  tea  so  tha t  when we cont inue we –  

you w i l l  be  done.   You can dr ink  wa ter  bu t  no t  tea  or  ea t .  

MR DREVIN:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  w i l l  ad journ  fo r  f i ve  m inutes .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We ad jou rn .  

CHAIRPERSON:   A l l  r i se .    

HEARING RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    The lega l  team and o ther  peop le  must  

jus t  make  sure  w i tnesses do not  b r ing  tea  or  f ood  to  d r i nk  

or  ea t  wh i le  they are  g i v ing  ev idence.   There  is  t ime  fo r  tea 

when we w i l l  a l l  take  a  break and have tea .   Water  they 

can have wh i le  they g i ve  ev idence.   Okay le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r  I  must  apo log ise  I  20 

had not  no t iced I  have got  bad eyes igh t  and I  am a t  an  

ang le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Where  I  had not  no t iced so  I  

apo log i se  o therwise  I  wou ld  have dea l t  w i th  i t  bu t  we w i l l  
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bea r  tha t  in  m ind fo r  fu tu re  w i tnesses.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you –  thank you Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now the  –  i f  I  can  take  you p lease to  

page 268.   I s  th is  the  rev ised proposa l  o r  response tha t  

you re fe r  to  in  your  a f f idav i t  as  hav ing  been rece ived f rom 

LMT? 

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i f  I  can  ask  you to  tu rn  now to  10 

page 274 is  th is  the  response tha t  was rece ived f rom VR 

Laser?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And f rom page 282 is  th is  the  

response you re fer red  to  in  your  a f f idav i t  as  hav ing  been 

rece ived f rom DCD? 

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now you re fer  in  your  a f f idav i t  to  a 

b id  eva lua t ion  commi t tee  in  2014 a  cross- funct iona l  team.   

Were  you invo lved in  tha t?  20 

MR DREVIN:   I  was invo l ved in  tha t  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In  what  way?  

MR DREVIN:   I  was a  member  o f  the  b id  commi t tee .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   And your  a f f idav i t  se ts  ou t  the 

var ious o ther  members .   We do not  need to  go  th rough  
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those.   They inc lude though your  name as we l l  as  Ms 

Malah le la  the  Supp ly  Cha in  Depar tment  Head f rom DLS 

together  w i th  her  co l leagues.  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   And then the re  a re  var ious 

o ther  peop le  w i th  techn ica l  and bus iness ro les .   Now you  

have re fer red  i n  your  a f f idav i t  to  the  th ree  supp l ie rs  

a t tend ing  feedback sess ions a t  DLS ’s  premises in  i t s  Eag le  

board  room and  these were  seen ind iv idua l l y  f o r  the  

feedback sess ion  VR Laser,  DCD and LMT.   They were  10 

seen a t  d i f fe ren t  t imes tha t  you have se t  ou t  in  you r  

a f f idav i t .   D id  you  take  pa r t  in  those feedback sess ions?  

MR DREVIN:   I  s igned one o f  the  reg is te rs  so  yes I  d id .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am sor ry  jus t  speak c lear ly.  

MR DREVIN:   I  s i gned one o f  the  reg is te rs  so  I  wou ld  have  

been there .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You wou ld  have been there?  Okay 

yes you have re fer red  to  the  a t tendance reg i s te r  and then  

i f  I  can  take  you p lease to  page 389.   I t  i s  Annexure  MD10.   

I t  i s  headed Mee t ing  w i th  VR Laser.   And then the re  are  a  20 

number  o f  quest ions tha t  a re  pu t  and responses tha t  a re  

f i l l ed  in  in  the  las t  co lumn.   What  i s  th is  document  p lease? 

MR DREVIN:   There  was a  quest ionna i re  tha t  was d rawn up 

fo r  each o f  the  supp l ie rs  and th i s  was a  record  o f  the i r  

responses in  th is  c la r i f i ca t ion  meet ing .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   And so  was th is  the  

quest ionna i re  w i th  the  responses  tha t  were  g i ven  dur ing 

the  feedback sess ion  w i th  the  re levant  respect ive  supp l ie r  

in  th is  case i t  was VR Laser?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And was the  same process fo l lowed in  

re la t ion  to  the  o ther  two?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   DCD and LMT and you re fer  to  tha t  in  

your  a f f idav i t  and you have a t tached the  –  the  l i s t  o f  10 

quest ions and the  answers  in  your  fu r ther  annexures,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   May I  jus t  ask  be fore  we p roceed to  

the  next  i tem in  your  a f f idav i t  d id  i t  s t r i ke  you as  

s ign i f i can t  tha t  each o f  them was  dea l t  w i th  separa te ly  in  

p r iva te  quest ion  and answer  feedback sess ions ra ther  than  

them a l l  be ing  in  the  same room at  the  same t ime? 

MR DREVIN:   No i t  d id  no t  s t r i ke  me as unusua l .   The  

quest ions were  d i f fe ren t  fo r  the  d i f fe ren t  supp l ie rs .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now –  and the  process to  be  fo l lowed 

f rom a  Supp ly  Cha in  Management  p rocess tha t  was not  

your  respons ib i l i t y  –  am I  r igh t?  

MR DREVIN:   That  was not  my respons ib i l i t y  no .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   A l r igh t  thank you.   And then  
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you  re fer  in  your  a f f idav i t  to  someth ing  tha t  happened a f te r  

these feedback meet ings.   They were  g iven an oppor tun i ty  

to  submi t  rev i sed  proposa ls  based  on the  issues du r ing  the  

meet ings.   Now they had a l ready  submi t ted  proposa ls  in  

2012 wh ich  they  were  then asked to  update  in  2014.   I s  

th is  now a  fu r ther  oppor tun i ty  fo r  them to  update  the i r  

p roposa ls  aga in?  

MR DREVIN:   That  was a  fu r ther  oppor tun i ty.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   Who dec ided on tha t?   Was tha t  

the  cross- funct iona l  team o f  wh ich  you were  a  member?  10 

MR DREVIN:   No i t  was Supp ly  Cha in .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Was tha t  Supp ly  Cha in  i t se l f?  

MR DREVIN:   Yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Was i t  unusua l  in  your  exper ience fo r  

Supp ly  Cha in  to  be  ask ing  pa r t ies  who have submi t ted  

proposa ls  and then rev i sed p roposa ls  to  be  g i ven a  fu r the r  

oppor tun i ty  to  rev ise  the i r  p roposa ls  fu r ther?  

MR DREVIN:   No i t  was not  bu t  th is  was the  f i rs t  t ime I  was  

invo l ved in  such a  process.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Now were  fu r the r  rev i sed 20 

proposa ls  then  rece ived f rom these th ree  in te res ted  

par t ies?  

MR DREVIN:   Yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Can I  take  you p lease to  page 422.   

Sor ry  may I  jus t  have a  moment  I  am sure  tha t  i s  a  cor rec t  
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…[mumbl ing ] .   Apo log ies  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Th is  i s  go ing  to  be  qu i te  d i f f i cu l t  to  read?   

422 you sa id?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am sor ry  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   D id  you say 422? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Ja  I  sa id  i f  you  can jus t  ho ld  on  I  

th ink  tha t  tha t  i s  –  tha t  i s  in  fac t  a  wrong re ference.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  apo log ise .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.    10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes may I  take  you ra ther  to  page 

393?  You have tha t?  

MR DREVIN:   I  have got  tha t  –  I  found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now you re fe r  to  tha t  in  your  a f f idav i t  

as  be ing  the  fu r ther  rev i sed proposa l  rece ived by  LMT in  

response to  tha t  inv i ta t ion .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then a t  401 is  tha t  the  fu r ther  

rev i sed proposa l  f rom VR Laser?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then 40  –  410 is  tha t  the  fu r the r  

rev i sed proposa l  f rom DCD? 

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Now you have re fer red  in  your  

a f f idav i t  fo r  the  Cha i r ’s  ass is tance i t  i s  paragraph  4 .16  o f  
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the  a f f idav i t  to  the  b id  eva lua t ion  commi t tee  reconven ing  to  

do  f ina l  scor ing .   Was tha t  par t  –  o r  were  you par t  o f  tha t  

p rocess?  

MR DREVIN:   I  was par t  o f  tha t  p rocess yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And what  spec i f i ca l l y  were  you  

requ i red  to  ass is t  in  fo r  scor ing?  

MR DREVIN:   We d id  the  scor ing  fo r  the  techn ica l  

component  o f  the  b id  eva lua t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Can  I  take  you back  in  your  

a f f idav i t  to  page  245?  You re fer  in  paragraph 4 .20  to  a  10 

conso l ida ted  eva lua t ion  sheet  wh ich  we are  go ing  to  look  

a t  in  a  moment .   There  was a  we igh t  a l loca ted  to  each  

ca tegory  o f  i tems.  Pr ice  was 25%,  Funct iona l i t y  45% and 

BBBEE 30%.   Now you were  look ing  a t  the  techn ica l  s ide .  

MR DREVIN:   The funct iona l i t y.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am sor ry.  

MR DREVIN:   The funct iona l i t y.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The funct iona l i t y  yes .   So i t  was the  

funct iona l i t y  w i th  a  45% weight ing  fo r  the  sco r ing?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We –  you were  no t  invo lved in  look ing  

a t  p r ice  and what  score  to  g ive  to  each – each  o f  the  

b idders  in  the i r  rev i sed proposa ls ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t  we d id  no t  look  a t  the  pr ice  or  

the  BBBEE score  tha t  was popu la ted  by  Supp ly  Cha in .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay thank you.   And then i f  we can 

jus t  fo r  comple teness look a t  the  document  you re fer red  to .   

Can I  take  you to  page 422?  I s  tha t  the  eva lua t ion… 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  the  one tha t  I  th ink… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes tha t  i s… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  cannot  read.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  i s  where  I  was confused ear l ie r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   422 th is  t ime is  the 

cor rec t  re fe rence  Mr  Drev in  as  I  unders tand i t  bu t  I  wou ld  10 

l i ke  you to  conf i rm.  I s  tha t  the  conso l ida ted  eva lua t ion  

sheet  tha t  i s  re fe r red  to  as  be ing  the  one tha t  was 

popu la ted  th rough the  scor ing  tha t  was g i ven by  the  team 

o f  wh ich  you fo rmed par t?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay and you  –  you were  presumably  

respons ib le  fo r  adv is ing  on  what  score  wou ld  be  

appropr ia te  fo r  the  funct iona l i t y  e lement  when you 

compared the  one –  the  one b idder  w i th  the  o thers?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you ab le  to  read what  i s  wr i t ten  there  

Mr  Drev in?   Oh is  there  a  be t te r  copy somewhere  o r  can i t  

be  made o r  can th is  be  en la rged?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  can  be en la rged Cha i r.   We w i l l… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   I t  can  be en la rged.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Make sure  tha t  tha t  i s  done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Would  you s t rugg le  to  read  

i t  Mr  Drev in?  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s… 

CHAIRPERSON:   As  i t  i s?  

MR DREVIN:   Th i s  i s  co r rec t  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR DREVIN:   I  can  recogn ise  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I f  i t  can  be en larged then th is  can  10 

be rep laced w i th  the  one tha t  i s  en la rged.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you we  w i l l… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We wi l l  a t tend to  tha t .   Thank you  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am a f ra id  some o f  the  annexures in  

some o f  these a f f idav i t s  do  su f fe r  f rom the  same prob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes we l l . .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Bu t  I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  I  need to  20 

take  the  w i tness th rough i t  sub jec t  to  your  gu idance as  to  

the  d i f fe ren t  components  o f  the  contents  o f  th is  par t i cu la r  

page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no  tha t  i s  f ine  as  l ong as  we w i l l  

have an en la rged  one.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   We wi l l  cer ta in ly  a t tend to  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:   In  due course .  I  had sa id  las t  year  o r  

even the  year  be fore  to  the  lega l  team tha t  they need make 

sure  tha t  they ident i f y  be fo rehand cop ies  tha t  a re  no t  

leg ib le  and take  s teps to  ge t  leg ib le  ones o r  … 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Get  them –  get  them en la rged but  I  th ink  

i t  does not  a lways happen.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am a f ra id  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  a t  leas t  i f  they  can a t tend to  tha t  10 

even a f te r  then tha t  w i l l  be  be t te r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   As  you p lease  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Now may I  take  you back  

to  page 246?   

MR DREVIN:   I  am there .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You re fer  to  the  scor ing  tha t  was then  

done and in  425  you re fe r  to  the  sco r ing  tha t  shows tha t  

LMT came second in  l ine  by  rece iv ing  an  overa l l  score  o f  

64 .78% which  was 0 .76% less  than  VR Laser  bu t  in  re la t ion  20 

to  the  pr ice  I  am here  now read ing  f rom your  paragraph  

4 .25 .2 :  

“LMT’s  f inanc ia l  o f fe r  was R165.6  odd mi l l ion  mak ing  i t  the  

cheapest  ou t  o f  the  th ree  supp l ie rs . ”  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  we compare  tha t  w i th  VR Laser  you  

dea l  w i th  tha t  in  4 .23  and we see there  in  4 .23 .1  tha t  the i r  

p r ice  was in  fac t  R262.4  odd mi l l ion  wh ich  i s  a lmost  R100  

mi l l ion  more  than  the  LMT o f fe r.  

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Desp i te  tha t  VR Laser  was ab le  

because o f  the  we igh t ing  presumably  o f  the  fac to rs  to  beat  

LMT in  te rms o f  scor ing  by  0 .76%.   Now you then dea l  in  

4 .26  -  4 .26  w i th  BBBEE credent ia ls  and scor ing .   Was tha t  

par t  o f  your  du t ies  and respons ib i l i t i es?  10 

MR DREVIN:   No i t  was not .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   And  we have  heard  ev idence 

f rom prev ious w i tnesses dea l ing  w i th  th is .  Now you re fer  in  

the  next  paragraph to  a  supp l ie r  aud i t  hav ing  been done  

fo r  the  p la t fo rm hu l l  p rev ious ly  by  Pat r ia .   Were  you  aware  

o f  tha t  a t  the  t ime and what  d id  th is  invo l ve?  

MR DREVIN:   The supp l ie r  aud i t  was pa r t  o f  the  tasks  tha t  

Pat r ia  were  cont rac ted  to  and I  know about  –  I  knew about  

the  repor t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And was th is  an  issue tha t  re la ted  to  20 

your  in te res t  in  funct iona l i t y?  

MR DREVIN:   No I  d id  no t  take  tha t  in to  account .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Now there  was  then a  

recommendat ion  made 4 .28  –  made a f te r  the  conso l ida ted 

–  conso l ida ted  eva lua t ion  templa te  was done tha t  we have  
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looked a t .   There  was a  submiss ion  to  EXCO of  DLS  

recommending tha t  VR Laser  shou ld  be  awarded th is  

Hoefys ter  cont rac t  fo r  the  p la t fo rm hu l l s  because i t  was the  

h ighest  scor ing  b idder.   Were  you pa r t  o f  tha t  –  o f  tha t  

p rocess mak ing  tha t  recommenda t ion?  Was tha t  par t  o f  

the  cross- funct iona l  team tha t  you  were  a  member  o f?  

MR DREVIN:   No our  work  s topped a t  f in ish ing  the  

eva lua t ion .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The eva lua t ion  –  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Drev in  can I  ask  the  quest ion  what  i s  10 

your  reco l lec t ion  o f  how b ig  the  gap was in  te rms o f  

funct iona l i t y  be tween LMT and  VR Laser  in  te rms o f  

scores?  

MR DREVIN:   I  am sor ry  Cha i r  can  you jus t  repeat?  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  i s  your  reco l lec t ion  o f  the  gap 

between the  po in ts  you  gave to  LMT and the  po in ts  you  

gave to  VR Laser  in  te rms o f  funct iona l i t y?   How b ig  was 

tha t  gap in  te rms o f  sco r ing  them? 

MR DREVIN:   I t  was qu i te  a  s ign i f i can t  gap.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  was qu i te  a  s ign i f i can t  gap okay  20 

a l r igh t .   Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In  favour  o f  VR Laser?  

MR DREVIN:   In  favour  o f  VR Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And can you jus t  g ive  ve ry  br ie f l y  a  

summary o f  why you scored them h igher  –  VR Laser?  
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MR DREVIN:   We had d i f fe ren t  quest ions to  answer  in  the  

eva lua t ion  sheet  each wh ich  had i t s  own score  and  go ing  

th rough tha t  p rocess o f  answer ing  each o f  these po in ts  

tha t  was the  end resu l t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And in  te rms o f  sco r ing  funct iona l i t y  a  

b idder ’s  exper ience wou ld  no t  count  wou ld  i t?   I n  o the r  

words i f  LMT had done th is  qu i te  –  th is  t ype o f  job  fo r  

some t ime and had exper ience bu t  VR Laser  d id  no t  have 

any such exper ience but  maybe in  te rms o f  i t s  responses in  

regard  to  funct iona l i t y  quest ions on  funct iona l i t y  you might  10 

be  sa t is f ied  tha t  i t  shou ld  ge t  h igher  sco r ing  compared to 

LMT who might  have some exper ience but  maybe have not  

responded to  quest ions on  funct iona l i t y  in  a  cer ta in  way? 

MR DREVIN:   Yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr  Drev in  your  a f f idav i t  then goes on 

to  –  in  paragraph 431 to  re fer  to  your  becoming aware  o f  

p ress  ar t i c les  re fer r ing  to  l inks  w i th  the  Gupta ’s  and tha t  

you ra ised. .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  –  I  am sor ry  Mr  Kennedy.   Mr  

Drev in  you might  no t  be  ab le  to  answer  th i s  bu t  you w i l l  te l l  

me.   One wou ld  have thought  tha t  exper ience shou ld  count  

fo r  someth ing  in  th is  t ype o f  compet i t ion .   You do not  know 

whethe r  i t  counted fo r  anyth ing  no t  necessar i l y  on  
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func t iona l i t y  bu t  on  every th ing  tha t  was supposed  to  be  

taken in to  accoun t .  

MR DREVIN:   No as  fa r  as  I  remember  when we d id  the  

scor ing  i t  was not  known tha t  VR Laser  had a  l ink .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes bu t  what  I  am ask ing  is  wou ld  you  

not  agree tha t  exper ience in  do ing  a  par t i cu la r  job  shou ld  

count  fo r  someth ing  when b idders  compete  to  do  a  j ob  you 

know.   Somebody  who has never  done the  job  tha t  shou ld  

be  someth ing  to  take  i n to  account  compared to  somebody 

who may have a  t rack  record  o f  do ing  the  job  in  a  cer ta in  10 

way whether  good or  bad.  

MR DREVIN:   I t  wou ld  depend on  i f  those resources were 

s t i l l  ava i lab le  tha t  had bu i l t  tha t  had exper ience.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry.  

MR DREVIN:   I t  wou ld  depend on i f  the  resources were  s t i l l  

ava i lab le  the  knowledge was s t i l l  –  most  o f  the  knowledge 

is  imbedded in  the  peop le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no  I  am jus t  speak ing  now in  genera l .   

I  am jus t  say ing  I  see tha t  in  te rms  o f  sco r ing  here  there  is  

no  re fe rence to  exper ience you know.   There  is  j us t  the  20 

pr ice ,  funct iona l i t y  and you sa id  tha t  funct iona l i t y  here  d id  

no t  inc lude h is to ry  o r  exper ience you know.   So I  am jus t  

wonder ing  why there  wou ld  no t  be  a  fac tor  o r  some po in ts  

tha t  shou ld  go  to  exper ience.   But  as  I  say  i t  m igh t  be  

someth ing  you are  no t  ab le  to  answer.   I  am jus t  th ink ing  i f  
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somebody says I  have exper ience  o f  d r iv ing  a  bus  fo r  the  

past  f i f teen years  w i thout  any acc idents  and somebody  

says I  jus t  go t  my l i cence to  d r ive  a  bus yesterday  tha t  i t  

shou ld  count  fo r  someth ing  when you say who do you g i ve  

th is  job  to  and i t  looks  l i ke  here  tha t  there  was no room for  

tha t .  

MR DREVIN:   There  was no quest ion  fo r  tha t  in  the  

eva lua t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  jus t  f ind  i t  s t range.   Okay  a l r igh t .   

Thank you.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you  Cha i r.   I f  I  m igh t  jus t  

pursue th is  fo r  a  moment?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr  Drev in  d id  you not  f ind  i t  s t range 

tha t  i f  –  tha t  there  was no quest ion  or  scor ing  a t tached to  

the  exper ience o f  a  par t i cu la r  perspect ive  cont rac tor  

re la t ing  to  i t s  exper ience?  Because as  the  Cha i r  po in ts  

ou t  i s  tha t  no t  a  re levant  i ssue tha t  you shou ld  cons ide r  

when eva lua t ing  b ids  to  see not  on ly  i s  fo r  example  do  they 

have a  fac tory  and do they have techn ic ians and so  fo r th .   20 

But  do  they ac tua l l y  have exper ience not  jus t  sk i l l s  on  

paper  o r  resources on  paper  bu t  ac tua l l y  a  t rack  record?   

D id  you not  f ind  i t  s t range tha t  tha t  was not  be ing  looked 

a t?  

MR DREVIN:   There  were  cer ta in  aspects  o f  tha t  covered 
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in  the  quest ions.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  covered in  the  quest ions.  

MR DREVIN:   Ja  cer ta in  aspects .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Was tha t… 

MR DREVIN:   That  we cou ld  –  tha t  wou ld  cover  tha t  

ind i rec t l y.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Bu t  –  ind i rec t l y?  But  wou ld  i t  –  wou ld  

i t  be  taken in to  account  when you ac tua l l y  de termin ing  the  

scor ing?  Because i t  i s  the  scor ing  tha t  u l t imate ly  i s  what  

gave VR Laser  by  a  marg ina l  d i f fe rence a  super io r  score  to  10 

tha t  o f  the  o thers?  

MR DREVIN:   The –  I  th ink  the  re levant  quest ion  in  tha t  

regard  was one about  the  capab i l i t y  –  the  cur ren t  

capab i l i t y  and the  cur ren t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  bu t  capab i l i t y  i s  no t  the  same as what  

Mr  Kennedy is  ask ing .   I f  you  produce a  dr iver ’s  l i cence 

tha t  says you are  permi t ted  to  d r ive  a  bus and you got  i t  

yes terday and I  p roduce a  d r iver ’s  l i cence tha t  says I  am 

permi t ted  to  d r ive  a  bus bu t  I  go t  i t  a  long t ime ago.   I  have  

been dr iv ing  fo r  a  long t ime.   We are  no t  on  the  same bas is  20 

I  have –  i f  I  –  i f  my exper ience as  be ing  –  I  have do ing  tha t  

job  we l l  tha t  shou ld  count  fo r  someth ing  when I  am 

compared to  you who has no t rack  reco rd .  Even though we 

both  have the  ab i l i t y  to  d r ive  a  bus and we are  permi t ted  

to .   You unders tand?  
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MR DREVIN:   Ja  I  unders tand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  now when you look a t  the  scor ing  

here  i t  says  you score  fo r  p r ice ,  you sco re  fo r  funct iona l i t y,  

you score  fo r  BBBEE and so  I  asked you ear l ie r  on  whethe r  

when you score  funct iona l i t y  the  quest ion  o f  exper ience or  

t rack  reco rd  comes in  you sa id  no .   And I  cou ld  unders tand  

tha t .   But  then obv ious ly  i t  cannot  come under  p r ice  and i t  

cannot  come under  BBBEE.   So i t  means  i t  seems to  me 

tha t  no  prov i s ion  was made fo r  g i v ing  po in ts  to  exper ience 

or  a  good t rack  record  o f  do ing  th is  job .   That  i s  how i t  10 

seems to  me.   Does tha t  accord  w i th  your  unders tand ing  o f  

what  i t  was a t  the  t ime? 

MR DREVIN:   The quest ions on  the  –  on  the  b id  eva lua t ion  

d id  no t  spec i f i ca l l y  cover  exper ience but  ind i rec t l y  i t  

cove red the  capab i l i t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR DREVIN:    Cur ren t  capab i l i t ies .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes then Mr  Kennedy ’s  quest ion  a r ises  is  

he  was ask ing  whether  you d id  no t  f ind  tha t  s t range tha t  

there  was no p rov i s ion  to  g ive  po in ts  in  re la t ion  to  20 

exper ience o r  check reco rds?  

MR DREVIN:   No i t  fe l t  l i ke  a l l  the  aspects  were  covered by  

the  quest ions in  the  b id  eva lua t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   I  th ink  I  have taken i t  as  
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fa r  as  I  can on th is  –  on  th is  aspect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  I  may proceed then Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Mr  Drev in  may I  then take  you  p lease  

to  page 476?   

MR DREVIN:   I  found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t  now a t  the  top  o f  tha t  page we 

see an emai l  f rom you addressed  to  Ms Av ishkar  Govender  

who was she?  10 

MR DREVIN:   He was the  … 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I s  i t  he  I  am sor ry.  

MR DREVIN:   I t  i s  a  he .   He was respons ib le  fo r  the  overa l l  

p rogram management  on  Hoefys te r  bo th  phase 1  and phase 

2 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t  we a re  go ing  to  look  a t  in  a 

moment  a t  what  you sa id  in  the  emai l  tha t  you re fer  in  tha t  

emai l  to  someth ing  tha t  appears  be low.   There  i s  an  emai l  

be low f rom Mr  Govender  and then be low tha t  he  appears  to  

be  fo rward ing  what  appears  a t  the  foo t  o f  the  page wh ich  is  20 

an  emai l  tha t  o r ig ina ted  f rom Heyns Van Der  Merwe 

addressed to  Mr  S teyn,  Mr  Car twr igh t ,  Mr  Kok,  Mr  Lubbe,  

Mr  K lapper,  Mr  Govender  and Mr  Van Den Heever.   D id  you  

come in to  possess ion  o f  th is  emai l?   Were  you aware  o f  

th is  one a t  the  bo t tom tha t  re fe rs  to  a  med ia  ar t i c le?  
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MR DREVIN:   I  rece ived i t  –  my super io r  Mr  Govender  cc ’s  

i t  to  me.   I f  you  look a t  the  m idd le  o f  the  page.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MR DREVIN:   I  am par t  o f  the  PCPO group.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  i s  i f  you  look a t  the  emai l  f rom 

Mr  Govender  on  the  7 Ju ly.   I t  i s  addressed to  In fan t ry  

Systems Management  PCPO and Ce l ia  Malah le la .   So you 

are  par t  o f  PCPO? 

MR DREVIN:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R igh t .   Now we can read fo r  ou rse l ves 10 

the  med ia  ar t i c l e  and the  head ing  is  –  appears  in  bo ld  a t  

the  foo t  o f  page 476.  I t  says :   Gupta ’s  and Duduzane Zuma 

are  h idden s takeho lders  in  a  s t ra teg i c  locomot ive  sub-

cont rac t ing  company bought  we l l  the  main  tender  p rocess 

was on-go ing .   And then i t  re fe rs  in  the  tex t  under  the  

photograph o f  the  cha i rperson o f  Transnet ’s  board  Tender  

Commi t tee  Mr  Iqba l  Sharma.   Bu t  then in  the  tex t  o f  the 

ar t i c le  re fe rs  to  the  VR Laser  Serv i ces  company and  

connect ions w i th  the  Mr  Ra jesh Gupta  and Mr  Duduzane 

Zuma.   Now is  th is  the  a r t i c le  -  was that  the reason that  20 

jo l ted into sending your sending your emai l  at  the top of  

page 476? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And may I  just  read of  the br ief 

text  that  you set  out  in our emai l .   You say:  
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“ I  have this fear that  i f  we go wi th VR.. . ”  

 Now that  is VR Laser,  is that  correct? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

“ . . . that  at  the end,  we wi l l  st i l l  be forced by Denel  to  

change the LMT possible af ter  the TOT has 

happened.”  

 What does TOT mean? 

MR DREVIN :    Transfer of  Technology.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Transfer of . . .?  10 

MR DREVIN :    Technology.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Technology.   Thank you. 

“ . . .has happened which wi l l  make i t  even worse.”  

 Now when you say:   I f  we go wi th VR Laser.   Are you 

referr ing to what  we have just  been discussing about the 

scor ing of  the proposals received in relat ion to the Plat form 

Hul l  Contract  for Hoefyster? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Then your emai ls says that :  

“The below input . . . ”  20 

 Is that  the emai ls and the press art ic le that  we see 

below? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

“ . . . that  the below input  and the low pr ice LMT 
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quoted. . . ”  

 We have deal t  wi th that  ear l ier.   Was that  the 162. . .  

R 160 odd mi l l ion compared wi th VR Laser a lmost  a hundred 

mi l l ion higher?  Is  that  what you were referr ing to? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  let  us cont inue.  

“ . . .br ings me to a point  where I  get  the feel ing that  

we go wi th LMT.”  

 Were you suggest ing that  rather  the decision should be 

taken by the senior management and instead awarding i t  to  10 

VR Laser i t  should go to LMT? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   You were not  in  your job vested 

wi th the power to make that  decision but  th is  was a 

recommendat ion,  was i t  to your col league, Mr Govender,  that  

i t  should be reconsidered the award to VR Laser? 

MR DREVIN :    No,  i t  was not  wi thin my power.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  was what? 

MR DREVIN :    I t  was not  wi thin my power to . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  was not  wi thin your power.   But  you 20 

could st i l l  express your views,  correct? 

MR DREVIN :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And that  is what you were doing here? 

MR DREVIN :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  r ight? 
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MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And then you say apart  f rom.. .  

“ . . . that  we go wi th LMT, avoid fal lout  f rom Denel .   

Avoid possible fal lout  f rom this potent ia l  debacle. . . ”  

 What debacle were you referr ing to there? 

MR DREVIN :    The one that  is the Transnet t ransact ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .  

“ . . .and spend the di fference in pr ice to get  LMT up 

to standard wi th  suff ic ient  space faci l i t ies and 

resources to  handle the Plat form Hul le  10 

manufactur ing.”  

 This last  part ,  what  were you referr ing to there?  Just  

expand on that ,  p lease? 

MR DREVIN :    LMT at  that  stage did not  have suff ic ient 

space.   They had moved to a smal ler  faci l i ty.   So they would 

have needed to get  more space to be able to manufacture 

the Plat form Hul l  and then out f i t ted so that  i t  then becomes a 

faci l i ty.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And you were suggest ing that  

the di fference in  pr ice be used to help LMT get  up to  20 

standard.   Was that  the d i fference in pr ice between VR Laser  

at  R 260 odd mi l l ion compared wi th LMT, about  a hundred 

mi l l ion less than that? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   And then you just  conclude:  
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“Just  a thought. ”    

 Now was there any response to that  f rom Mr Govender 

or anybody else in management? 

MR DREVIN :    We discussed i t  in the corr idor  and asked the 

quest ion that  should the whole process go ahead because at  

that  t ime, the contract  was not  yet  awarded.   I t  took a long 

t ime for the contract  to be awarded. 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR DREVIN :    And what came out  of  those discussion was 

that  we cannot just  take them out  of  the equat ion wi thout  10 

then being blackl isted.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sorry?  Without  them being. . .?  

MR DREVIN :    B lackl isted.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    B lackl isted.   I  see.   Alr ight  thank you.  

Now I  would l ike to proceed to the next  topic that  you deal  

wi th in your aff idavi t  and that  deals wi th a di fferent  contract .   

We have al ready deal t  wi th the Plat form Hul l  contract  for the 

vehicles.    

 Now we are going to move to the single source suppl ier 

appointment to provide for turret  FCM’s and related armour 20 

steel  components.   Now you have referred in your aff idavi t  to  

an inst ruct ion you received f rom Mr Teubes.     

 I t  is Reenen Teubes who prepared a mot ivat ion.   Mr 

Teubes – how d id he f i t  into the organisat ion compared wi th  

you? 
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MR DREVIN :    Mr Teubes was the – i f  I  remember correct ly – 

the COO at  the t ime and he was Avishkar Govender ’s  

superior.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   And mister. . .   So and he was 

the COO, Chief  Operat ing Off icer,  correct? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Of  which ent i ty?  Would that  be st i l l  

Denel  Land Systems, DLS? 

MR DREVIN :    That  would be.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Not  the corporate head off ice but  DLS 10 

as the divis ion? 

MR DREVIN :    DLS. 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   And what was h is inst ruct ion to  

you? 

MR DREVIN :    That  I  should prepare a just i f icat ion for the 

single source suppl ier of  th is l imi ted basket  of  cr i t ical  

components where the interfaces are very cr i t ical  and 

problemat ic.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Were these components something in 

addi t ion to what was deal t  wi th in the Plat form Hul l  contract ,  20 

i t  was separate f rom that? 

MR DREVIN :    I t  was separate f rom that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay thank you.   Now can I  take you 

please to page 484? 

MR DREVIN :    [No audible reply]   
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    484 and fol lowing.   Could you please 

tel l  us what these documents are? 

MR DREVIN :    Page 484,  that  is my emai l  to Cel ia wi th the 

draf t  of  the mot ivat ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   The text  of  your emai l  run about  

the middle of  the page 484 reads:  

“Hi  Cel ia.   Find at tached the mot ivat ion for s ingle 

source suppl ier of  Hoefyster Tur ret  Farmer Steel  

Fabricat ions and Components.”  

 And you referred to a signed copy being sent  and 10 

del ivered.   And so was this what you prepared in response to 

the inst ruct ion that  you got  f rom Mr Teubes? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Were you aware of  how i t  came about 

that  he gave you that  instruct ion and why i t  was now being 

considered appropr iate that  a sing le source suppl ier should 

be appointed? 

MR DREVIN :    No,  I  was unaware of  the processes behind 

the screens.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now I  need to take you back 20 

please to your aff idavi t  where you summarised your reasons 

for the mot ivat ion.   I f  I  can take you to page 248? 

MR DREVIN :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Paragraph 5.2.   Do you have that? 

MR DREVIN :    Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    You say:  

“ I  have prepared the mot ivat ion,  emai led i t  to  

Ms Cel ia  Malahlela.   Those can be noted f rom the 

at tachment,  the just i f icat ion for the s ingle source 

suppl ier included the fol lowing. ”  

 And then you refer to a number of  technical  aspects and 

features of  the components and why there was a 

recommendat ion.   Do you conf i rm these were your reasons? 

MR DREVIN :    These were my reasons.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A l r ight .   And then you say,  5.2.2.   As 10 

one of  the reasons,  you referred to  certain processes being 

special ised and you recommended that  the suppl ier to be 

chosen should have a l l  of  these processes in-house.   Is that  

correct? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then your further  recommendat ion 

in 5.2.3 was that :  

“The chosen suppl ier  has an in-house machining 

faci l i ty or a close relat ionship wi th a suppl ier of  

such services as DOS has in the past  experienced 20 

lengthy delays and resul t  in schedule overruns 

because of  the lack thereof . ”  

 Were you referr ing to a part icular suppl ier or suppl iers in  

recording your concern about bad experiences in the past? 

MR DREVIN :    These were the f i rst  of  the engineering 
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development  models where there was a delay f rom f in ishing 

the welded structure in having that  machine.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Was LMT involved in that? 

MR DREVIN :    LMT was involved in that .   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And then you say 5.2.4.  

“ I t  was highly recommended that  a suppl ier  be 

chosen with a proven t rack record of  manufactur ing 

armour steel  st ructures e.g.  hul ls,  del iver ing on t ime 

to the requi red qual i ty standards. ”  

 Now were the reasons that  you were put t ing forward 10 

here,  especial ly  the last  two,  were you in any way 

suggest ing that  LMT should be el iminated and that  VR Laser 

should be favoured? 

MR DREVIN :    No,  I  speci f ical ly wrote the mot ivat ions so that  

the suppl ier that  as open ended.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Had you been asked by Mr Teubes or  

anybody else to wri te the mot ivat ion in a way that  favoured 

one suppl ier rather than another? 

MR DREVIN :    No,  these were my reasons.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now you then deal  in 5.3 wi th  20 

part icular aspects being focussed on only addressing the 

interfacing components and you give the explanat ion but  I  

th ink we can move rather to 5.4 where you say that :  

“The mot ivat ion was l imi ted to the real  technical  

r isks of  which you had real  concerns about 
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beforehand. ”  

 Just  explain to the Chai r  what your  real  concerns were?  

Was i t  the concerns about the capaci ty and experience and 

t rack record and so forth that  you already deal t  wi th or is  

there. . .  was i t  a di fferent  point? 

MR DREVIN :    The main concern was that  these components 

f i t  together in a proper way.   Being al l  welded structures,  the 

pol lens is a big problem . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .  

MR DREVIN :    . . . to maintain between these assembles.   And 10 

in the past  wi th other types of  assembles where this was a 

factor.   I f  something does not  f i t  then i t  is always a quest ion 

of  who is responsible.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .  

MR DREVIN :    Which takes qui te a t ime to sort  out .   So i f  

you have i t  at  one place then that  one suppl ier is  responsible 

no matter what.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now you cont inue then to say 

this:  

“The mot ivat ion did not  recommend the appointment  20 

of  a speci f ic suppl ier  to at tend to the work,  more 

speci f ical ly,  the appointment of  VR Laser and wi th 

wri t ten such that  to the best  of  my knowledge did 

not  exclude the use of  another suppl ier. ”  

 Why do you ment ion here that  you were avoiding VR 
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supply and rather t ry ing to keep i t  open for any potent ia l  

suppl ier?  Had VR Suppl ier ’s name come up in  relat ion to  

the s ingle source project? 

MR DREVIN :    No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    No.   So why is i t  that  you ment ion i t  

here? 

MR DREVIN :    Th is was just  my mot ivat ion behind wri t ing the 

mot ivat ion.   I t  was not .   I  speci f ica l ly wrote i t  not  to  speci fy 

the suppl ier.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  10 

MR DREVIN :    Because I  d id  not  feel  comfortable in 

speci fy ing a suppl ier.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And in  fact ,  you cont inue:  

“ I  fe l t  uncomfortable in recommending a speci f ic  

suppl ier.   I  d id not  have di rect  f i rst -hand experience 

wi th such as qual i ty of  supply to date of  appl icable 

suppl iers,  et  cetera.   This was echoed by the then 

Supply Chain Execut ive,  Ms Malahlela who is of  the 

opinion that  the requirement goes out  on tender. ”  

 And d id you think that  was a good idea going out  on 20 

tender? 

MR DREVIN :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   And then you explain 5.5 how i t  

came about that  you have ident i f ied speci f ic technical i t ies.   

But  we then come in  5.6 to your  later learning that  the 
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mot ivat ion that  you had prepared – that  is the document that  

we had just  been looking at ,  correct?  

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  that  became used as a basis to  

conclude a memorandum of  agreement between DLS and VR 

Laser Services where i t  was appointed in May 2015 as a 

single source supply for the provision of  al l  fabr icated steel  

serv ices and goods such as fabr icat ion of  hul ls,  turrets,  

FCM’s and fabr icated armour steel  s t ructures.    

 Now there are a couple of  issues I  need to quest ion you 10 

on that .   You refer to VR Laser Services being appointed on 

the st rength of  your mot ivat ion.   Correct?  That  was used 

that  your. . .   Your mot ivat ion that  you used by others to just i fy 

the appointment of  VR Laser.  

MR DREVIN :    Yes,  i t  was part  of  the mot ivat ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You just  to ld the Chair  thought  that  in  

your mot ivat ion you speci f ical ly did  not  recommend anybody 

whether VR Laser  Services or anybody else.    

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you raised some concerns wi th 20 

Ms Malahlela that  we have al ready deal t  wi th.   And she then 

as the head of  Supply Chain Management wi thin DLS fel t  

that  i t  should go out  to tender.  

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you know whether  i t  went  out  to  
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tender? 

MR DREVIN :    I  do not  know but  I  doubt  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You doubt i t?  

MR DREVIN :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    She has given evidence in relat ion to 

that .   The Chai r  has already heard.   Were you. . .   How did 

you feel?  Did you feel  surpr ised?  Was this  someth ing you 

accepted that  VR Laser  was appointed,  apparent ly,  on the 

st rength of  your mot ivat ion? 

MR DREVIN :    I  was especia l ly surpr ised that  the. . .  to the 10 

extent  of  the MOU. 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    MOA or MOU? 

MR DREVIN :    MOU and/or MOA. 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    MO.. .  

MR DREVIN :    Because I  was just  focused on just  speci f ic  

components.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now i f  the contract  had in fact  

been put  out  to open tender as Ms Malahlela had suggested 

would be done, would you have been involved in evaluat ion 

of  the tender once they came in,  a t  least ,  f rom the technical  20 

side? 

MR DREVIN :    I  do not  know.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You do not  know? 

MR DREVIN :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  could have involved others.  
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MR DREVIN :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now the other point  that  I  would l ike to 

look at  here is,  that  you refer  in th is paragraph 5.6 to what 

VR Laser Services was appointed to do as a single source 

suppl ier.   I t  would provide al l  fabr icated steel  serv ices and 

goods such as the fabr icat ion of  hul ls,  tur rets,  FCM’s.   Just  

remind us what FCM mean? 

MR DREVIN :    The FCM is the Fight ing Compartment  Module 

but  i t  is a term that  also refers to somet imes what we cal l  the 

turret  hul l  and I  th ink you would have run across another 10 

term, Trunnion(?)  machin ing.   That  is basical ly the same 

component.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Trunnion machine? 

MR DREVIN :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Thank you.   And then the other  

example that  you give is fabr icated armour steel  st ructures.   

Now was this the same scope of  di fferent  components that  

was the subject  of  your mot ivat ion,  the wri t ten mot ivat ion 

that  we looked at  ear l ier? 

MR DREVIN :    In terms of  armour steel  components,  yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Did i . . .   Was i t  exact ly the same as the 

range of  components or products that  you deal t  wi th in your  

mot ivat ion?  Was i t  less than or more than? 

MR DREVIN :    I t  was more than.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    More than? 
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MR DREVIN :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So you saying then. . .   Are you saying 

that  VR Laser Serv ices was given the contract  for s ingle 

source supply of  components that  went further than the 

components that  you had looked at  in your mot ivat ion? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Do you know how that  came 

about? 

MR DREVIN :    Wel l ,  unfortunately,  I  l istened to the test imony 

of  Cel ia . . . [ intervenes]   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR DREVIN :    . . .on Monday.   So,  then I  became 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You became aware of  her evidence? 

MR DREVIN :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   But  you do not  have your own 

knowledge as to what others may have done, why they used 

your mot ivat ion to  deal t  wi th products,  A,  B and C that  then 

was used as a basis to award VR Laser,  a contract  for sole 

suppl ier of  A,  B,  C,  D,  E and F as wel l?  20 

MR DREVIN :    No,  not  before Monday.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Not  before Monday.   Thank you.   And 

were you ever consul ted by Mr Teubes or anybody else to  

say:   Mr Drevin,  I  want  you to  analyse and mot ivate by way 

of  an addi t ional  mot ivat ion document for the addi t ional  
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products? 

MR DREVIN :    No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Did they ever come back to you? 

MR DREVIN :    No,  I  was not .   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Are you aware whether they asked 

anybody else to do that? 

MR DREVIN :    I  am not  aware of  anybody else . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Do you bel ieve that . . .   I  am sorry? 

MR DREVIN :    I  am not  aware of  anybody else being asked.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Being asked.   Would there have been 10 

anybody else who could potent ia l ly be asked or were you the 

only man in the or the only person in the organisat ion who 

would have been appropriate to ask? 

MR DREVIN :    There is a sl ight  possibi l i ty that  the 

programme manager on the other programme AV8 could have 

contr ibute.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   But  you would have expected 

because you have done the mot ivat ion for the f i rst  lot  of  

products,  that  you would have been approached to deal  wi th  

the second or the further products as wel l ,  the addi t ional  20 

i tems? 

MR DREVIN :    Yes,  I  would have.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Now thank you.   St i l l  on your 

aff idavi t .   Page 250,  paragraph 6.   Sorry,  before.   I  should 

have just  asked this f ina l  quest ion on the last  topic Chai r.   I f  
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I  may just  go back to that? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Are you able to te l l  the Commission to  

what extent  the addi t ional  i tems made a di fference?  In other 

words,  was i t  just  a couple of  very minor i tems in addi t ion to 

those i tems that  you have deal t  wi th in your wri t ten 

mot ivat ion or was i t  a substant ia l ,  a major or a minor add-on,  

as i t  were,  to the or ig inal  i tems you deal t  wi th? 

MR DREVIN :    The va lue of  the separate components was 

minor.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Was minor.  

MR DREVIN :    But  the whole basket  would have added up to 

qui te a bi t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Qui te a lot .    

MR DREVIN :    Ja,  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Thank you.   Now we come to 

the value of  the orders placed on the VR Laser f rom 2014 to 

date under the Hoefyster cont ract .   Now which cont ract  are 

you referr ing to,  the Single Source Suppl ier contract  or the 

ear l ier one for the Plat form Hul ls? 20 

MR DREVIN :    Under the breakdown of  the orders that  VR 

Laser received before the. . .  our contract  was placed,  the 

Plat form Hul l  contract  and then in the inter im f rom the 

Plat form Hul l  contract  up to the MOU and then af ter the 

MOU. 
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    So i t  says in  fact  the ent i re range,  is  

i t?  

MR DREVIN :    I t  is for the ent i re range.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Thank you.   May I  ask you 

please to turn to page 538? 

MR DREVIN :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Again,  Chai r.   I  am afraid,  for those of  

us wi th eyesight  problems, the pr int ing is a bi t  smal l .   I  th ink 

one can make i t  out .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I t  is not  ideal .   I f  you l ike us to  replace 

these pages wi th enlarged copies? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  enlarged.    

MR DREVIN :    Okay I  found i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    We do not  need to go in the detai l  of  

th is but  these are pages that  go on for many,  many pages in 

the bundle.   I t  runs f rom 538 to 599 and there are tab les that  

have in pret ty smal l  pr int  var ious columns, amounts,  i tems 

and so forth.   Can you just  te l l  us in broad out l ine Mr Drevin 

what is th is document? 20 

MR DREVIN :    Th is is a f inancial  report  f rom the VL System.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And what does i t  te l l  us?  What is the 

purpose of  the report? 

MR DREVIN :    This was the report  f rom which I  extracted the 

informat ion.    
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    And what  informat ion were you able to 

extract? 

MR DREVIN :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    What does i t  te l l  us?  Was this for 

purposes of  responding to a request  f rom the Commission to  

give a value as to the business that  was given to VR Laser 

Services in relat ion to these cont racts f rom 2014 to date? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And are you able to te l l  us what 

the total  is?  I t  appears,  i f  I  am r ight ,  to be set  out  at  page 10 

598.     

MR DREVIN :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    For that  part icular schedule there.   

There are separate schedules that  set  out  the var ious pr ices 

but  can you just  g ive us the tota ls on page 598? 

MR DREVIN :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Are you able to see that? 

MR DREVIN :    Not  c lear ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    No,  I  am afraid i t  is di ff icul t  for me.  

And you have not  spel t  out  in your aff idavi t  what the tota l  is.   20 

But  Chai r,  may I  g ive you the reference that  we wi l l  provide a 

legible copy of  that .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    As soon as possible.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   May I  just  have a moment? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    My learned col league, Ms Molefe,  has 

drawn to my at tent ion a point  in the papers that  re lates to 

the quest ion that  was posed by the Chair  ear l ier about  

experience.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    May I  take you please Mr Drevin to 

page 392? 

MR DREVIN :    [No audible reply]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Drevin,  are you there? 

MR DREVIN :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In  fact ,  th is appears to  be the 

quest ionnaire relat ing to quest ions raised wi th LMT.  Am I  

r ight? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   And i f  I  may di rect  your 

at tent ion to paragraph 4?  I t  is 9.1.    

“Taking LMT track record into considerat ion,  what  20 

has LMT done to improve?” 

 And then the response is.    

“The Patr ia data pack is f ixed and wi l l  not  have any 

reason to cause delay as for the previous DLS 

contracts.”  
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 Did you receive that  response f rom them as recorded or  

summarised in that  column? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And what does this relate to?  Just  

explain,  please?  What d id you understand th is to be? 

MR DREVIN :    Wi th previous order  that  was placed on LMT 

and I  take this to  be the AV8 turret  hul l  order.   There were 

changes f rom Denel ’s s ide as wel l  as reasons f rom LMT side 

why the project  overran i ts schedule.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Were you sat isf ied wi th that  10 

answer? 

MR DREVIN :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Did you bel ieve that  they gave a 

proper explanat ion that  reassured you,  that  explains the 

previous. . .  that  the previous problems already expense 

would not  recur would not  happen again i f  they were to get  

the new business? 

MR DREVIN :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And of  course,  we have al ready seen 

. . . [ intervenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   Was that  answer no or was i t  

yes? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes said yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  correct  Mr Drevin?  You said 
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yes? 

MR DREVIN :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   And I  took you ear l ier to your 

emai l  where you commented about  the al legat ions that  have 

been made in the media art ic le.    

 You remember your emai l  to Mr Govender and you had 

then suggested that  LMT should in fact  be awarded that  

contract  because al though they had previous issues.  

 And they now had moved to smal ler  premises,  you could 

perhaps do a deal  wi th LMT where,  at  least ,  using the 10 

di fference in pr ice between VR Laser and LMT that  that  

could perhaps be used.    

 You could perhaps increase thei r  pr ice to al low them to 

expand their  operat ions,  et  cetera.  

MR DREVIN :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Thank you.   Chai r,  those are the 

quest ions f rom the team for th is wi tness.   Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Just  to complete the issue 

that  we talked about ear l ier Mr Drevin.   Am I  r ight  to  say,  on 

the one hand there were three factors which was supposed 20 

to be scored,  pr ice,  funct ional i ty,  BBBEE?  But  the quest ions 

that  were asked seemed to have gone much wider than those 

factors.   And i t  seems to me that  i f  you got  a certain answer 

on a quest ion that  did not  relate to  pr ice or funct ional i ty or  

BBBEE, whether you were sat isf ied or not  sat isf ied wi th i t .   
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In the end,  i t  would not  count  for  any points that  you would 

al locate because you are only a l lowed to al locate points for  

the three,  namely pr ice,  funct ional i ty and BBBEE.  And in 

your case,  your concern was funct ional i ty and nothing else.   

Is my understanding r ight? 

MR DREVIN :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay thank you.   Thank you very much 

Mr Drevin for coming to assist  the Commission.   We 

appreciate i t  very much.  I f  we need you,  we wi l l  ask you to  

come back again.   Okay.    10 

MR DREVIN :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay thank you.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Would this  be a convenient  t ime to 

take a short  adjournment i f  that . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  we wi l l  take the tea adjournment.   I t  

might  not  be as short  as i t  usual ly is.   I t  might  be extended a 

l i t t le bi t  because there is something I  need to at tend to.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    As i t  p leases Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So we might  be 25-minutes or so.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    But  i f  I  get  ready before that ,  you wi l l  be 

told.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 
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INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  have taken much longer  than I  thought  

I  wou ld  bu t  a re  you ready,  Mr  Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  we a re  ready,  thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cha i r,  I  know tha t  you have  issues  

la te r  in  the  day  as  you have ind ica ted  prev ious l y,  o ther  

commi tments .   May we jus t  ind ica te  we w i l l  be  as  qu ick  as  

we can and we a re  s t i l l  op t im is t i c  we can f in ish  by  f i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  we l l  I  can  te l l  you  tha t  I  th ink  i f  10 

need be we can over  f i ve ,  maybe ha l f  past  f i ve .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Th is  w i tness w i l l  

take  some t ime but  I  hope not  too  long.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then the  next  w i tness  shou ld  

ac tua l l y  be  fa i r l y  qu ick .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So w i th  your  leave,  Cha i r,  may we  

then ask  leave  to  ca l l  our  next  w i tness,  Mr  Hendr ik  

Johannes Chr i s to f fe l  van den Heever?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  thank you .   P lease admin i s te r  the  
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oa th /a f f i rmat ion .   Jus t  p lace  on the  reco rd  tha t  the  

in te rpre ter  has been sworn  in .  

REGISTRAR :   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record?  

HENDRIK JOHANNES CHRISTOFFEL VAN DEN HEEVER:   

Hendr ik  Johannes Chr is to f fe l  van den Heever.  ( th rough  

in te rpre ter )  

REGISTRAR :   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  t ak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    No.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you cons ider  t he  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  10 

your  consc ience?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  we w i l l  have to  s ta r t  a f resh.   

Mr  van den Heever,  do  you need the  oa th  to  be  in te rp re ted  

or  you can unders tand Eng l ish  su f f i c ien t ly?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  can. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  te rms o f  the  oa th  because i t  i s  ve ry  

impor tan t ,  we cannot  take  a  chance tha t  la te r  on  you might  

say  you d id  no t  unders tand par t s  o f  the  oa th .  

MNR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Ek  ve rs taan,  ja .  20 

REGISTRAR :   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Hendr i k  Johannes Chr is to f fe l  van  

den Heever.   

REGISTRAR :   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  t ak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  
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MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    No.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you cons ider  t he  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Yes.  

REGISTRAR :   Do  you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  g ive   

w i l l  be  the  t ru th  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e lse  bu t  the  

t ru th .   I f  so ,  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say so  he lp  

me God.  

HENDRIK JOHANNES CHRISTOFFEL VAN DEN HEEVER:   

So  he lp  me God.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much.   Mr  Kennedy,  do  

you want  to  jus t  p lace  on reco rd  what  i s  go ing  to  happen 

about  the  in te rp re ter  and so  on?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  may we do so?   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   May I  then p lace  

on record  tha t  we had a  consu l ta t ion  w i th  Mr  van den 

Heever  a  week or  so  ago.   I t  was conducted in  Eng l ish ,  

v i r tua l l y  over  Zoom or  Teams and we are  aware  tha t  Mr  van  

den Heever  does  not  have Eng l ish  as  h is  f i rs t  language,  20 

A f r i kaans i s  h is  f i rs t  language and we are  aware  tha t  

somet imes he has to  be  a  b i t  care fu l  w i th  unders tand ing  

the  Eng l ish  bu t  overa l l  he  has,  i f  I  may say so ,  Mr  van den 

Heever,  a  p re t ty  good workab le  command o f  Eng l ish  and 

you were  he lp fu l  to  us  and we apprec ia te  tha t .   A t  one 
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s tage,  Cha i r,  i t  was ind ica ted  to  us  tha t  Mr  van den  Heever  

wou ld  p re fe r  an  i n te rp re ter  to  be  present  to  in te rp re t  and  

we engaged in  d i scuss ions w i th  h i s  lega l  team,  par t i cu la r l y  

Mr  P i l lay  o f  the  a t to rneys f i rm who represents  Mr  van den  

Heever,  who are  ac tua l l y  p resent ,  Mr  P i l lay  and Ms 

Wi lsnagh,  and we reached an agreement ,  as  I  unders tand  

i t ,  tha t  the  in te rpre te r  w i l l  be  he re  no t  to  in te rpre t  eve ry  

word  o f  eve ry  quest ion  or  eve ry  word  o f  eve ry  answer  bu t  

the  in te rpre ter  can be used i f  Mr  van den Heever  does not  

unders tand anyth ing  i n  par t i cu la r  tha t  i s  pu t  to  h im in  10 

Eng l ish .   He w i l l  a lso ,  as  fa r  as  he  is  ab le  to ,  answer  the  

quest ions in  Eng l ish  bu t  i f  he  s t rugg les  he  w i l l  ca l l  on  the  

in te rpre ter  and so  tha t  i s  what  we have ar ranged w i th  Mr  

van den Heever  w i th  h is  a t to rneys ’ ass is tance.   And may I  

jus t  p lace  on record  our  apprec ia t ion  to  the  a t to rneys who  

have p layed a  p ro fess iona l  ro le  in  th is  and in  a l l  o ther  

regards.   Thank you,  Cha i r.   I t  tha t  i s  acceptab le  to  you we  

wou ld  l i ke  to  p roceed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine  w i th  me,  maybe h is  lega l  

rep resenta t i ves  shou ld  p lace themse lves on  record  and 20 

then conf i rm tha t  a r rangement?   Ja ,  you can do so  f rom 

where  you are ,  i f  you  jus t  sw i tch  on  the  m ic .  

MR PILLAY:   Good morn ing ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing .  

MR PILLAY:   I  con f i rm what  Adv Kennedy has conveyed to  
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you  th is  morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  thank  you.  

MR PILLAY:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you represent  Mr  van den Heever.  

MR PILLAY:   Mr  van den Heever,  tha t  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  thank you.  

MR PILLAY:   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  and we apprec ia te  

…[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And,  Mr  van den Heever,  you conf i rm as  

we l l  tha t  you unders tand the  ar rangement?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Hundred percent ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you.   I f  you  s t rugg le ,  you 

have a  prob lem,  jus t  say  so  and the  in te rpre ter  i s  

ava i lab le ,  w i l l  ass is t ,  bu t  i f  you  are  ab le  to  unders tand and 

you are  ab le  to  answer  in  Eng l ish  i t  i s  f ine .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Thank  you,  I  w i l l  do  so ,  Cha i r.   

Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank you,  Mr  Kennedy.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   May  I  add 

someth ing  to  the  Cha i r ’s  po in ts  t o  you now,  Mr  van den 

Heever?   I  w i l l  t ry  to  be  care fu l  and c lear  in  every th ing  tha t  

I  pu t  to  you but  i f  you  do not  unders tand anyth ing  e i ther  

because you d id  no t  hear  o r  your  m ind was rac ing  ahead  
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w i th  someth ing  e l se  o r  you d id  no t  unders tand the  Eng l ish ,  

p lease jus t  immedia te l y  say  can  you repeat  i t ,  can  you 

exp la in  i t  and I  w i l l  then t ry  and exp la in  i t  and i f  tha t  i s  no t  

poss ib le  then Ms Oosthu izen,  the  in te rpre ter  i s  here  to  

ass is t .   So p lease take  comfor t  f rom both  reassurances.   

Okay?  Thank you.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mr  van den Heever,  do  you  conf i rm 

you d id  in  fac t  consu l t  w i th  the  lega l  team tha t  I  am par t  o f  

w i th  my learned co l leagues beh ind  a  week o r  a  coup le  o f  10 

weeks ago?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  we consu l ted  

w i th  you in  respect  o f  two a f f idav i t s  tha t  you have he lp fu l l y  

p rov ided to  the  Commiss ion?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  was a f te r  you were  asked  

quest ions by  the  invest iga tor ’s  team o f  th is  Commiss ion .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Before  you you shou ld  have a  20 

f i le .   Yes,  I  see you do.   And your  two a f f idav i t s  appear  in  

the  f i le  bu t  I  am go ing  to  ask  you to  conf i rm tha t  in  a  

moment .   Can you p lease –  Cha i r,  may I  jus t  p lace  on  

record  we are  now re fer r ing  aga in  to  Dene l  bund le  04 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    And here  we are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  

EXHIBIT W14 and W14,  Cha i r ,  we  w i l l  take  the  w i tness to  

th is  in  a  moment ,  inc ludes two a f f idav i t s .   The one appears  

-  Mr  van den Heever ,  w i l l  you  jus t  fo l low wi th  me on th is  

sheet ,  jus t  look  on  the  top  le f t  hand s ide ,  there  a re  

numbers ,  I  am go ing  to  jus t  re fe r  to  the  las t  d ig i t .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Number  5 ,  page 5 ,  tha t  i s  your  one 

a f f idav i t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  i s  in  d iv ider  A  and then i f  you 

tu rn  to  page 83 you w i l l  f ind  your  o ther  a f f idav i t ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now may  I  take  you in  t he  f i rs t  

a f f idav i t  to  where  you s igned i t  and i f  I  can  take  you p lease  

to  page 23?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Yes,  I  am there .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  you r  s ignature  a t  the  foo t  o f  

the  page?  20 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  my s ignatu re ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You s igned i t  in  f ron t  o f  a  

Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths ,  we see tha t  on  page 24.   Do you 

conf i rm tha t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now before  we ask you to  conf i rm 

tha t  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  we have jus t  looked a t  i s  cor rec t ,  

may I  jus t  ask  you,  i s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  dur ing  the  consu l ta t ion  

you a le r ted  us  to    I  am sor ry ,  may I  jus t  have a  moment?   

I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you in  the  consu l ta t ion  tha t  we recent ly  

had you a le r ted  us  to  some er rors  tha t  you have p icked up  

tha t  you wanted to  p lace  on record? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Sor ry ,  M’Lo rd ,  may  I  jus t  –  

Cha i r ,  may I  jus t  have a  moment?   Yes,  i t  i s  a t  page 14,  do  10 

you have tha t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  have got  i t ,  ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Paragraph 24.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Jus t  to  ge t  our  thoughts  on  th is ,  you 

say:  

“ I  submi t  i t  was obv ious dur ing  th is  t ime tha t  DLS 

was in  negot ia t ions  w i th  LMT on p rov id ing  f inanc ia l  

ass is tance to  LMT.   I  say  so  because in  some o f  the  

emai l  t ra i l s  appeared d iscuss ions  per ta in ing  to  the  20 

f inanc ia l  cha l lenges they sought  to  e l im ina te  

th rough the  prepayment .   I t  was apparent  tha t  DLS 

was to  p rov ide  the  f inanc ia l  ass i s tance th rough a  

prepayment  tha t  I  had to  s t ruc ture  under  the  

t runn ion  mach in ing  cont rac t . ”  
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Now do you reca l l  you ra i sed a  prob lem wi th  th is  and you  

asked us  to  no te  a  co r rec t ion?  Do  you remember  what  the  

cor rec t ion  was tha t  you asked us  to  do?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Jus t  te l l  the  Cha i r  p lease?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  change  tha t  to  

s ta te  tha t  the  prepayment  had to  be  s t ruc tured and not  I  

had to  s t ruc tu re  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    So  you want  to  de le te  the  word  10 

“ I ”  and you want  to  inser t  the  word  “be ”  be fore  s t ruc ture  

and you want  to  amend the  word  “s t ruc ture”  to  read  

“s t ruc tured. ”    So th is  l ine  w i l l  read:  

“Payment  tha t  had to  be  s t ruc tured under  the  

t runn ion  mach in ing  cont rac t . ”  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then,  Mr  Kennedy,  jus t  a  smal l  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t  can we done to  say –  to  e f fec t  the  

cor rec t ions because …[ in te rvenes]  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We can do tha t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because one cannot  amend an a f f idav i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We wi l l  a t tend to  tha t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   Mr  van den Heever ,  I  do  

no t  reca l l  tha t  in  th is  a f f idav i t  –  I  am not  ta lk ing  about  the  

o ther  a f f idav i t .   As  I  do  no t  reca l l  any  o the r  cor rec t ions  

tha t  you fe l t  needed to  be  made are  you ab le  to  te l l  the  

Cha i r  i s  there  anyth ing  e l se  i n  th is  a f f idav i t  you fee l  the  

need to  ra ise  fo r  cor rec t ion?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Cur ren t ly  no t ,  thank you.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Do you conf i rm tha t  you have gone  

th rough th is  a f f idav i t?   You know what  i s  in  i t  and you 10 

conf i rm tha t  i t  se ts  ou t  the  fac ts  as  you know them.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   Cha i r ,  we w i l l  then ask  

fo r  th is  a f f idav i t  fo rmal ly  to  be  admi t ted .   We wi l l  dea l  w i th  

the  o ther  a f f idav i t  in  a  moment  bu t  may we ask then fo r  the  

fo rmal  admiss ion  o f  th is  a f f idav i t?   I t  i s  in  bund le  Dene l  04 ,  

EXHIBIT W14 f rom page 5 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    We wi l l  have to  have a  d i f fe ren t  exh ib i t  

number  o f  the  o ther  one so  we must  cons ide r  whe ther  we 

shou ld  make th i s  one EXHIBIT W14.1  or  W14 and the  o ther  20 

one W15.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  W15 has a l ready been a l loca ted  

by  those respons ib le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So we shou ld  make th is  one 14.1 ,  the  

o ther  one 14.2 .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    As  you p lease,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The s ta tement /a f f idav i t  by  Mr  Hendr ik  

Johannes Chr is to f fe l  van de r  Heever  s ta r t ing  a t  page 5  i s  

admi t ted  and w i l l  be  marked as  EXHIBIT W14.1 .  

STATEMENT/AFFIDAVIT  OF MR VAN DEN HEEVER 

STARTING FROM PAGE 5  HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  14 .1  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   Now,  Mr  van den  

Heever ,  the  o the r  a f f idav i t  shou ld  be  found a t  the  marker  10 

B .   I f  your  f i l e  has a  marker  B  and  you w i l l  f ind  i t  a t  page  

83.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  have got  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Am I  r igh t  in  unders tand ing  

th is  i s  the  second a f f idav i t ,  the  f ron t  page bear ing  your  

name? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tu rn  p lease to  page 113.    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  am there .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  t ha t  your  s ignature  aga in  a t  the  20 

top  o f  the  page?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And aga in  you s igned in  f ron t  o f  

Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i s  i t  co r rec t  tha t  you have  ra ised 

both  in  our  consu l ta t ion  and s ince  a  few issues tha t  you 

want  to  cor rec t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I f  I  can  ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  

page 101?  I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you a le r ted  me to  an  er ror  tha t  

you had p icked up in  paragraph 55 .5?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    55 ,  jus t  to  g ive  the  contex t ,  i s  you 

gave a  l i s t  he re  i n  your  a f f idav i t  o f  the  peop le  who  fo rmed 10 

the  BEC,  the  b id  eva lua t ion  commi t tee ,  cor rec t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you a le r ted  us ,  as  the  lega l  

team,  to  an  er ror  in  paragraph 55.5 .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  i t  Mr  o r  Ms  Khoza?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I t  i s  Mr  Khoza.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And what  was the  er ror?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I t  s ta tes  tha t  he  was f rom 

in fan t ry  sys tems depar tment  bu t  he  is  ac tua l l y  f rom f inance 20 

depar tment .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  thank you.   And then on the  

fo l low ing page,  102,  i s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you a le r ted  us  to  a  

spe l l ing  er ror  in  55 .8?   I t  shou ld  read Mr  Rakadukwe.   Wi th  

a  k  be fo re  the  w.   H is  name appears  in  o ther  documents .  
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MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  am not  sure  i f  i t  i s  Rakadukwe 

or  Rakaduwe.   I  th ink  i t  i s  Rakaduwe,  I  am not… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  thank you.   And then  i f  I  can  

ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 111.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    In  paragraph 93 you say the 

fo l low ing:  

“A t tached here to  as  annexure  HVD036 is  a  

spreadsheet  conta in ing  the  l i s t  o f  purchase orders  

tha t  I ,  as  a  buyer  w i th in  the  supp ly  cha in  10 

depar tment  o f  DLS had issued in  favour  o f  VR Laser  

f rom the  years  2009 unt i l  2018.   To ta l  va lue  o f  

o rders  p laced on VR Laser  fo r  th is  per iod  was 

R345 849 877.82. ”  

That  i s  what  your  a f f idav i t  says .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  we,  as  the  lega l  

team,  have been a le r ted  by  your  –  th rough the  k ind  

ass is tance o f  you r  a t to rneys to  the  fac t  tha t  you wanted to  

cor rec t  tha t  by  way o f  a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t?  20 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Ja ,  I  was  requested to  amend the  

spreadsheet  to  ind ica te  the  va lue  up  to  the  end o f  March.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    March  o f  wh ich  year?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    2014.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    2014?  
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MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  in  fac t  tha t  came a t  the  request  

f rom who?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  th ink  was Caro le ,  i f  I  am not  

m is taken.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  by  members  o f  the  lega l  team.   

Thank you.   And is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  you have prov ided a  

supp lementary  s ta tement .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  have,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And we are  go ing  to  dea l  w i t h  tha t  a  10 

l i t t le  la te r ,  i f  we may,  Cha i r .   Tha t  i s  no t  cur ren t ly  be fore  

you in  the  f i le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  on l y  came to  us  th is  morn ing  

and i t  has  no t  taken a  fo rm o f  a  commiss ioned a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    There  were  some prob lems in  tha t  

regard .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  have to  burden you w i th  o the r  20 

prob lems tha t  have burdened us ,  Cha i r ,  bu t  we hope we  

can dea l  w i th  them.   May we jus t  ind ica te  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  we sha l l  share  the  bu rden.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  we sha l l  share  the  bu rden.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   Unfor tunate ly ,  i t  

emerged on ly  yesterday f rom the  bund le  tha t  has been  

prov ided and handed to  you,  Cha i r ,  tha t  some o f  the 

annexures in  the  photocopy ing  process or  the  packag ing  o f  

these bund les ,  fo r  some reason,  we are  no t  sure ,  there  was  

a  s l ip  up  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    They were  le f t  ou t  o r  someth ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And they d id  no t  f ind  the i r  way in to  

the  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cha i r ,  there  are  two ways  tha t  we 

proposed dea l ing  w i th  i t .   We do not  be l ieve  tha t  i t  shou ld  

per ta in  us  in  ask ing  quest ions o f  th is  w i tness because on ly  

cer ta in  annexures are  go ing  to  be  re fer red  to  in  the  

quest ions a t  leas t  as  I  am ant ic ipa t ing  and the  annexures 

tha t  I  wou ld  have  l i ked  to  have taken to  Mr  van den Heever  

to  comment  on  happened to  be  annexures to  the  a f f idav i t  

o f  Mr  Drev in ,  the  w i tness who you jus t  heard  who dea ls  

w i th  some i ssues tha t  ove r lap  w i th  tha t  o f  Mr  van den  

Heever .   Those happ i ly  a re  to  be  found in  the  same f i le .   20 

So w i th  your  leave may we then re fer  to  those pages? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Where  i t  i s  re levant .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     Bu t  the  second so lu t ion  tha t  we 
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p ropose is  th is ,  tha t  a  comple te  copy o f  the  a f f idav i t  as  

prov ided by  Mr  van den Heever  w i th  a l l  o f  the  co r rec t  

annexures w i l l  be  prov ided by  the  sec re ta r ia t .   In  fac t  I  

be l ieve  tha t  they  are  dea l ing  w i th  tha t  now but  we  do not  

want  to  de ta in  your  fu r the r  in  th is  regard .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  we apo log ise  on  beha l f  o f  our  

team and the  sec re tar ia t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t ,  w i th  your  leave,  may we 10 

cont inue on tha t  ra ther  compl ica ted  bas i s?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  le t  us  cont inue on tha t  

bas is .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you very  much.   I  wou ld  l i ke  –  

so  I  th ink  I  jus t  need to  ask  you,  Cha i r ,  I  do  be l ieve  I  have 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do I  need th is  a f f idav i t?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes i f  you  wou ld  accept  the  second 

o f  Mr  van den Heever ’ s  a f f idav i t  f rom page 83 o f  bund le  

Dene l  04  wh ich  shou ld  be  admi t ted ,  we wou ld  suggest ,  as  20 

EXHIBIT W14.2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Po in t  2 ,  ja .   The s ta tement /a f f idav i t  o f  

Mr  Hendr i k  Johannes Chr i s to f fe l  van der  Heever  s ta r t ing  at  

page 83 is  admi t ted  and w i l l  be  marked as  EXHIBIT W14.2 .  

STATEMENT/AFFIDAVIT  OF MR VAN DEN HEEVER 
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STARTING FROM PAGE 83 HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  14 .2  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .   And then I  have 

ment ioned the  supp lementary  s ta tement  tha t  i s  no t  in  the  

fo rm o f  an  a f f idav i t ,  we are  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  i t s  contents  

a  l i t t le  la te r ,  i f  we may,  and then ask  fo r  a t  leas t  the  

s ta tement  to  be  handed in  p rov i s iona l l y  to  you but  we w i l l  

do  tha t  a t  tha t  s tage.   I  am to ld  by  our  learned f r iends who  

appear  fo r  Mr  van den Heever  tha t  apparent ly  the re  was 

some log is t i ca l  p rob lems but  they have  g i ven an 

under tak ing  tha t  they w i l l  ensure  tha t  tha t  i s  t ransformed  10 

in to  a  commiss ioned a f f idav i t  as  soon as  poss ib le  and tha t  

w i l l  then be in t roduced in to  your  own bund le ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  we do  not  be l ieve  tha t  –  i f  we 

shou ld  have a  d i f f i cu l t y  sub jec t  to  your  dec is ion  in  tak ing  

h im th rough what  i s  cur ren t ly  an  unat tes ted  s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   No,  tha t  i s  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  can  then be conf i rmed  in  due  

course .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t  w i l l  be  f ine  a f te r  a l l  he  w i l l  be  20 

tes t i f y ing  under  oa th .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Exact ly .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  jus t  fo r  conven ience i t  wou ld  be  

good to  have tha t  commiss ioned.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r ,  tha t  w i l l  be  done.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And may we propose tha t  tha t ,  when 

tha t  i s  inc luded in  the  bund le ,  shou ld  –  in  an  a t tes ted  fo rm,  

wou ld  inc luded as  EXHIBIT 14.3?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i t  w i l l  be  admi t ted  as  14 .3 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ac tua l l y ,  EXHIBIT W14.3 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you ve ry  much.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t .   Now,  Cha i r ,  w i th  your  leave 10 

may we then ask  quest ions o f  th is  w i tness,  f i rs t  w i th  h i s  

second s ta tement  tha t  appears  i n  the  bund le?   I t  jus t  

seems to  f low n i ce ly  f rom some o f  the  ea r l ie r  ev idence tha t  

you have heard .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   Mr  van den Heever ,  may 

we take you f i rs t  to  your  a f f idav i t?   I t  s ta r ts  a t  page 83.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  am there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe I  shou ld  say,  Mr  Govender  –  I  am 

sor ry ,  I  am ter r ib ly  sor ry ,  Mr  Kennedy,  i t  i s  quar te r  to  one 20 

now.   Maybe we can proceed up to  quar te r  past  one.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  we have about  30  m inutes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Be fore  we take the  lunch b reak.  



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 72 of 310 
 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  wou ld  he lp ,  thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  thank you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  Mr  van den Heever ,  th is  

a f f idav i t  dea ls  ma in ly  w i th  the  p la t fo rm hu l l s  cont rac t  wh ich  

was g iven to  VR Laser ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   Now your  cur ren t  employer  i s  

Dene l ,  the  d iv i s ion  DLS,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    When d id  you s ta r t  a t  Dene l?  10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    January  1982.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Be fore  i t  was even ca l led  Dene l .   

What  was i t  ca l led  then?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:  I t  was ca l l ed  Ly t te l ton  Eng ineer ing  

Works  a t  tha t  s tage.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And what  was your  job  t i t le  

when you s tar ted  in  1982?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  s ta r ted  as  an  ar t i san  –  ag ,  

f i rs t l y  as  an  app ie  t ra iner  and then as  ar t i san  and worked 

my way up.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And then you moved up the  

ranks in  Dene l ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You re fer  in  parag raph 5 ,  page 84,  to  

work ing  in  the  p lann ing  o f f i ce  a t  one s tage? 
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MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then you moved to  the  supp ly  

cha in  management  depar tment  as  a  buyer  where  you had  

22 years  exper ience as  a  buyer .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    O r  a  sen ior  buyer  and then o the r  

t i t les ,  commodi t ies  spec ia l i s t  and procurement  o f f i cer .   

What  i s  your  cur ren t  t i t le?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  am cur ren t ly  w i th  p roduct ion  

p lann ing ,  I  have  moved on back  to  p roduct ion  p lann ing  10 

aga in .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  you le f t  supp ly  cha in  

management  a f te r  22  years  and now you are  in  p roduct ion .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   Now you re fer red  to  your  

t ra in ing  on  page 85,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Paragraph 7  and then you se t  ou t  in  

parag raph 8  your  du t ies  in  supp ly  cha in .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Because your  a f f idav i t  i s  dea l ing  w i th  

i ssues re la t ing  to  the  Hoefys ter  cont rac t  fo r  p la t fo rm hu l l s  

g iven to  VR Laser  a t  the  t ime tha t  you were  in  supp ly  

cha in .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  r igh t?   Thank you.   Now may I  

take  you to  page  86?  A f te r  se t t ing  ou t  the  purpose o f  th is  

s ta tement  wh ich  was to  respond to  spec i f i c  i ssues  ra ised 

by  the  Commiss ion ’s  i nvest iga tors ,  you then se t  ou t  in  

parag raph 10 the  s tandard  p rocu rement  p rocedure  a t  DLS 

a t  the  t ime,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And were  you in  fac t  runn ing  the  

process f rom the  day- to -day po in t  o f  v iew fo r  p rocurement  

in  re la t ion  to  the  cont rac t  tha t  we have jus t  ment ioned? 10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Can you jus t  exp la in  tha t  to  me? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    What  was your  invo lvement  

par t i cu la r l y  in  the  supp ly  cha in  management  depar tment  

dea l ing  w i th  the  Hoefys ter  p ro jec t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  was jus t  respons ib le  fo r  p lac ing  

the  orde r  acco rd ing  to  the  procedures,  p resc r ibed 

procedures and s tu f f .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And d id  tha t  inc lude the  Hoefys ter  

cont rac t  tha t  was  awarded to  VR Laser  fo r  p la t fo rm hu l l s?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t .   Now i f  we can tu rn  to  page 

89,  your  paragraph 12 dea ls  w i th  the  de lega t ion  o f  

au thor i t y  and th is  was a  de legat ion  o f  au tho r i t y  app l i cab le  

you say in  pa ragraph 12 a t  DLS a f te r  27  November  2012.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t .   And i t  g ives  the  range o f  

d i f fe ren t  p r i ces  tha t  the  va lue  o f  par t i cu la r  cont rac ts  w i th in  

spec i f i c  ranges.   There  were  have to  be  spec i f i c  l eve ls  o f  

au thor i t y  and 12.5  you say:  

“A l l  purchase orders  above R5 mi l l ion  th resho ld  

requ i red  approva l  by  the  Exco p rocurement  

commi t tee . ”  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now we have heard  ev idence  

tha t  DLS was a  d iv is ion  a long w i th  o ther  w i th in  Dene l  10 

Group,  cor rec t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  Dene l  Group 

had i t s  own p rocurement  po l i cy?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Ja ,  bu t  I  th ink  ours  was der i ved 

f rom i t ,  I  am no hundred pe rcent  sure .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  yes .   In  fac t  we have heard  

ev idence tha t  i t  was based on tha t  and tha t  the  Dene l  

Group Po l i cy  imposed a  requ i rement  tha t  above a  cer ta in  

va lue  cont rac ts  had to  be  approved by  cer ta in  leve ls  and  20 

are  you aware  tha t  the  Dene l  Group po l i cy  requ i red  tha t  a  

cont rac t  ove r  the  va lue  o f  200  mi l l ion  wou ld  requ i re  

approva l  by  the  Dene l  Corpora te  Board?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I t  became known to  me.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   So what  you are  re fer r ing  to  
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in  12 .5  i s  s imp ly  tha t  w i th in  the  d iv is ion  a  cont rac t  fo r  a 

purchase o rder  fo r  more  than R5 mi l l ion  wou ld  requ i re  

Exco procurement  commi t tee ’s  approva l .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  you  became aware  tha t  in  

add i t ion  to  tha t  the  board  wou ld  a lso  have to  approve a  

cont rac t  above 200 mi l l ion .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Okay,  in  the  next  sec t ion  o f  

your  a f f idav i t  and  w i th  your  leave,  Cha i r ,  I  am go ing  to  go  10 

th rough i t  very  se lec t i ve l y .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  we do not  waste  t ime because 

you have a  fa i r  b i t  o f  ev idence about  the  background.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  have heard  a  lo t  o f  ev idence.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you .   You re fer  to  Armscor  

award ing  DLS a  cont rac t  fo r  the  217 hu l l s ,  cor rec t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then you  exp la in  the  p rocess the  

res t  o f  the  page and then you re fer  a t  the  top  o f  your  next  20 

page 91 in  pa rag raph 17 to  a  s i tua t ion  in  2011 when DLS 

sought  to  cont rac t  a  supp l ie r  to  manufac ture  and  de l i ver  

the  p la t fo rm hu l l s ,  the  p la t fo rm hu l l s  cont rac t .   So th is  was  

one e lement  o f  what  needed to  be  p rov ided by  Dene l  to  

Armscor ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  
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MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.    Now you then re fe r  to  LMT 

and LMT had -  a  major i t y  shareho ld ing  was bought  by  DLS  

in  LMT a t  a  ce r ta in  s tage.   What  was your  unders tand ing  

as  to  what  LMT -  wh ich  wou ld  par t i c ipa te  in  work  such as  

th is  in  genera l ,  be fore  we get  to  the  spec i f i c  cont rac t .   LMT 

was now a  major i t y  owned and cont ro l led  by  Dene l ,  

cor rec t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Ja ,  I  th ink  i t  was s t i l l  i n  p rocess  

a t  tha t  s tage,  i t  was not  –  I  am not  sure  i f  they  were  10 

a l ready par t  o f  th is .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  was there  any need f rom what  

you unders tood to  g ive  LMT th is  work  fo r  the  2017 P la t fo rm 

Hu l ls?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    The fac t  tha t  he  is  par t  o f  Dene l  I  

fe l t  tha t  the  money is  kept  in  Dene l  i f  i t  was g i ven to  them.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Bu t  the  go ing  out  on  the  th ree  

quota t ions tha t  we d id  as  we w i l l  see  la te r  on  changed the  

rou te  o f  what  was  happen ing .   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay we w i l l  ge t  to  why tha t  rou te  

was fo l lowed and where  i t  led  you to .   You re fe r  in  th is  

parag raph to  th is  you say:  

“LMT had been acqu i red  to  make i t  a  more  comple te  

manufac ture  o f  an  armoured veh ic le .   However  due 
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to  var ious fac to rs  such as  concerns was the  qua l i t y  

o f  serv ices  rendered by  LMT,  DLS management  

dec ided to  do  someth ing . ”  

We wi l l  dea l  w i th  what  they dec ided in  a  moment .   Were  

you aware  tha t  there  were  concerns about  qua l i t y  on  the  

par t  o f  LMT?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  was aware  o f  i ssues,  yes .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Am I  r igh t  in  unders tand ing  tha t  you  

are  no t  a  techn ica l  person in  the  sense o f  fo r  example  

be ing  an eng ineer  who wou ld  know the  ins  and outs  o f  10 

qua l i t y  i ssues?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    No,  I  d isagree.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  beg your  pa rdon,  te l l  us?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  am a  t ra ined a r t i san  so  qua l i t y  

and the  fac t  tha t  I  have been w i th  Supp ly  Cha in  fo r  22  

years  go ing  ou t  –  and I  was respons ib le  fo r  ha l f  o f  tha t  

t ime fo r  the  qua l i t y  myse l f  I  knew what  the  s tandard  was 

fo r  the  qua l i t y  tha t  we requ i red .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  thank you fo r  cor rec t ing  me.   

So you in  fac t  d id  have knowledge in  th is .   So the  qua l i t y  20 

issues tha t  were  ra ised about  LMT were  those  tha t  you  

persona l l y  had ident i f ied  o r  d id  o ther  peop le  i n  o the r  

depar tments  ra ise  tha t  w i th  you?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    No the  qua l i t y  depar tment  d id  

ra ise  i t  bu t  I  a lso  had the  “onderv ind ing ” .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Exper ience.   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    The exper ience tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  

ja .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t  thank you and then  we now 

get  to  what  DLS management  dec ided.   You say here :  

“That  they dec ided tha t  a  normal  p rocurement  

p rocess be  fo l lowed to  secure  a  supp l ie r  

never the less  LMT was s t i l l  cons idered a  po tent ia l  

supp l ie r  even though i t  d id  no t  en joy  any pre ference 

by  DLS. ”  10 

Now as I  unders tand your  ev idence and cor rec t  me  i f  I  am 

wrong what  you ’ re  say ing  here  i s  tha t  i t  m igh t  have been a  

good idea to  ge t  the  work  done by  LMT but  there  were  

some concerns about  qua l i t y.   I t  wou ld  have been  a  good 

idea because i t  was w i th in  the  Dene l  s tab le  or  g roup,  

cor rec t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You wou ld  have kept  the  money 

w i th in  the  group ,  was the  po in t  you made ear l ie r  bu t  

ins tead o f  do ing  tha t  i t  was dec ided no le t  us  go  ou t  on  an  20 

open procurement  p rocess because we have  some 

concerns about  LMT’s  qua l i t y.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Bu t  LMT wou ld  s t i l l  be  in  the  race,  i t  

wou ld  s t i l l  be  a  horse  in  the  race i t  cou ld  tender  i f  i t  
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w ished to  do  so .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now you then se t  ou t  in  

parag raph 19 and 20 var iance o f  the  par t i cu la r  combat  

veh ic le ,  cor rec t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then you dea l  spec i f i ca l l y  a t  page  

92,  jus t  remember  the  page numbers  i s  top  le f t  f rom 

paragraph 21 was the  process tha t  was fo l lowed by  the  

procu rement  o f  the  Hoefys ter  P la t fo rm Hu l ls  supp l ie r.   Now 10 

you re fer red  to  a  th ree  quota t ion  bas is  and you ment ioned  

a  moment  ago to  the  Cha i r  th ree  quota t ions were  in  fac t  

rece ived.   Th i s  was not  an  open ly  adver t i sed pub l i c  tender  

where  everybody  out  in  the  marketp lace cou ld  tender.   I s  

tha t  r igh t?    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Ja ,  we have been work ing  on  

th ree  quotes  a l l  our  l i ves ,  tenders  on ly  s ta r ted  coming in  

s ince  I  th ink  2014/2015 they s ta r ted  ta lk ing  about  tender  

p rocesses.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  20 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Bu t  we have been us ing  th ree 

quotes  sys tem bas ica l l y  my who le  20 /22 years  tha t  I  was  

there .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t  and th is  was around 2011 tha t  

th is  s ta r ted  you  say in  paragraph 22 fo r  the  Hoefys ter  
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P la t fo rm Hu l l s .   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  ja .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now you ment ioned a  

budgeted pr ice  per  hu l l  o f  be ing  R950 000,00 per  hu l l  

exc lus ive  o f  VAT and the  to ta l  budget  wou ld  then have  

been in  the  reg ion  o f  R206mi l l ion .     

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now then you re fer  to  the  fac t  tha t  

there  was no prev ious supp l ie r  o r  las t  purchase pr i ce  

in fo rmat ion .   Why  was tha t?  10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  we l l  bas ica l l y  because we  

have not  bought  any hu l l s  on  prev ious ly  and on ly  a f te r  s tu f f  

has been bought  then you s tar t  ge t  the  sys tem use to  on  

the  sys tem which  g ive  you a  las t  purchases pr i ces  and a l l  

tha t  k ind  o f  in fo rmat ion .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and  then you exp la in  why –  

how you went  about  choos ing  who  to send the  request  fo r  

p roposa ls  to ,  jus t  exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  b r ie f l y  what  tha t  

invo l ve?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Ja ,  bas i ca l l y  we had a  supp l ie r  20 

da tabase and w i th  the  exper ience  and back ing  tha t  I  had 

p lus  my co l leagues cou ld  de termine wh ich  supp l ie r  i s  

cur ren t ly  in  the  da tabase has got  the  ab i l i t y  and capab i l i t y  

to  manufac ture  these heavy s t ruc tured hu l l s  and work ing  

th rough tha t  and get t ing  the  inputs  i t  was dec ided on four  
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supp l ie rs  wh ich  was then LMT,  VR laser,  BA Systems and  

DCD-Dorby l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Those are  the  en t i t ies  you re fer  to  in  

parag raph 27?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  and  then you dea l  w i th  the i r  

background how they had been dea l ing  w i th  DLS or  

Mechem,  is  Mechem or  Mechen?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Mechem.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mechem,  what  i s  Mechem? 10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    They were  do ing  landmine l i f t ing  

and c lear ing ,  the  landmine c lear ing  depar tment  and dog 

t ra in ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now may we tu rn  to  page 94  

paragraph 30.   You re fer red  to  an  RFO,  a  request  fo r  o f f i ce  

spec i f i ca l l y  fo r  the  hu l l  manufac tur ing  on  the  Hoefys ter  

Pro jec t  o r  cont rac t .   D id  you then send out  the  RFO?   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  d id .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Was tha t  your  pe rsona l  ac t ion  to  

send i t  ou t?  20 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    No,  I  go t  an  emai l  f rom Mr  R iaan  

Badenhors t  w i th  the  a t tached RFO tha t  I  was supposed to  

send to  the  th ree  supp l ie rs .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And d id  you in  fac t  send i t  to  them? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  d id ,  yes .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Was i t  to  the  four  supp l ie rs  tha t  have  

been ment ioned o r  to  th ree?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    On ly  to  th ree  as  BA Land 

Systems a t  tha t  s tage was sor t  o f  compet i t ion  fo r  par t  two 

and they requested us  no t  to  g ive  them the i r  IP.   So they  

were  removed f rom the  l i s t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  so  i t  was sent  to  LMT,  VR 

Laser  and DCD,  am I  r igh t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then you  re fer  to  the i r  responses 10 

tha t  each o f  those ent i t ies  sent  in  a  response in  response  

to  the  RFO,  i s  tha t  r igh t?     

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you g ive  the  da tes  in  pa rag raph 

32 to  35  and you a t tach  them as annexures and we  

apo log ise  to  you fo r  some o f  the  annexures be ing  m iss ing  

f rom the  f i le  in  f ron t  o f  you due to  the  s l ip  up  in  a  

photocopy ing  process bu t  tha t  w i l l  be  f i xed  but  we thank 

you fo r  p rov id ing  a l l  o f  those documents  so  they  w i l l  be  

prov ided as  you have heard  in  due course  to  the  Cha i r  in  20 

the  way tha t  we have d iscussed i t .     

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now can we dea l  on  page o f  95  w i th  

a  v is i t  by  Pat r ia  to  the  supp l ie rs  jus t  b r ie f l y  what  i s  th is  

re la t ing?   
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MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Okay tha t  as  fa r  as  my knowledge  

on tha t  i s  tha t  Pat r ia  came to  v is i t  –  the  ident i f ied  

supp l ie rs  in  Sou th  A f r i ca  tha t  DLS has i dent i f ied  and to  

g ive  us  there  input  due to  the i r  background and the  fac t  

tha t  they have manufac tu red so  many o f  them a l ready o f  

who w i l l  be  accord ing  to  them wi l l  be  the  best  supp l ie r  and  

w i th  the  best  capab i l i t ies…[ in te rvene]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    To  manufac tu re  the  hu l l .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now on page 96 the  next  head ing  is  10 

updated request  fo r  o f f i ce .   Now you re fe r red  to  an  emai l  

f rom Ms Malah le la  who was the  Head o f  Supp ly  Cha in  a t  

DLS,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D id  you repor t  to  her?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  had a  l ine  manager  be tween me 

and he r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And who was  the  l ine  manager?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    A t  tha t  s tage 2014 I  th ink  i t  was  

e i ther  Mr  Dupree  or  C indy Minnaar  I  am not  sure  wh ich  o f  20 

the  two.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Bu t  there  were  a  l ine  manager  

be tween me and Ce l ia .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then  there  is  re fe rence to  a  
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request  made to  LMT to  update  the i r  p roposa l .   D id  you  

a t tend to  tha t  request  made to  LMT?   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Jus t  exp la in  by  a t tend ing  to  i t?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Wel l  le t  me get  s t ra igh t  to  the  le t te r.   

Cha i r  th is  i s  an  example  o f  where  the  annexure  tha t  Mr  Van 

Den Heever  he lp fu l l y  a t tached to  h is  a f f idav i t  has no t  come 

in  the  photocopy  but  fo r tunate ly  we have another  copy o f  

the  same le t te r  e lsewhere  in  the  same bund le .   So Mr  Van 

Den Heever  i f  I  can  take  you to  page 253 in  a t tached to  Mr  

Drev in ’s  a f f idav i t .   We do not  need  to  look  a t  h is  a f f idav i t ,  10 

i f  I  can  jus t  ask  you to  look  a t  page 253 to  f i ve .   So Cha i r  

aga in  th is  i s  jus t  fo r  the  reco rd  i t  i s  in  Bund le  Dene l  04  on  

page 253.   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Th is  i s  a  le t te r  tha t  bears  your  name 

on page 255 as  the  procurement  o f f i cer  DLS Mechem,  is  

tha t  r igh t?   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t  tha t  i s  ac tua l l y  the  

RFQ but ,  ja .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  tha t  the  RFQ i t se l f?  20 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  am sor ry  I  had the  wrong page  

number  g iven,  so  is  tha t  the  ac tua l  RFQ the  request  fo r  

updated proposa ls .   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  thank you.   I t  appears  my note  

was wrong i t  i s  apparent ly  252 is  the  one tha t  I  shou ld  

have drawn your  a t ten t ion  to .     

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Ja ,  now th is  252 is  the  le t te r  f rom 

Cel ia .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  thank you so  th is  was the  

request  fo r  an  update  o f  LMT’s  proposa l .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now why were  they be ing  requested  

to  update?  10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Because  the  prev ious quo te  tha t  

we rece ived was  I  th ink  in  2012  and then in  2014 the  

request  came th rough to  update  the i r  quota t ions.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    So  a f te r  two years  you wou ld 

expect  a  change  in  p r ice  so  tha t  i s  why we request  the  

update .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then in  the  le t te r  the  t i cks  to  the  

le t te r  you say:  

“Dene l  Land Systems,  DLS,  hereby request  LMT to  20 

submi t  an  urgent  update  o f  you r  p roposa l  number  

rece ived on. ”  

And here  i s  the  answers  to  your  po in t  ear l ie r  about  when i t  

was rece ived 2012 tha t  i s  conf i rmed,  9 t h  o f  February  2012.   

“We do however  requ i re  you to  amend the  quota t ion  
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as  fo l lows when updat ing  armour  hu l l  b reakdown a  

pr ice  fo r  a rmour  hu l l  exc lud ing  m ine pro tec t ion .  B ,  

p r ice  fo r  m ine p ro tec t ion  on ly  and  C,  p r ices  shou ld  

exc lude a l l  j i gs  and f i x tu res  CFI  wh ich  w i l l  be  

cont rac ted  separa te ly. ”  

And then you re fer  to  a  tender  rep resenta t i ve  v is i t ing  

Pat r ia  in  F in land e tce te ra .   So as  I  unders tand i t  when they  

were  updat ing  the i r  p roposa ls  they were  expected to  b reak 

i t  down in to  var ious e lements ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?     

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay thank you.   Now th is  le t te r  was  

sent  to  LMT was  there  s im i la r  le t te rs  sent  request ing  an  

update  to  the  o ther  two tha t  you  had rece ived p roposa ls  

f rom tha t  i s  VR Laser  and DCD?   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and  d id  they in  fac t  respond  

a l l  these th ree  po tent ia l  supp l ie rs?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Yes,  they d id  jus t  one th ing  is  we  

f i rs t  sent  the  updated request  to  LMT and then a  week la te r  

we got  conf i rmat ion  f rom Pat r i a  o f  wh ich  we were  wa i t ing  20 

fo r  to  say tha t  we can cont inue w i th  the  res t  o f  the  

supp l ie rs  in  South  A f r i ca  tha t  we  have ident i f ied  and we 

rece ived those le t te rs ,  tha t  le t te r  on  the  6 t h  o f  I  th ink  i t  was  

June 2014 and then we sent  exact ly  the  same RFQ’s  to  a l l  

th ree  o f  the  supp l ie rs  and in fo rming LMT tha t  there  
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response date  i s  a lso  ex tended to  the  same as the  o ther  

two supp l ie rs .      

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and the  Pat r ia  po in t  i s  

ment ioned in  your  a f f idav i t  paragraph 45 page 96,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Top le f t  paragraph 45.    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  ja .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now why d id  Pat r ia  have to  g ive  you  

the  go  ahead fo r  par t ies  o the r  than  LMT?   10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  was  l i ke  where  we ident i f ied  

the  four  supp l ie rs  and where  they came back and they sa id  

sor ry  i f  OMC is  no t  acceptab le  o r  i f  BA Land Systems is  no t  

an  acceptab le  supp l ie r.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    And we jus t  had to  conf i rm wi th  

them tha t  th is  i s  now the  th ree  supp l ie rs  tha t  we go ing  to  

and  get  conf i rmat ion  f rom them tha t  we can go to  them.   So 

we got  the  l e t te r  back f rom them tha t  sa id  tha t  they happy  

w i th  the  supp l ie rs .   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    The Commiss ion  has a l ready heard  

ev idence tha t  Pat r ia  was the  or ig ina l  manufac ture  o f  th is  

t ype o f  equ ipment .   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    That  had some in te l lec tua l  p roper ty,  
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they  had patent  r i gh ts .   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And is  tha t  why they were  say ing  we  

are  no t  happy i f  you  do bus iness w i th  BAE because then 

they cou ld  ge t  our  in te l lec tua l  p roper ty  and you had to  

check w i th  them tha t  the  res t  o f  the  l i s t  was acceptab le .     

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Have they a l ready approved LMT? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Ja ,  because LMT was  par t  o f  10 

Dene l  they had no prob lem wi th  them.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now i f  we can tu rn  to  the  next  

page 97 paragraph 50 you re fer red  to  the  rev i sed 

proposa ls  o r  the i r  responses tha t  you rece ived is  tha t  in  

response to  the  request  fo r  an  update?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay and tha t  you se t  them out  in  

parag raph 50.1  to  50 .3 .    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You have  re fer red  to  the  re levant  20 

a t tachments .   Then you dea l  w i th  paragraph,  in  pa rag raph 

51 w i th  the  pr i c ing  tha t  you rece ived in  te rms o f  these  

updated responses,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?       

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then jus t  to  ge t  to  the  sor t  o f  
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bo t tom l ine  or  the  po in ts  tha t  you  have h igh l igh ted  in  bo ld  

pr in t  in  LMT 51.1 .3  there  to ta l  p r ice  tha t  LMT quoted was 

R159mi l l ion  p lus  a  few thousand.   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and the  VR Laser  the i r  bo t tom 

l ine  the  to ta l  pr ice  51 .2 .2  was  R262mi l l ion  and some 

thousands.   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So they were  more  than a  

R100mi l l ion  more  expens ive  than LMT,  cor rec t?  10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And DCD you have se t  ou t  a  

schedu le  and the i r  to ta l  p r i ce  fo r  t he  cont rac t  we see  a t  the  

top  o f  page 101 was R301mi l l ion  and some thousands.    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .     

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  i t  ranges f rom the  cheapest  was 

LMT R159mi l l ion ,  VRL R262mi l l ion  and DCD R301mi l l ion .    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  then you re fe r  on  page 101 to  

the  b id  eva lua t ion  commi t tee  wh ich  was a lso  known as the  20 

cross- funct iona l  team and is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  Ms Malah le la  as  

the  Head o f  the  DLS Supp ly  Cha in  Management  

Depar tment  o rgan ised fo r  a  BEC a ,  b id  eva lua t ion  

commi t tee  or  c ross - funct iona l  team to  be  appo in ted?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you were  one o f  those members .   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And those  members  are  se t  ou t  in  

parag raph 55.1  to  55 .10 ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And you are  the  person ment ioned in  

55 .10  and you have a l ready made the  cor rec t ion  o f  55 .5  

and we have dea l t  w i th  Mr  Rakadukwe’s  spe l l ing  i ssue.   

R igh t ,  now you ment ion  i n  your  a f f idav i t  tha t  the  commi t tee  

was Cha i red  by  Ms Malah le la ,  cor rec t?  10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i t s  purpose was to  eva lua te  the  

responses f rom the  th ree  supp l ie rs ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And these responses were  no t  s imp ly  

the  responses you had rece ived  in  2012 they were  as  

updated in  2014.    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  w i th  the  to ta l  cos t  tha t  we 

have seen a l ready f rom 159 to  ove r  R300mi l l ion .    20 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now Mr  Van Den Heever  you  

then dea l  in  paragraph 57 w i th  a  feedback sess ion  on  the  

26 t h  o f  June and you re fer  to  an  a t tendance reg is te r  wh ich  

was s igned fo r  VR Laser ’s  feedback sess ion  bu t  you say in  
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parag raph 58:  

“We neg lec ted  to  have i t  s igned when DCD and LMT 

appeared befo re  the  commi t tee . ”    

I  do  no t  th ink  any th ing  wou ld  tu rn  on  the  reg i s te r  no t  be ing  

s igned.   What  I  am in te res ted  in  Mr  Van Den Heever  i s  th is  

was there  a  s ing le  feedback sess ion  fo r  a l l  th ree  to  a t tend 

or  was there  a  separa te  feedback sess ion  fo r  each o f  them 

separa te ly?   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Ja ,  there  was a  separa te  

feedback on the  same day d i f fe ren t  s lo ts .   10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  i f  I  m igh t  jus t  have a  moment .   

Yes,  can I  take  you to  page 387 Cha i r  aga in  jus t  to  exp la in  

th is  i s  an  annexure  tha t  we f ind  a t tached to  Mr  Drev in ’s  

a f f idav i t  fo r  the  same reason d iscussed ear l ie r.   Page 387,  

do  you have i t?    

CHAIRPERSON:    No tha t  i s  f ine .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Yes,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And th is  i s  the  one fo r  VR Laser  and 

you see the  names and s ignatures  o f  the  var ious peop le  20 

inc lud ing  Ms Malah le la  a t  the  top  there .     

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And is  tha t  your  name i f  you  look a t  

the  handwr i t ten  por t ion  the  6 t h  person to  wr i te  and s ign  

appears  to  be  your  name and is  tha t  you r  s ignature?  
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MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay thank you and then what  

fo l lows is  a  l i s t  o f  a  number  o f  peop le  f rom VR Laser.    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now what  was the  pu rpose o f  

th is  feedback sess ion?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Okay,  the  process l i ke  I  sa id  i t  

was someth ing  near  to  us  on  the  25 t h  when we rece ived the  

quota t ions the  BEC got  togethe r  and they worked  th rough  

a l l  the  quota t ions and as  they work  th rough i t  they  were  10 

look ing  a t  some s tu f f  tha t  needed c la r i t y  they had  

quest ions about  i t  was pa in t ing  inc luded.   So there  was  

var ious quest ions  work ing  th rough  the  quotes  and work ing  

th rough them we  drew up a  l i s t  o f  quest ions tha t  we need 

to  ask  the  supp l ie rs  jus t  to  c la r i f y  on  the i r  quota t ions .    

So the  next  day  on  the  26 t h  they were  inv i ted  to  

come and g ive  c la r i f i ca t ion  on  the i r  quota t ion .   So each 

supp l ie r  came in  a t  a  cer ta in  t ime and we asked them the  

quest ions tha t  came up in  there  quotes  and they gave us  

the  answers  and they were  each then asked to  update  the i r  20 

quotes  w i th  tha t  la tes t  in fo rmat ion ,  w i th  tha t  exp lanat ion  

fo r  tha t ,  ja .     

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .         

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  hope tha t  makes sense?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you  i t  cer ta in ly  does  Mr  Van 



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 94 of 310 
 

Den Heever.   May I  jus t  ask  one fu r the r  quest ion  be fore  we 

take the  ad journment  tha t  you proposed fo r  one,  f i f teen,  

Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.     

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  may I  take  you aga in  as  

an  annexure  to  Mr  Drev in ’s  a f f idav i t  a l though i t  shou ld  

have been a t tached to  yours  as  we l l  because  o f  the  

prob lem in  house  here .   Can I  take  you to  page 389.   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    What  i s  tha t?  10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  was the  l i s t  –  th is  spec i f i c  

l i s t  on  389 was  the  quest ions tha t  was ra ised w i th  VR 

Laser  regard ing  c la r i f i ca t ion  requ i red  on  the i r  quota t ion .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then a t  the  fo l low ing page 390,  

i s  tha t  a  s im i la r  quest ionna i re?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    S im i la r  quest ionna i re  bu t  on  top  

you w i l l  see  tha t  i s  fo r  DCD.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  so  i t  i s  d i f fe ren t  quest ions 

spec i f i c  to  your  quer ies  about  the i r  p roposa l .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    That  is  i t  and i t  ind ica te  what  20 

t ime they were  supposed to  be  in .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  thank you Cha i r  wou ld  th is  be  a  

conven ien t  t ime to  take  the  ad journment?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i t  w i l l  be  I  th ink  I  must  jus t  say  I  

agree w i th  you Mr  Kennedy tha t  Mr  Van Den Heever ’s  
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command o f  Eng l i sh  i s  very  good so…[ in tervene]    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  i s .   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  th ink  i t  i s  good tha t  he  ag reed to 

tes t i f y  in  Eng l ish  there  are  no  g l i t ches and we unders tand 

h im ve ry  we l l .    

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  can I  f i re  her?  

CHAIRPERSON:    We wi l l  no t  compla in .   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  may we as  the  lega l  team jus t  

express our  thanks to  Mr  Van Den Heever  fo r  h is  a t t i tude 

on the  day and every th ing  e lse .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And h i s  a t to rney,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And h is  a t to rneys,  ja  thank you.   Okay 

we w i l l  take  the  lunch ad jou rnment  we w i l l  resume a t  

quar te r  past  two,  we ad journ .      

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chai r.   May we give you an 20 

update on the solut ion to the problem about  missing 

annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The Secretar iat  has very helpfu l ly 

sorted out  the problem.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   By copying the missing annexures and 

slot t ing them into my f i le  that  is the wi tness and we have 

taken the l iberty af ter f i rst  checking wi th – wi th your – wi th  

the Chai r ’s associate.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   To upl i f t  your f i le.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Chai r  and al l  of  those annexures have 

now been slot ted in in thei r  appropriate places.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no that  is f ine.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So i t  is now comprehensive and we 

must thank the Secretar iat  for f ix ing up the problem that  

arose yesterday.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We apologise to you Chai r  for the 

di ff icul t ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is f ine.   That  is  f ine.   Thank 

you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Mr Van Den Heever let  us-  20 

let  us deal  i f  we may with the last  few sect ions of  your – of  

th is part icular contract  that  is  the – that  is the plat form hul ls ’ 

contract  procurement.   You have al ready taken us to the – 

you al ready explained what happened and why at  the 

sessions – the feedback sessions.  And then your aff idavi t  
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refers to a further request  that  was then made by DLS to 

rev ise pr ices – revise thei r  proposals.   You indicate in your 

aff idavi t  based on issues raised dur ing the meet ings.   Now 

can you tel l  us what that  re lates to? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Which page are we on now? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   On page 103 that  is your aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay the changes that  we requested 

was according to  the clar i f icat ion quest ions we had l ike for  

instance LNT did not  include paint  in thei r  pr ice that  they 

quoted so they had to add the paint ing cost  to the quotat ion.   10 

But  there was var ious l ike accord ing to the quest ions that  we 

asked that  we needed clar i ty on they had to amend thei r  

quotat ions that  they sent  to us wi th  the new informat ion and 

then resend i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then on page 104 most  of  that  

page is devoted to the informat ion contained in the revised 

proposals of  27 oh sorry 27 June 2014 can be summarised 

as fol lows.   That  is a reference to their  response to your  

request  for further  revised proposals? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   As I  understand i t  LMT t r ied to  explain 

i ts pr ic ing did they actual ly make any change to the pr ic ing? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Yes thei r  pr ice changed f rom 

736 534 to 763 191.   That  was due to the paint  inc luded.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   And then DCD made no 
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changes.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Ja they just  conf i rmed I  th ink there 

was a bond – the bond – rais ing a bond – performance bond 

– the cost  of  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And VR Laser sent  in a response but  

there they did not  rev ise thei r  pr ic ing ei ther.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Now you then deal  page 105 

with the evaluat ion sheets and the bid scor ing.   May I  just  

check were you part  of  the process – were you involved in  10 

the process of  actual ly scor ing the bids in quest ion? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Yes I  was part  of  the bid BEC they 

did the scor ing but  I  was not  involved in the f inal  

consol idat ion of  everything.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Just  explain to us please why you were 

involved in part  but  not  the f inal  part?  What actual ly 

happened? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   I  cannot give you the reason but  

af ter the BEC got  thei r  – did the evaluat ions and the 

scor ings and stuff  a l l  the documentat ion was col lected and 20 

then taken by Rol land Rakhaduwe and I  do not  know who 

helped him or who was involved in  i t  but  they did the f inal  

reconci l iat ion and consol idat ion and everything and then I  

just  received the f inal  resul ts at  the end.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You what?  Just  repeat  the last  bi t .  
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MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   I  just  received the f inal  resul t  at  the 

end.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  thank you.   Did they change any 

of  the scor ing that  you had agreed to in the b id evaluat ion 

commit tee when they did that  process? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Not  – not  that  I  am aware of  

anything.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Not  to your knowledge r ight .   I f  I  can 

please take you to page 132.39 and just  to explain for the 

record the reason why the point  39 appears is that  th is is a  10 

document that  was missing ear l ier and has now been 

inserted as i t  should.   So in order not  to disturb the overa l l  

paginat ion that  is why i t  has been done Chai r.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   What page again 132? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   132.39.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   I  am there.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now admit tedly we saw the same 

document in a d i fferent  annexure to Mr Drevin’s aff idavi t  

ear l ier when he gave evidence.   But  – and as the Chai r  

pointed out  there are two as here I  am afraid Chair  the – the 20 

photocopying is meant that  is very smal l  let ters pr int ing but  

can you conf i rm is  that  your name and hand – your name and 

your signature wi th the date 27 June 2014? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And what is th is document?  At  least  we 
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can read consol idated evaluat ion sheet .   What does i t  te l l  

us? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   This one is where they – where the 

consol idat ion…his one is where they – where the 

consol idat ion… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Kennedy.   I  am sorry.   Is  th is  

the one that  is supposed to be bet ter? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Supposed to be? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Is th is the one that  is supposed to be 

bet ter?  This is the one which is supposed to be legible? 10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   No,  no.   We are not  suggest ing that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   As I  was saying ear l ier i t  is has got  the 

same problem as the one we looked at  ear l ier for Mr Drevin.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So that  has not  been done yet .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh we have not  got  a larger one or a 

clearer copy? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Not  yet  so far  we have only achieved a 

resolut ion to the one problem is that  i t  is present .   I t  is now 20 

not  absent .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  now we need a bigger copy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh just  that  – then I  am rel ieved because I  

was think ing i f  th is is the bet ter copy then … 
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am sorry – I  am sorry to disappoint  

you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We are in t rouble.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  was the f i rs t  problem not the second 

that  we have thus far been able to remedy with the 

assistance of  the Secretar iat  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  –  but  does this ref lect  the scor ing 

that  was done in the evaluat ion of  the bids? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Then to go back to  your aff idavi t  

because there at  least  the font  is  big and the copying is 

c lear  you deal  wi th the evaluat ion back at  page 105 

paragraph 65 you refer to the – spl i t  the pr ice points for 

technical  and BBBEE the percentage for each of  those and 

then you refer to how there was discussion wi thin your 

commit tee about how the weight ing would be – would be 

deal t  wi th.   Is that  r ight? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And there was agreement  by the 20 

commit tee as to how the scor ing would be done.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Then you deal  at  page 106 with the 

topic we need to spend a few minutes on and that  is the 

BBBEE requirement.   Now at  page 106 you ment ion that  
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there was a problem in relat ion – that  you had – that  – that  

was due to an error on your part .   You did not  include a 

requi rement in the or ig inal  invi tat ion.   Tel l  the Chai r  p lease 

what – what did you erroneously omit? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Okay when I  sent  out  the RFQ I  did 

not  request  each suppl ier to submit  a BBBEE cert i f icate or  a 

val id BBBEE cert i f icate but  that  was requested dur ing our 

clar i f icat ion session that  we had with each suppl ier and we 

asked them to submit  the cert i f icates for us.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now you refer  there to the – this is 10 

apparent  in the RFQ invi tat ion – you refer to the annexure 

number HVD28 and now fortunately i t  has been now located 

and put  in the bundle.   I f  I  can turn – ask you to turn please 

to page 132.102.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Okay I  am there.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   In fact  the doc – the f i rst  documents at  

the previous page 132.101 that  is  the update request  and 

then 132.102 is that  the or ig inal  request  for offer  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now is th is the document where you – 20 

where you should have put  in a request  for a  BBBEE 

cert i f icate? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you say that  that  was omit ted – 

why was that?  How did that  come about? 



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 103 of 310 
 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   I  just  – wel l  dur ing that  stage i t  was 

almost  standard for a suppl ier to submit  a BBBEE cert i f icate 

and a tax cert i f icate wi th the ir  quotat ions that  they submit  to 

us.   And I  just  forgot  to request  that  or put  i t  in the request .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   But  the – but  the cert i f icate was 

important  was i t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Wel l  that  was a standard I  could not  

place any orders wi thout  BBBEE cert i f icate and a tax 

cert i f icate – tax clearance cert i f icate.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R ight .   Now then to go back – you – did 10 

you then request  suppl iers to  submit  thei r  BBBEE 

cert i f icates? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is i t  dur ing that  c lar i f icat ion 

meet ing we had with each suppl ier on the 26t h June.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The feedback – sorry the clar i f icat ion 

meet ings that  you held separately wi th the three on that  

day? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  each suppl ier was 

asked to submit  the BBBEE cert .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   Did they then supply them? 20 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Yes I  th ink they were given fourteen 

days to submit  i f  I  could remember correct ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   I f  we can – i f  I  can take you 

please to  – sorry Chai r  i f  I  can just  have a moment you 

would indulge me?  Right  now you refer in your aff idavi t  to 
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expiry of  LMT cert i f icate.   Just  explain what  in  fact  was – 

was there a problem and why? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   We were in June 2014 at  that  stage 

and thei r  expi ry date on their  cert i f icate was 20 May 2014 

which was just  over a month expired.    

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  I  can take you please to page 

132.113.    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   I  am there.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And what is that… 

CHAIRPERSON:   132? 10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   132.113.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is a let ter received f rom 

Empower Logic stat ing that  LMT is in the process to do thei r  

BE ver i f icat ion and that  i t  wi l l  be done within four  to s ix  

weeks.   I t  wi l l  take t i l l  s ix weeks to complete.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So this let ter refers to Empower Logic 

having been engaged by LMT to perform thei r  BBBEE 

ver i f icat ion and they indicated that  process was st i l l  

underway but  the ver i f icat ion would take another four to s ix 20 

weeks.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Did – did you in the BEC or d id  

anybody else g ive a score to LMT in  relat ion to BBBEE? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   No that  was not  part  of  the scor ing 
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process done by them – by the group.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  informat ion was done on the 

next  level  where Mr Rakhaduwe col lected al l  the 

documentat ion and did the f ina l isat ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   Thank you.   Let  us move i f  we 

may for a moment  to – yes page – page 109 of  your aff idavi t .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   I  am there.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You refer to a consol idated evaluat ion 

sheet  and that  you refer to as being Annexure HVD031.  Just  10 

turn for a moment  to page 134.    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is that  the evaluat ion sheet  that  you 

referr ing to? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Here I  must  point  out  to the Chair  

a l though i t  wi l l  be perfect ly obvious to him but  I  am afraid  

the pr int  is even smal ler here and that  wi l l  be remedied to.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am st i l l  t ry ing to  get  there.   Did you say 

134? 20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   134 Chair  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Let  me just  get  there.   You know 

when you see 132 you can think you are close to 134.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  is r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because of… 
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Logic is changing Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You f ind yoursel f  t ravel l ing a long d istance 

before you get  to 134.   Yes I  have got  134.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Can I  just  say that  I  receive – at  

that  stage I  received a whole f i le wi th al l  the evaluat ions and 

f inal  scor ings and consol idat ions in  one f i le given to  me in 

my off ice tel l ing me there is the resul ts or the VR Laser is 

the winning bidder and we are going to place the order on 

VR Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  And the way in which i t  was done 10 

when you were just  presented wi th that  as a – as a resul t  d id 

you f ind that  normal?  Did you f ind that  acceptable in terms 

of  process or did you f ind i t  unusual  and disturb ing? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Wel l  as ment ioned in my aff idavi t  is  

that  we have never done this BBE or th is scor ing and I  was 

not  sure how i t  worked and what the – where the 

percentages and stuff  came from so I  had no background on 

i t ,  no t raining.   The whole team had no t raining i t  was a f i rst  

for al l  so I  could not  f ind any faul t  in  what was happening.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  thank you.   Now al though at  that  20 

page we have just  looked at  the pr int  is very smal l  you have 

helpful ly  in clear pr int  on your – in your aff idavi t  on page 109 

set  out  the important  features.   And here you refer to VR 

Laser receiving the highest  score – received a total  of  

65.54% and then  you give the breakdown.  10.39% for pr ice,  
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50.15 for funct ional i ty or technical  and 5% for BBBEE.  And 

you have referred here to the pr ice of  VR Laser  in  81.1 of  

being R262 406 000.00 etcetera.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And which was – which is of  the same 

order as the previous – previously submit ted quote,  correct? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Then you refer to LMT coming second i t  

received an overal l  score of  64.78%.  That  is very sl ight ly  

less – in fact  less than 1% i t  is  0.76% less than the VR Laser  10 

score in percentage terms, is that  correct? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And thei r  f inancial  offer  was 

R165 612 000.00 odd.   So st i l l  there was a di fference of  not  

qui te but  almost  R100mil l ion between LMT and VR Laser.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then DCD came thi rd thei r  pr ice 

was st i l l  over R300 mi l l ion.   Correct? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now then you refer to your preparing a 20 

submission to EXCO to be reviewed and signed off  by Ms 

Malahlela.   Now i f  I  can ask you please in the bundle to go 

to the document page 136.    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   I  am there.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  appears to be an emai l  f rom you 
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to Ms Malahlela saying hope I  have captured most  of  the 

points required th is morning and was i t  – was there at tached 

to that  emai l  the document that  then fol lows at  137.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And fol lowing.   And what is  th is  

document? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is the execut ive – Chief  

Execut ive Supply Chain submission request ing the approval  

of  the order.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   And so we see at  page 141 10 

paragraph 7 a recommendat ion.   Correct? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Now this  is what you have said – you  

prepared this document is that  r ight? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   As you can see f rom my mai l  that  I  

have sent  to Cel ia where I  said I  hope I  have captured most  

of  the points requi red this morning.   She basical ly  to ld me 

what to put  in the document.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Now what the document says in 

7 is the fol lowing:  20 

“The fol lowing is  hereby recommended 711 

that  a cont ract  can be negot iated and an 

order placed on VR Laser  Services for  Phase 

2 presumably of  the Hoefyster cont ract  wi th a 

tota l  value of  R262 mi l l ion and some 



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 109 of 310 
 

thousands of  rands. ”  

7.1 sorry that  is the pr ice that  had been tendered in terms of  

the further  revised proposal  received f rom VR Laser.   

Correct? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R ight .   But  then the document  

cont inues 712 th is  is a cei l ing amount as further negot iat ions 

wi th VR Laser Serv ices wi l l  take place to obtain a pr ice 

below DLS budget.   Now you referred us ear l ier  in  your  

evidence to DLS having a budget  – what was that  budget 10 

amount? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   I f  I  remember correct ly  i t  was I  

th ink R206 mi l l ion or R209 mi l l ion I  am not  sure.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And what was here being recommended 

was a cont ract  to be placed on VR Laser for a va lue of  R262 

mi l l ion which clear ly is considerably above the maximum – 

the budget maximum amount that  is  avai lable.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   I f  I  cannot remember correct ly but  

th is was – I  was told by Cel ia  to put  th is in wi th the 

negot iat ions – put t ing in the ce i l ing amount for  further 20 

negot iat ions I  th ink she sa id there was some sort  o f  a – a 

mandate that  we had for R1mil l ion and 50 or R1 mi l l ion or R1 

mi l l ion and 50 per vehicle that  we need to negot iate so that  

is – I  th ink that  is why this was put  in.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   So – but  – so this point  about  i t  is  
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going to be for R262 mi l l ion but  i f  that  is the cei l ing amount 

i t  would be subject  to negot iat ion to  t ry and br ing that  down.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   To br ing i t  wi thin the budget maximum. 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And… 

CHAIRPERSON:   What – what – sorry – what did i t  mean to 

say i t  was going to be a cei l ing amount?  I t  d id  not  mean that  

there wi l l  be – there would be negot iat ions to t ry  and br ing i t  

– VR Laser down on the pr ice but  i f  there was no agree – i f  10 

they did not  agree then that  would stay as the pr ice.   The 

cei l ing amount would remain as the pr ice? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Wel l  that  is basical ly what i t  is  

saying.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Ja that  is the cei l ing amount that  

wi l l  not  go above that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   I t  could stay the same.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   But  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  – but   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   But  i ts  idea was to negot iate i t  

down ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  what does this reference to a cei l ing 
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amount add to the meaning of  th is  th ing because i f  there is 

an agreement that  your pr ice is R262 mi l l ion obviously that  

cannot be increased without  agreement?  So what  is th is 

whole thing about  i t  is – saying i t  is a cei l ing amount?  Is i t  

just  to mislead people to th ink there is some value i t  wi l l  not  

increase?  So they must  f ind comfort  in that .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Ja i t  basical ly comes down to you 

can approve this  i t  wi l l  not  go higher than that  but  i t  can 

lower.   So that  is what i t  is basical ly saying ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay alr ight .  But  what i t  represented is 10 

they accepted this pr ice but  just  sa id we wi l l  t ry and 

negot iate them down. But  obviously i f  they do not  agree to 

go down this wi l l  remain as the pr ice.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Ja at  th is stage i t  was on 

management level  for their  decision.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Of  what could happen and what the 

plans wi l l  be.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you Chair  and just  ar is ing f rom 20 

those quest ions Mr Van Den Heever.   I f  VR Laser  was 

approached to negot iate a reduct ion below the R262 mi l l ion 

and they would not  agree to any reduct ion i t  would stay at  

262 you have said that  to the Chai r  but  then that  would st i l l  

be above the budget – what would the resul t  of  that  be?  
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That  they would get  the contract  for 262 even though you 

were way exceeding your  budget or that  the cont ract  would 

not  be awarded to them?  What was your understanding? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Wel l  i f  you look at  the document i f  

they approve that  amount of  262 you have got  the mandate 

to go and place the order for that  but  you st i l l  need to prove 

that  you t r ied to negot iate the pr ice down. 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  and then i f  I  can take you at  page 

137 the f i rst  page of  th is document.   I t  is addressed to 

EXCO.  Would that  be EXCO of  – of  DLS.  10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   DLS yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Not  head off ice? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Not  the Group EXCO? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   R ight .   This does not  indicate unless I  

have missed i t .   Anything is to who should approve i t  outside 

DLS.  I f  I  can take you to page 142 there is provision for 

var ious signatures.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Ja you see the process that  we 20 

normal ly fo l low there is a DLS Supply Chain Commit tee that  

we take this to them.  They sort  of  approve or recommend i t  

and then i t  goes to EXCO.  Then once EXCO sees i t  and 

recommends i t  then to DCO.  That  is the process that  we 

fol low.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   So this was – this was simply 

for the f i rst  – i t  was for the approval  wi thin …. 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   DLS.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   DLS and i f  approve – was approval  

requi red outside DLS?  In other words at  head off ice level .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   As far as you are aware.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay and that  would then be deal t  wi th  

in a separate document presumably? 10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is i t  ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   You were not  involved in the 

preparat ion of  any document for them? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   No.   I t  gets done on EXCO level .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   Now Mr Van Den Heever you 

refer in your aff idavi t  to discipl inary proceedings happening 

against  you.   I f  I  can take you back to 110.    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  as I  understand your aff idavi t  that  

does not  relate to the procurement process of  scor ing and 20 

awarding the cont ract  to VR Laser or does i t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   No but  i t  was dur ing that  process 

that  a communicat ion wi th the suppl iers that  I  made LMT 

aware of  that  there was other suppl iers also in the running 

for the cont ract .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   And were you discipl ined for  alert ing 

VR Laser – sorry alert ing LMT to the fact  that  VR Laser  was 

also b idding for th is contract? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i t  appears that  you were 

suspended, is that  r ight? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And subjected to a disc ip l inary hearing 

that  lasted f ive weeks.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   That  is correct .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And you do not  say whether you were 

found gui l ty or not  gui l ty but  a sanct ion was imposed so I  

assume that  you were found gui l ty? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Ja and a f inal  wri t ten warning was 

given.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   A lr ight .   Now f inal ly in your 

aff idavi t  I  would l ike to take you to page 111.   Purchase 

orders issued to VR Laser and here we come to paragraph 

93.   Now here you – we as ment ioned ear l ier but  we did not  

go into – into a ful l  detai l  of  i t .   I  ment ioned earl ier to the 20 

Chair  that  you have at  the request  of  the team updated 

certain f igures and you have prepared a supplementary 

statement that  is the one that  I  ment ioned earl ier Chai r  that 

is wi th  -  wel l ,  that  you have indicated ear l ier to be f i led as 

Exhibi t  14.   Sorry.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    W. 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    W14.1.  

CHAIRPERSON :    14.3.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Point  3.   I  beg your pardon.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Chai r,  again,  we have had some 

logist ical  const raints but  wi th your leave,  may I  hand up the 

signed supplementary statement as indicated to you ear l ier 

Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    This has not  been yet  at tested but  that  

wi l l  be at tended to.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.   That  is f ine.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    May I ,  wi th your leave,  then hand up to  

you Chai r,  subject  to the arrangements that  wi l l  be put  in  

your f i le in due course,  properly marked and then replaced 

by the aff idavi t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  that  is f ine.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am af raid we have not  had enough 

copies for everybody to be made.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  th ink perhaps. . .   Unfortunately,  the 

wi tness does not  have the supplementary statement in f ront  

of  h im.  Perhaps my copy should just  be made avai lable wi th  

your leave.    
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 And I  would just  put  a  few quest ions to 

Mr Van den Heever as to what the effect  of  the amendment 

is.   May I  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i t  looks l ike that  maybe today is one 

of  those days when there is always going to be something 

that  is goes on somewhere.   Wel l ,  i t  is s igned by him but  not  

by the commissioner or oaths.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is  r ight .   There is  just  a 

logist ical . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . .yesterday.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   [ laughing]   No,  that  is f ine.   I  am 

sure i t  wi l l  be f ixed.   I  was just  saying,  you know, somet imes 

just  everything goes wrong.   [ laughing]    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am afraid this part icular body of  the 

evidence has had al l  these hiccups.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  hopeful ly been able to get  to the 

end of  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  that  is  f ine.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    With that  sorted.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So we apologise for  al l  these issues 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Are you going to  be asking 
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quest ions on that  one now? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Just  i f  I  may then ask the wi tness to  

explain why i t  was done and what was done.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And what the outcome of  i t  is.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Mr Van den Heever,  would you help us 

wi th that?  You have indicated ear l ier to the Chai r  that  you 

were requested by my col league, Ms Sib iya,  to update the 

f igures.   Is that  correct? 10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And those are the f igures that  appear 

in your paragraph 93.   Now what are the f igures show?  This 

is a spreadsheet  but  you have now given the updated 

spreadsheet,  correct? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And what does i t  show?  Does th is 

ref lect  payment or  value of  purchase orders? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Ja,  i t  is the value of  orders p laced 

by me on VL Laser for a per iod f rom August  2008 to the 20 

requested date of  30 or 31 March 2014 with the reasoning 

that  that  was when VR Laser ownership changed to the 

ownership.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A l r ight .   Thank you.   Then to return to  

your aff idavi t  that  we have been looking at  111,  page 111,  
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paragraph 94.   I t  says you conf i rm f rom the per iod 

12 August  2009 unt i l  the signature of  the memorandum of  

agreement wi th VR Laser Services in 2015.   I  issued 

purchase orders to the value of  R 232 959 000,00,  e t  cetera 

on VR Laser.    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A lr ight .   Now does that  relate to orders 

placed under the hul l  cont ract? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is hul l  cont ract ,  everything or 

armour plate work that  VL is required.   I t  was plate based on 10 

VR Laser by me.  I t  comes to that  vers ion for that  per iod.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    I  am not  sure.   I  th ink. . .   Ja,  the 

whole pr ice could be inc luded in. . .   No,  the whole pr ice was 

not  included in th is one.   I  cannot remember but  we wi l l  have 

to have a look on the spreadsheet.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   And then at  page 112,  you refer 

to the facts that  is common cause that  al l  the other  

wi tnesses have conf i rmed that  there has been a 

memorandum of  agreement signed between VR Laser and 20 

DLS on the 16t h of  Apri l .    

 That  is where VR Laser  was appointed as DLS’s single 

source suppl ier o f  a l l  fabr icated steel  services and goods.   

And were you involved in the procurement for that  contract? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Which are you referr ing to here? 
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    S ingle source suppl ier.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    No,  I  was not  involved in that  at  

a l l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A l r ight .   So your aff idavi t  does not  deal  

wi th that  process but  your aff idavi t  does deal  wi th the rest  of  

th is page 112 for  certain  f igures that  relates to payments.   

Oh, sorry not  payments but  the total  value of  orders in  R 97,  

R 102,  R 112.8 mi l l ion.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now that  relates to the single source 10 

supply cont ract .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay thank you.   And then you refer to  

the outstanding order l ines,  at  the t ime was c losed.   There 

was a di rect ive that  al l  outstanding order l ines be closed.   

Why was that  necessary?  Do you know? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    The di rect ive that  was issued by 

Denel  SOC stated that  a l l  business relat ionship wi th VR 

Laser must  be separate(?) on 1 June 2018.  And that  was 

due. . .   Wel l ,  when the State Capture or invest igat ion.   Al l  20 

work wi th VR Laser was ended.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  see.   What was the R 56.1 mi l l ion 

represent?  Is that  orders that  have been placed that  were 

then put  on hold? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Ja,  what I  am saying.   The 
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R 56 mi l l ion. . .   Okay,  the per iods run f rom R 112 mi l l ion was 

the amount that  was placed based on the MOA. 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    And af ter  that  di rect ive,  open l ines 

was closed which tel l ing us that  R 56 mi l l ion,  of  that  

R 112 mi l l ion was al ready del ivered and completed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And then you expla in that  in the 

next  paragraph.   Right .   Thank you.   Alr ight .   Thank you.   

May I  just  have a moment to confer wi th my team Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Sorry,  Chai r.   May I  just . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    May I  just  ask that  the f i le  be returned 

to us for just  a moment? 

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   May I  return the f i le,  

p lease Chai r?  Sorry about the interrupt ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is my team just  giv ing me 

valuable input .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now the amount we are referr ing here 

Chair  and Mr Van den Heever to your supplementary 

statement.   You g ive at  the foot  of  that  page that  has been 

presented to  you a f igure of  R 3.5 mi l l ion approximately.   
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Correct? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    [No audib le reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is the va lue . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    What page is that  on the supplementary? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am afraid I  do not  have a f i le  in f ront  

of  me but  I  th ink . . . [ intervenes]   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Page 2.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . . i t  is on the supplementary.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What page?  Page 2? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Page 2 of  the supplementary.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    A lr ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Thank you,  Chai r.   Sorry.   At  the 

foot  of  the second page of  that  aff idavi t  you g ive a f igure of  

R 3.5 mi l l ion.   Is that  correct? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And was that  the value of  the orders 

placed on VR Laser  pr ior to the change of  ownership in VR 

Laser? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct .   By mysel f ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sorry? 20 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    By mysel f ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  you have put . . .  that  you had 

placed? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Yes,  correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Were there other col leagues 
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wi th in the organisat ion who were also plac ing orders? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Or were you the only one who placed 

orders? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    There were other col leagues as 

wel l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  see.   But  f rom your knowledge, f rom 

your own involvement i t  was R 3.5 mi l l ion before the change 

of  ownership in VR Laser that  provokes so much media 

interest  and subsequent invest igat ion by the Publ ic Protector  10 

and this Commission? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   And then,  i f  we can 

compare that  wi th  the value that  appears in the aff idavi t  that  

you have presented of  the R 345 mi l l ion.   Was that  before or  

af ter or at  the same as the change of  ownership? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    [No audib le reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I f  you look at  page 111,  your aff idavi t ,  

paragraph 93.   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    No,  that  was for the whole per iod.   20 

That  includes the hul ls,  everything,  up to 2018.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And then,  i f  we look at  

paragraph 94.   There you refer to a per iod between 2009 and 

2015.  The purchase orders then amounted to the value of  

R 232 mi l l ion.  



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 123 of 310 
 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Ja,  that  is correct .   That  was 

before the MOA per iod.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   Perhaps i f . . .   I  am sorry for the 

interrupt ion.   Perhaps i f  I  can ask the quest ion,  real ly,  in th is 

way?  Before the ownership in VR Laser,  what sort  of  amount  

was placed by way of  the value of  purchase orders compared 

wi th what happened af ter the change of  ownership in VR 

Laser? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Wel l ,  there is a magni f icent  

di fferent  but  we did not  have i t ,  the contract  at  that  stage 10 

and i t  wi l l  explain the change in f igures.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    So i t  was a big di fference once there 

was a change in ownership? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   Thank you.   Right .   

Mr Van den Heever,  I  am done with th is aff idavi t .   We are 

going to deal  wi th  the other aff idavi t .   I t  should not  take that  

long.   But  before we leave this.    

 Is there anything else you want to ra ise that  you fee l  is  

s igni f icant  to be brought to the at tent ion of  the Chair  in  20 

re lat ion to the Plat form Hul ls issue? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Noth ing that  I  can think of  now.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Thank you.   Thank you.   With 

your leave Chai r,  may we then turn to the other aff idavi t  that  

has al ready been submit ted.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  that  is Exhibi t  W14.1 start ing at  page 

5.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   I f  you have that  in  f ront  of  

you Mr Van den Heever? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Thank you.   Some of  the in i t ia l  

pages are pret ty much stuff  we have already deal t  wi th.   So 

we do not  need to go into that .   This aff idavi t ,  as I  10 

understand i t ,  deals speci f ical ly wi th an ear l ier contract  

which is referred to as the Trunnion Cont ract  awarded to 

LMT.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And you deal  wi th that  f rom page 12.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Where? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The heading is  the Trunnion Contract  

and the R 12.7 mi l l ion prepayment.   Now you have set  out  on 

pages 12 and 13 the procedure that  was fol lowed.  Various 

ent i t ies were asked for quotat ions.   Is that  r ight? 20 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    LMT was one.   ELCA and IAD for the 

others referred to in paragraph 15.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you refer to a proposal  or a 
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quotat ion received f rom of  these ent i t ies such as LMT.  

Paragraph 17.   That  f rom IT,  D and 18.   And then you deal  

wi th your interact ions wi th col leagues,  Mr Teubes,  Mr Burger 

and Mr Knoetze and others.    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now i f  we can just  to what appears to  

be the main focus of  the aff idavi t  f rom here on page 14.   You 

refer to,  in paragraph 24 that :  

“ I t  became obvious that  DLS was in negot iat ions 

wi th LMT on providing f inancial  assistance to LMT.”  10 

 And you refer to your picking that  up in relat ion. . .  in a 

t r ia l  of  emai ls,  there were discussions relat ing to f inancial  

chal lenges that  LMT was t ry ing to address.   And DLS was to 

provide some f inancial  assistance.   What did you understand 

was actual ly going on and why?   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Wel l ,  my understanding was that  

LMT had a cash f low problem and that  they needed the 

assistance of  DLS. 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  that  s tage,  was LMT owned by 

part ies other than Denel? 20 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    I  th ink so,  ja.   They were not  part  

of  us yet .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   But  they later. . .   There was 

later sel l ing of  51% shareholding in  LMT to Denel? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Ja,  my understand was that  due to  
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th is cont ract ,  which was not  paid or something,  resul ted in  

becoming or get t ing the ownership in LMT.  That  is my 

understanding of  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay thank you.   Page 17 refers to a 

suspensive condi t ion in relat ion to  th is contract .   What did  

this relate to? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    I t  is basical ly that  i f  you do not  get  

Phase 2 of  the Hoefyster Contract  f rom Armscor. . .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Are you meaning that  i f  you did not  

complete Phase 1,  you would not  get  Phase 2? 10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct .   Ja,  and then you 

deal  wi th the suspension condi t ions because the suspension 

condi t ion refers to  that .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And did they in fact  complete 

Phase 1,  LMT? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    No,  DLS did not  even,  at  th is 

stage,  has not  completed Phase 1.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And then you deal  wi th the 

terminat ion of  the contract ,  paragraph 41 and fol lowing.   Was 

that  the cont ract  wi th LMT st i l l ,  the same contract? 20 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And did you give the not ice of  

terminat ion that  is  referred to in paragraph 43? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    H’m.   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Who is. . .  you say there,  you received 
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the not ice of  terminat ion.   I t  was signed by Dr Nel  and 

Mr Burger.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Ja,  I  th ink i t  was a 

Mr De Bardien(?)  that  requested that  documentat ion.   I t  is 

somewhere in my statement.   Let  me just  see.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Page 18,  paragraph 42.   Perhaps that  

helps you.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   Do you know why i t  was 

cancel led? 10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    I  am not  sure.   I  th ink i t  was due to 

the fact  that . . .  the money was paid or whatever.   I  do not  

know.  But  there was no need for the cont ract  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Can I  take you . . . [ intervenes]   

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    . . .any longer,  I  th ink.   I  am not  

sure.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sorry to have interrupted you.   I f  I  

may take you to pages 45 and 46? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    [No audib le reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Th is is an emai l  f rom Mr Dabiedeen(?) 20 

(De Bardien(?)),  Veron(?) Dabiedeen of  DLS Financia l  

operat ions.   Is that  r ight? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And he at taches a signed cancel lat ion 

let ter.   And is  th is  the let ter  of  cancel lat ion that  is referred to 
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in your aff idavi t  on the fol lowing page 46? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I f  I  can just  read i t  into the record?  

Second and thi rd paragraphs.    

“ I t  is recorded that  the said cont ract  number has not  

yet  come into effect  as a suspensive condi t ion as 

set  out  in Clause 6.3.1.2.    

The cont ract  has to date not  been ful f i l led.   I t  is  

further recorded that  Denel  (Pty) Ltd has recent ly  

acquired a major i ty shareholding of  LMT Holdings 10 

that  in l ight  of  the above,  the part ies have elected to  

evoke Clause 7.6.1 of  the contract ,  hereby effect ing 

a consensual  cancel lat ion of  the contract .   

Cancel lat ion notes wi l l  come into effect  upon 

signature of  the dul ly author ised representat ives of  

both part ies. ”  

 And then we see there are signatures below that  on the 

21s t  of  September 2012 by Mr Burger for Denel  Land 

Systems and Dr Nel  the then CEO for LMT Holdings.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    [No audib le reply]   20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   Now you then deal  wi th another 

issue in your aff idavi t  which I  am going to t ry and deal  wi th 

very br ief ly Mr Van den Heever and that  is LMT purchase 

order.   Can I  take you back to page 18 of  your aff idavi t?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    H’m.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    You refer to a Malaysia t ransact ion.    

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now you were asked to evaluate the 

feasib i l i ty of  facing the manufactur ing of  the Malaysia LCT 

30 turrets on LMT.  Was the cl ient  there Malaysia?  Were 

these turrets to be suppl ied to Malaysia? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Not  Armscor?  This is di fferent  f rom 

the Hoefyster contract? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And had Denel  got  that  

business to supply armoured vehicles to Malaysia? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Ja,  i t  was just  turrets.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Just  turrets? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Which they del ivered to Malaysia 

that  was f i t ted on an Indian fabr icated vehicle.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And so this was business that  

could be given to  LMT, is what your aff idavi t  refers to.   And 

then i f  I  can take you to page 19,  paragraph 47.   Mr Teubes 

indicated that  DLS had to contract  wi th LMT in th is regard.  20 

“ I t  was in the process of  being acquired by DLS 

where DLS became a major shareholder  but  i t s  

business st rategy had to change. ”  

 Were you informed of  th is by Mr Teubes? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    And was this the reason why you 

understood the Malaysia turrets business must  be based on 

LMT? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Wel l ,  i t  makes sense to me,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  what you were instructed to do? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you refer in paragraph 50 to 

an inst ruct ion f rom Mr Van der Linde to create urgent ly 

requisi t ions for the purchase order to be placed on LMT.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   And that  was to the value of  

R 10 mi l l ion and you have at tached to your aff idavi t  the 

re levant  documents.   We do not  need to go through that  I  

bel ieve Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Now what interest  me 

Mr Van den Heever is,  at  the top of  your next  page 20,  you 

say:  

“Consider ing the deviat ion f rom normal procedure as 

stated above,  the urgency at tached, I  was reluctant  20 

to execute the instruct ions of  management.”  

 In what way did you bel ieve that  th is was a deviat ion 

f rom normal procedure to place urgent ly  the purchase order 

on LMT? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Okay f i rs t ly,  the procedure is  to  go 
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out  on quotat ion and. . .   In other words,  compi le an RFT(?).   

Send i t  out  to the suppl ier,  get  your quotat ions or  to the 

three suppl iers which is part  of  your  purchasing f i le  that  you 

need to have.   And th is was not  fo l lowed.   

 I  was just  given a quotat ion that  came from LMT and 

requested to place the order to that  value of  which Mr Van 

der Linde. . .  the requisi t ions that  are used,  to place the order.    

 And then the approval  of  the order to that  value of  

R 10 mi l l ion normal ly takes two to three weeks for approval .   

And this only took about two days for al l  the signatures.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In relat ion to the ord inary procedure 

which would have required going out  for quotat ion.   That  

would have been the RFQ process of  invi t ing three suppl iers 

that  you knew were sui table to invi te them.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is the answer. . .  is a possible answer to 

that  concern about the fact  that  the process d id not  fo l low 

the RFQ process,  is a possible answer that :   Wel l ,  Denel  was 

in the process of  acquir ing LMT.  This was to improve the 

business st rategy of  Denel .    20 

 And i t  would then make sense to Denel  for  i ts own 

purposes to t ry and give business LMT ent i ty that  i t  was 

about to acqui re a major i ty shareholding in.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Wel l ,  according to me,  you st i l l  

need to fol low procedure.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   So procedure st i l l  requi red that  

there would be a measure of  compet i t ive process? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Not  just  wi th a company that  of  course 

are being acqui red but  also to get  benef i t  to Denel .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you deal  on page 21 wi th tax 

invoices an advanced payment.   Please explain to the Chai r  

what the signi f icance is of  the advance payment that  was 

made in th is regard?  Who made what payment to whom and 10 

why? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Wel l ,  the order was loaded by me 

and sent  to LMT for s ignature.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    And i t  was returned on the same 

day and invoiced the next  day for  payment  of  R 5.7 mi l l ion 

and payment went  through.  So I  do not  know.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Was this  according to standard 

procedure? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    No,  not  according to me.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And was there a good business reason 

that  you were aware of  for such a prepayment to be made? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Only what was told to  me by 

Mr Teubes that  the money wi l l  be paid back once LMT get  

their  money f rom somewhere in the Middle East .    
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 I  am not  sure what country i t  was but  they were 

expect ing an amount f rom UAE or  somewhere and then they 

wi l l  refund this money.   And i f  they do not  refund i t ,  then we 

wi l l  have the 51% ownership.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now you deal  f rom pages 22 to 

23 to steps af ter the invoice was received f rom LMT and then 

you had deal ing wi th a Ms Liz Laveshnee Chetty f rom your  

Finance Department.   Correct? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Who was want ing a copy of  the 10 

agreement.   You told her there had been no agreement 

except  for the purchase order.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Were some purchase orders issued in 

terms of  standard procedure wi thout  needing an agreement 

or  was there a contract  actual ly required in each case for  

th is type of  t ransact ion? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Somet imes.   Depending on the 

value.   But  on this  R 10 mi l l ion there should at  least  be some 

sort  of  agreement  but  there was no agreement.    20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Except  for the order that  was 

placed on LMT.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then you refer to a number of  

communicat ions,  I  th ink al l  by emai l  wi th Mr Jur ie Human,  
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Mr Du Preez,  Mr Wynand Meir ing.   And they referred to a 

need to close the order and make the. . .  and in paragraph 66,  

Mr Du Preez responded that  you could close the order and 

make the quant i ty and pr ice zero.   What is that  about  

Mr Van den Heever? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER :    Okay.   When the order was loaded, 

the requisi t ions that  was generated by Mr Van der  Linde 

were used to create the l ines in the purchase order.  

 And that  comes f rom a note where the project  stores 

their  money.   And al l  the payments that  was done on this,  10 

never went through on that  requisi t ions.    

 I t  went  through on advance payments and on d i fferent  

accounts.   So those requisi t ions are basical ly unused and i t  

was just  connected to the order.    

 And then the pro ject  manager needed that  money 

because he,  wel l ,  I  assumed he paid some of  the money f rom 

these advanced payment accounts.  

 I t  was taken out  o f  h is notes.   So he wanted us to  close 

the orders that  those requisi t ions. . .  the money that  was. . .  

that  R 10 mi l l ion that  was al located to that  order become 20 

avai lab le for his pro ject  again.   I f  that  makes sense? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Are you saying that  there was an 

i rregular i ty here? 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Normal ly  you shou ld  have  –  ge t  a  

de l i very  aga ins t  an  orde r,  a  de l i very  no te  s ta t ing  th is  i s  



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 135 of 310 
 

what  we de l i ver  wh ich  then goes  th rough the  s to res  fo r  

rece ip t  and invo ice  to  f inances to  pay aga ins t  the  

requ is i t ion  tha t  i s  l inked to  the  orde r.   Th is ,  we jus t  

rece ived invo ices  and i t  was pa id  ou t  o f  advanced payment  

account .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now in  paragraph 70,  page 23,  you  

re fe r,  a f te r  g iv ing  the  background fac ts ,  to  ge t t ing  

in fo rmat ion  f rom f inance depar tment  showing tha t  ou t  o f  

the  R9.698 mi l l ion  –  was tha t  the  va lue  o f  the  order  i t se l f?  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    I  th ink  tha t  was what  was pa id  10 

out  on  tha t  o rde r  o f  R10 mi l l ion ,  R9 698 370 was pa id  to  

LMT.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    And …[ in tervenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then you make a  po in t  about  o f  tha t  

9 .225 mi l l ion ,  a  the  shor t fa l l  o f  472 000 appeared.   What  i s  

the  po in t  tha t  you are  t ry ing  to  make there?  There  is  a  

d i f fe rence and you sa id  f inance depar tment  cou ld  no t  g ive  

you a  d i f fe rence.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:   Ja ,  i f  you  go back I  th ink  to  po in t  20 

69 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    F inance ver i f ied  tha t  they  -  LMT 

pa id  the  fu l l  amount  back to  LMT on the  order  and  when I  

go t  the  in fo rmat ion  and d id  the  ca lcu la t ion  I  saw tha t  there  
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was –  no t  a l l  the  money was rece ived back bu t  472 971  

was s t i l l  ou ts tand ing  but  they cou ld  no t  g ive  exp lanat ion  

why.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  may I  have a  b r ie f  moment ,  

Cha i r?   Mr  van den Heever,  thank you fo r  your  he lp .   Those 

are  the  quest ions  tha t  I  have.   Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much,  Mr  van den  

Heever,  fo r  coming to  ass is t  the  Commiss ion .   I f  we need 

you we w i l l  ask  you to  come back bu t  thank you very  much,  

you are  now excused.  10 

MR VAN DEN HEEVER:    Thank you,   Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   Thank you,  Ms In te rpre ter,  

you are  a lso  excused.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  we a re  ready w i th  

our  next  w i tness.   As  I  ind ica ted ,  I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  she 

w i l l  be  tha t  long.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    She is  ava i lab le ,  may we ask l eave  

to  ca l l  her?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Her  name is  Carene Geldenhuys.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And wh i le  she is  coming fo rward  and  

before  she is  sworn  in  may I  jus t  fo r  gu idance re fe r  to  her  

a f f idav i t  in  the  same bund le ,  Dene l  04 ,  i t  appears  f rom 
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page 148 and we w i l l  be  ask ing  fo r  i t  to  be  admi t ted  as  

EXHIBIT W15.   You shou ld  f ind  the  tab  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  thank you.   Yes,  a re  you ready,  Mr  

Kennedy?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  thank  you,  Cha i r,  may  we ask  

tha t  you r  learned assoc ia te  swear  the  w i tness in?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  my reg i s t ra r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Your  reg is t ra r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The Labour  Cour t  techno logy has s tuck  

w i th  you.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    O ld  hab i ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  thank you.  

REGISTRAR :   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Carene Geldenhuys.  

REGISTRAR :   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  t ak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    No,  I  do  no t .  

REGISTRAR :   Do you cons ider  t he  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  I  do .  20 

REGISTRAR :   Do  you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  g ive   

w i l l  be  the  t ru th  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e lse  bu t  the  

t ru th .   I f  so ,  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say so  he lp  

me God.  

CARENE GELDENHUYS:   So he lp  me God.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  you may be sea ted,  Ms 

Geldenhuys.   I  th ink  you w i l l  need  to  s i t  on  the  o ther  cha i r  

o therw ise  you w i l l  be  too  fa r  f rom the  m icrophone.   I  th ink  

the  o ther  m icrophone does not  work .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you may cont inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Good a f te rnoon,  Ms Geldenhuys.   

You have a  bund le  in  f ron t  o f  you,  a  f i le .   I  hope i t  has  

been opened a t  page 151,  i f  you  look a t  the  numbers  on  

the  top  le f t .  10 

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  thank you.    Can you  conf i rm 

tha t  your  name appears  on  th is  page wh ich  is  the  f i rs t  page 

o f  a  s ta tement?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Which  you have in  fac t  s igned before  

Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths .   I f  I  may take  you to  page  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  one second,  Mr  Kennedy.   Jus t  pu l l  

the  m ic  c loser  to  you.   Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank  you.   May you,  Ms  

Geldenhuys,  tu rn  to  page 165?  Is  tha t  you s ignature  on  

page 165?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  as  seems to  
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appear  f rom the  foo t  o f  the  page you s igned tha t  in  f ron t  o f  

Commiss ioner  o f  Oaths?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  th is  i s  in  fac t  an  a f f idav i t .   Do you 

conf i rm tha t  you  have been th rough the  contents  o f  th is  

a f f idav i t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  I  have.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  you  conf i rm tha t  in  fac t  the  

contents  o f  the  a f f idav i t  a re  co r rec t  accord ing  to  your  own  

knowledge?  10 

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  thank you.   Cha i r,  we wou ld  

then move fo rma l ly  fo r  you leave  to  have admi t ted  th is  

a f f idav i t ,  s ta tement /a f f idav i t  w i th  i t s  annexures  as  an  

exh ib i t  in  bund le  Dene l  04  as  EXHIBIT W15.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The s ta tement /a f f idav i t  o f  Ms Carene 

Geldenhuys s ta r t ing  a t  page 151 together  w i th  i t s  

annexures is  adm i t ted  as  EXHIBIT W15.  

STATEMENT/AFFIDAVIT  OF CARENE GELDENHUYS 

STARTING AT PAGE 151 TOGETHER WITH ANNEXURES 20 

HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  W15.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You may p roceed.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   May we jus t  fo r  the  

record  ind i ca te  –  no ,  in  fac t  you were  prev ious ly  
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rep resented by  a t to rneys were  you …[ in tervenes]  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  I  was,  when I  was s t i l l  employed  

by  Dene l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Was tha t  Mr  P i l lay  and h is  team? 

MS GELDENHUYS:    No,  i t  was D ia le  A t to rneys.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D ia le  A t to rneys.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you .   But  you are  no  longer  10 

rep resented by  them.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you.   When d id  you leave  

Dene l?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Then end o f  March –  no ,  the  end o f  

Apr i l ,  sor ry,  2020 .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   When  d id  you s ta r t  the re?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    August  –  i t  was –  when I  s ta r ted  i t  

was s t i l l  BAE Systems,  Land Sys tems South  A f r i ca ,  tha t  

was in  2006 and  then in  Apr i l  2015 we were  acqu i red  by  20 

Dene l ,  our  bus iness in  South  A f r i ca .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And the  bus iness prev ious ly  owned  

by  BAE tha t  was now acqu i red  by  Dene l ,  d id  tha t  then  

come to  fo rm a  d i v is ion  w i th in  Dene l?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    No,  i t  was a  s tanda lone ent i t y.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Wi th  i t s  own board  bu t  fu l l y  owned by  

Dene l  SOC.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  i t  i s  a  separa te  company.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    What  i s  the  name o f  i t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I t  i s  Dene l  Veh ic le  Systems (P ty)  L td .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   I f  we can re fer  to  i t  f rom now 

on as  DVS as eve rybody seems to  do .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  i t  was  DVS under  i t s  p rev ious  

name and then under  the  DVS name i t  was your  employer  

wh i le  you were  employed in  the  Dene l  Group.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  thank you.   And what  was your  

job  t i t le?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  was lega l  and commerc ia l  execut ive  

on  the  DVS execut ive  team.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now in  –  now we must  bear  in  m ind 

your  a f f idav i t  was  s igned on the  15  January  2020.   We see 20 

tha t  on  page 105 .   So when we go to  your  f i rs t  pa rag raph,  

page 151,  obv ious l y  tha t  was represent ing  the  fac ts  as  

they ex is ted  in  January  2020.   You were  s t i l l  then 

employed a t  DVS,  cor rec t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And you the re  re fer  to  the  fac t  

tha t  you were  employed as  the  lega l  and commerc ia l  

execut ive  o f  DVS.   You were  no t  invo lved,  o r  were  you,  in  

anyth ing  to  do  w i th  DLS? 

MS GELDENHUYS:    No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now on page 152 you re fer  to  

the  area o f  bus iness o f  DVS,  tha t  i t  has  i t s  own th ree  

d iv is ions and you descr ibed tha t  in  some deta i l  in  2 .2,  

cor rec t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.   Cha i r,  w i th  your  leave,  I  am 

lead ing  the  w i tness on  mat te rs  tha t  a re  be l ieve  are  no t  

cont rovers ia l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  non-cont rovers ia l  mat te rs .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you  and then you se t  ou t  in  

2 .4  your  key respons ib i l i t y  a reas.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   You re fer red  to  lega l  adv i ce  in  

241 tha t  you wou ld  prov ide  the  CEO and bus iness.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Where  war ran ted and then a l so  your  

funct ions inc lud ing  as  pa r t  o f  your  key areas dra f t ing  and  

rev iewing lega l  documenta t ion  and  agreement .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now,  Ms Geldenhuys,  the  
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Commiss ion  has a l ready heard  some ev idence in  re la t ion  

to  an  ag reement  tha t  was conc luded between DVS and VR 

Laser.   I s  tha t  –  you dea l  f rom page 153 w i th  an  ins t ruc t ion  

tha t  you rece ived  to  p repare  a  Memorandum of  Agreement  

be tween DVS and  VR Laser  serv ices .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And what  sor t  o f  serv i ces  were  to  be  

prov ided or  goods were  to  be  p rov ided in  te rms  o f  th is  

agreement  by  VR Laser  to  DVS? 

MS GELDENHUYS:    A t  tha t  s tage we got  an  ins t ruc t ion  10 

th rough Mr  Ntshepe who was the  Act ing  CEO of  Dene l  a t  

tha t  s tage to  en ter  in to  an  agreement  w i th  VR Laser.   We 

were  no t  –  because i t  was not  someth ing  tha t  came f rom 

wi th in  the  bus iness as  a  requ i rement  tha t  we have 

ident i f ied  VR Laser  as  to  be  par tner  w i th  us ,  we were  no t  

qu i te  sure  what  i t  i s  tha t  we need to  cont rac t  w i t h  them,  

what  t ype o f  a r rangement  i t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    We then took gu idance f rom Mr  Jan 

Wesse ls  who was the  COO of  Dene l  a t  tha t  s tage.   When  20 

he gu ided us  to  en ter  in to  a  ve ry  h igh  leve l  nonb ind ing  

noncommi t ta l  t ype o f  agreement  where in  we w i l l  ag ree tha t  

we w i l l  exp lo re  avenues to  maybe in  fu tu re  co l labo ra te  

together.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  
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MS GELDENHUYS:    And tha t  was  then the  agreement  tha t  

was dra f ted .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  thank you.   Now you  

ment ioned Mr  Ntshepe who was then Act ing  Group Ch ie f  

Execut ive .   We know tha t  he  took over  then as  the  fu l l y  

f ledged Group CEO.   When  Mr  Sa loo jee  le f t  Dene l  he  was 

the  prev ious Group CEO.   Was Mr  Ntshepe,  when he was  

ac t ing ,  was a t  the  t ime tha t  Mr  Sa loo jee  was on  

suspens ion?  Do you know? 

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  be l ieve  so .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  am not  one hundred percent  in  

te rms o f  the  t ime l ine .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r igh t .   

MS GELDENHUYS:    Bu t  th is  was –  we –  I  know tha t  Mr  

Sa loo jee  was suspended a t  the  end o f  September  2015,  

th is  i s  in  the  beg inn ing  o f  November,  so  I  doubt  i t  very  

much i f  there  wou ld  have been a  fo rmal  appo in tment  

a l ready.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay.    Now re fe r red  to  the 20 

ins t ruc t ion  coming f rom Mr  Ntshepe and your  a f f idav i t  says  

tha t  tha t  went  th rough Mr  S teyn.   You re fe r  in  322 to  Mr  

S teyn as  be ing  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  o f  DVS.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now d id  i t  s t r i ke  you as  normal  o r  
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unusua l  tha t  an  i n i t ia t i ve  to  en ter  in to  a  cont rac t  w i th  an  

ou ts ide  en t i t y  such as  VR Laser  shou ld  come f rom the  

Group Ch ie f  Execut ive  ra ther  than someth ing  tha t  was 

genera ted  w i th in  the  d iv is ion  i t se l f ?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    L ike  I  have exp la ined,  we jus t  became 

par t  o f  Dene l .   In  the  prev ious way tha t  we d id  bus iness  

under  the  BAE System’s  f lag  i t  wou ld  have been very  

s t range because the  bus iness wou ld  ident i f y  who they need 

as  a  pa r tner  and  they wou ld  substant ia te  why they need  

tha t  par tne r.   I t  was s t range tha t  i t  came f rom the  10 

corpo ra te  o f f i ce  tha t  we have to  en ter  in to  an  agreement  

bu t  i t  was a lso  we l l ,  maybe th is  i s  the  Dene l  manner.   We 

were  too  new in  t he  g roup to  one hundred percent  say  th is  

i s  no t  the  way tha t  i t  i s  done.   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  were  you ins t ruc ted  by  Mr  S teyn 

to  per fo rm some duty?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  I  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  was to  p repare  an  

agreement?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  so  I  go t  a  bas i s  o f  the  ag reement  20 

f rom Mr  Wesse ls  wh ich  you w i l l  see  in  the  pack where  he  

sa id  we l l ,  he  has  used th is  t ype o f  agreement  be fo re  and  

he suggests  we  use i t  as  a  bas is .   We then took tha t  

agreement ,  wh ich  is  nonb ind ing ,  noncommi t ta l  and we jus t  

amended i t  so  tha t  i t  f i t s  in to  the  cur ren t  c i rcumstances in  
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te rms o f  the  type  o f  bus iness tha t  we are  do ing  and then 

ta lk ing  tha t  we w i l l  then invest iga te  fu r the r  i f  there  i s  

indeed co l labora t ion  oppor tun i t ies  fo r  the  two bus inesses  

to  work  togethe r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now you re fer  to  in  your  a f f idav i t  to  

two agreements  be ing  s igned in i t ia l l y.   The one is  a  

conf ident ia l i t y  ag reement  and the  o ther  a  memorandum of  

agreement ,  your  a f f idav i t  says ,  bu t  may I  take  you to  page 

171?  Do you have i t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  I  do .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Th i s  i s  a  memorandum – the  t i t le  i s  

Memorandum of  Unders tand ing  and i t  i s  a  f i ve  page 

document  runn ing  to  175.   A re  you fami l ia r  w i th  th is  

document?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  I  am.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I s  th is  the  document  tha t  you 

re fer red  to  in  your  a f f idav i t  as  the  nonb ind ing  agreement?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t .   D id  you dra f t  th is?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes I  d id  bu t  i t  was f rom –  w i th  input  20 

tha t  I  rece ived f rom Mr  Jan Wesse ls .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.    And was tha t  then f ina l i sed by  

Mr  S teyn s ign ing  i t  on  beha l f  o f  Dene l ,  page 175? 

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i t  was  s igned on beha l f  o f  VR 
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Laser  by  Mr  van der  Merwe.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:     A l r igh t .   Now can we go now to  the  

conf ident ia l i t y  ag reement ,  tha t  s tar ts  i t  seems a t  page 166.   

Aga in  an  ag reement  be tween Dene l  and VR Laser.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    S igned on the  same date  as  the 

memorandum of  unders tand ing .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   D id  you pre fer  the  10 

conf ident ia l i t y  ag reement?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  I  d id .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now what  d id  you unders tand  

the  purpose o f  these agreements  to  be ,  the  conf ident ia l i t y  

agreement  and the  MOU?  Le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  conf ident ia l i t y  

agreement .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    So  as  i t  i s  re f lec t ing  in  c lause 3  o f  

the  conf ident ia l i t y  ag reement  i t  was d iscuss ions and 

in fo rmat ion  to  be  exchanged tha t  re la tes  to  the  exp lora t ion  

o f  poss ib le  fu tu re  co l labora t ion  be tween the  par t ies  to  20 

exp lo i t   the  complementary  capab i l i t ies  there  is  be tween  

the  par t ies .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And then there  is  a  re ference  

to  pa ten t  r igh t s  in  c lause 9  on  page  168.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then i f  we go back to  page 166,  

above c lause 1  in  the  preamble  i t  re fe rs  to  the  par t ies  and  

the  addresses and so  fo r th  and then on the  f i f th  l ine  in  the  

top  pa rag raph tha t  they des i re  –  the  pa r t ies  des i re  to  

p ro tec t  ce r ta in  p ropr ie ta ry  o r  conf ident ia l  in fo rmat ion  wh ich  

may be d isc losed  or  exchanged be tween them both  pr io r  to  

and dur ing  the  te rm o f  th is  agreement .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  was the  pu rpose  o f  th is  

agreement?   I f  we are  go ing  to  do  bus iness together  th is  10 

agreement  i s  go ing  to  ensure  tha t  VR Laser  keeps 

conf ident ia l  what  we ent rus t  to  them in  conf idence.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now i f  we can tu rn  to  the 

MOU,  the  memorandum of  unders tand ing ,  page 172.   

Perhaps the  eas ies t  po in t  by  way o f  the  overa l l  ob jec t i ve  i s  

page 172 in  the  p reamble .   I t  re fe rs  to  Dene l  and VR Laser  

and then i t  says :   Whereas.   Do you have tha t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes I  do .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   “Whereas DVS has as  i t s  ma in   20 

capab i l i t y  the  deve lopment ,  manufac tu re  and 

re furb ishment  o f  landmine pro tec ted  and armoured 

veh ic les ,  wh ich  veh ic les  are  so ld  to  the  loca l  and 

in te rnat iona l  market ,  whereas VRL is  a  loca l  

supp l ie r  o f  a rmoured s tee l  and has exper ience in  
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the  fabr ica t ion  o f  a rmoured capsu les  inc lus i ve  o f  

lase r  cu t t ing  and we ld ing .   VRL is  an  ex is t ing 

supp l ie r  o f  DVS,  per fo rms lase r  cu t t ing  and the 

supp ly  o f  a rmoured s tee l  under  subcont rac t  o f  DVS.   

Both  par t ies  rea l i se  tha t  i t s  capab i l i t ies  a re  

complementary  to  each o the r  and requ i res  fu r the r  

invest iga t ion  in to  poss ib le  co l l abo ra t ion  to  the  

mutua l  benef i t  o f  bo th  the  par t ies . ”  

R igh t .   So th is  was a  memorandum of  unders tand ing ,  as  

you have i t ,  nonb ind ing ,  i t  was rea l l y,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  10 

and cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  i t  was rea l l y  a  f ramework  fo r  

the  par t ies  to  agree to  as  a  concept  to  move fo rward  then 

to  negot ia te  a  b ind ing  agreement .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i t  wou ld  be  an agreement  tha t  

u l t imate ly  wou ld  g ive  bus iness f rom DVS to  VRL fo r  VRL to  

prov ide  spec ia l i s t  lase r  cu t t ing  and o the r  requ i rements  fo r  

a rmoured s tee l  re la t ing  to  a rmoured veh ic les .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  th ink  a t  th is  s tage tha t  we entered  

in to  th is  agreement  i t  was not  the  in ten t ion  o f  the  bus iness  20 

to  g ive  some o f  the  DVS bus iness to  VR Laser  a t  tha t  

s tage.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    We entered  in to  th is  agreement  to  

see i f  there  i s  someth ing  tha t  is  no t  par t  o f  our  core  
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capab i l i t y  tha t  we can g i ve  to  them but  we w i l l  need to  

have d iscuss ions  w i th  them to  f igu re  ou t  what  i s  there  tha t  

we can g ive  to  them.   I t  was never  f rom the  beg inn ing  the  

in ten t ion  tha t  we w i l l  g ive  our  main  work  to  VR Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And then i f  I  can  re fer  you to  

c lause 2  on  the  next  page,  173.   That  se ts  ou t  the  genera l  

in ten t ion .  

“The in ten t ion  o f  the  par t ies  i s  to  exp lore  the  

feas ib i l i t y  to  s t ra teg ica l l y  co l labora te  and deve lop  

the i r  re la t ionsh ip  re la t ing  to  fu tu re  oppor tun i t ies  10 

and  the  cont rac t ing  mode ls  re la t ing  to  such 

oppor tun i ty  exp lo i ta t ion .   The par t ies  have 

ident i f ied  the  fo l low ing as  poss ib le  a reas fo r  

co l labora t ion  no t i ng  tha t  th is  i s  no t  an  exhaust ive  

l i s t .  

(a )  The poss ib le  fu tu re  l oca l  manufac ture  o f  

spec ia l i sed s tee l  s t ruc tures  in  the  RSA.  

(b )  The supp ly  o f  s tee l  p roducts  by  VRL to  DVS on  

a  pre fe rent ia l  bas is ,  and  

(c )  The fu tu re  op t ima l  fabr i ca t ion  o f  a rmour  20 

veh ic le  hu l l s . ”  

That  was rea l l y   -  we a re  go ing  to  now exp lore  the  way  

fo rward  to  see whether  we can do  bus iness w i th  each.   I s  

tha t  a  fa i r  re f lec t ion  o f  what  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  a  fa i r  re f lec t ion .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   And even the  i tems in  (a ) ,  (b )  

and (c )  showed the  so r t  o f  bus iness tha t  was go ing  to  be 

exp lored but  i t  was not  an  exhaust ive  l i s t ,  as  you pu t  i t .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  thank you.   Now i f  I  can  take  

you back to  page 154.   You re fer  to  –  you dea l  in  

parag raph 3 .7 ,  page 154,  parag raph 3 .7 ,  you say:  

“Fo l lowing the  execut ion  o f  the  agreement  on  2  

November  i t  became apparent  tha t  Mr  Ntshepe was 

not  sa t is f ied  w i th  the  contents . ”  10 

Just  exp la in  to  the  Cha i r  p lease what  the  issue was .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    We unders tood tha t  Mr  Ntshepe 

contac ted  Mr  S teyn and sa id  to  h im tha t  th is  i s  no t  the  

ins t ruc t ions tha t  was g i ven,  what  we have ente red  in to  i s  

nonb ind ing  agreement  w i thout  ag reed work  share  and th i s  

i s  no t  what  was requested.   I t  i s  requested tha t  we  entered 

in to  a  b ind ing  agreement  guaran tee ing  tha t  there  w i l l  be  

some work  go ing  to  VR Laser.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  who was say ing  tha t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    As  I  unders tood i t ,  i t  was –  th is  was  20 

communica ted  to  us  by  Mr  S teyn ,  wh ich  was the  CEO of  

DVS,  who was my boss and he  was convey ing  i t  to  h is  

execut ive  team be ing  the  in fo rmat ion  or  be ing  to ld  by  h is  

boss,  Mr  Ntshepe,  tha t  th is  i s  no t  –  th is  agreement  i s  no t  

what  they want .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you have any impress ion  as  to  

whethe r,  whoever  came up w i th  the  idea to  pu t  up  th is  

nonb ind ing  agreement ,  was ac tua l l y  t ry ing  to  avo id  ge t t ing  

in to  a  lega l  b ind ing  agreement  because he or  she cou ld  

see tha t  there  cou ld  be  t roub le  here?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Wel l ,  as  the  execut ive  team we a l l  

knew about  i t  and th is  was w i th  Mr  Wesse ls ,  i t  was our  

p lan ,  we are  go ing  to  k ick  the  ba l l  in to  the  fu tu re ,  we are 

go ing  to  do  an  ag reement ,  i t  i s  no t  go ing  to  be  b ind ing  and  

we w i l l  see  what  i t  i s  tha t  we can do,  we have got  the  10 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You cou ld  say you d id  s ign  an  

agreement .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    …the powers  to  be  f rom our  backs  

and we are  go ing  to  go  fo rward  w i th  our  bus iness as  usua l ,  

i t  d id  no t  work .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you cou ld  a lways say to  Mr  Ntshepe 

you d id  s ign  an  agreement .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    We d id  say to  h im we s igned an 

agreement .   He rece ived the  agreement ,  as  fa r  as  I  reca l l ,  20 

and then a  day o r  two la te r  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Th is  i s  no t  what  I  wanted.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    No,  he  was angry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You and your  team were  caught  ou t .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    We were  cheeky tha t  way.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   But  jus t  so  tha t  I  

unders tand fu l l y.   Was the  in ten t ion  never  to  take  the  

mat te r  fo rward  f rom the  execut ive  po in t  o f  v iew as  fa r  as  

you unders tood w i th  the  MOU or  was i t  a  genu ine  in ten t ion  

to  negot ia te  fu r ther  w i th  VR Laser  once the  MOU was 

s igned?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    We d id  no t  rea l l y  unders tand what  i t  

i s  tha t  we need to  cont rac t  w i th  them for.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes.  10 

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  mean,  i t  was uncomprehendab le  

[s ic ] ,  we have go t  our  bus iness,  now we are  asked to  en ter  

in to  agreement  w i th  anothe r  bus iness and –  bu t  fo r  what?   

I  mean,  i t  was –  so  you w i l l  see  th roughout  my a f f idav i t  

there  i s  var ious ac t ions we took and bra ins torming we d id  

and feedback,  tha t  we kept  on  ge t t ing  and say bu t  th is  

cannot  work  and th is  i s  why i t  cannot  work .    

So we were  to ld  en te r  in to  ag reement  and we  

entered i n to  agreement .   I t  was no t  b ind ing  and –  bu t  le t  us  

see i f  there  i s  someth ing  tha t  we can do tha t  i s  no t  g iv ing 20 

away our  core  capab i l i t ies  and our  main  bus iness.    

And yes,  there  was a  rea l  in ten t ion  to  see i f  there  i s  

on  the  s ide  someth ing  tha t  we can g i ve  to  them but  the  

in ten t ion  was never  to  g ive  our  co re  capab i l i t y  o r  our  core  

bus iness to  them.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    And d id  you contempla te  tha t  i f  a t  a l l  

poss ib le  you wanted to  postpone  fo r  as  long as  poss ib le  

the  day when you  might  have to  make –  to  te l l  them but  we  

have a  p rob lem w i th  th is?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  exact ly  the  way the  cont rac t  i s  

s t ruc tured.   You w i l l  –  and I  m ight  be  jumping now in to  the  

–  what  you w i l l  lead me to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    So  what  we  d id  i s  we f i rs t  en tered  

in to  a  nonb ind ing  agreement  and then i t  was sa id  no ,  10 

be t te r  you go fo r  a  b ind ing  agreement .   There  was  var ious  

–  and we w i l l  most  p robab ly  go  th rough i t ,  i te ra t ions how i t  

ended up,  what  the  b ind ing  agreement  looked l i ke .  

 But  there  is  a  l i t t le  r ider  tha t  we put  in to  the  

agreement  where  we kept  on  –  where  we were  say ing  okay,  

we w i l l  do  tha t  bu t  on  cond i t ion  tha t  we need to  l ook  a t  a  

coup le  o f  th ings.   

 And in  ou r  m ind  i f  we get  there  one day,  we w i l l  

f igh t  the  f igh t  aga in ,  tha t  i t  w i l l  no t  make sense fo r  us ,  as  a  

bus iness,  to  g ive  our  work  to  VR Laser.  20 

 So as  the  execut ive  team under  Mr  S teyn ’s  

leadersh ip  we fe l t  tha t  we were  keep ing  our  backdoor  open  

a  l i t t le  b i t  a l though we are  no t  upset t ing  our  leadersh ip  in  

the  Dene l  Group too  much.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  you were  t ry ing  no t  to  upset  the 

leadersh ip ,  the  Act ing  Group CEO in  par t i cu la r  a t  tha t  t ime,  

bu t  you –  bu t  am I  r igh t  in  unders tand ing  you were  say ing  

you are  say ing  fe l t  uncomfo r tab le  f rom the  beg inn ing?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    We were  ex t remely  uncomfor tab le .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   One th ing  I  omi t ted  to  take  

you to  and I  apo log ise  fo r  th i s ,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  when we re fer  

aga in  to  page 175,  the  s ignature  page o f  the  MOU,  your  

a f f idav i t  re fe rs  t o  the  s ignature  hav ing  happened  a t  the  

o f f i ces  o f  DVS when the  represen ta t i ves  o f  VR Laser  were  10 

present .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Were  you yourse l f  p resent  when th is  

was s igned?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  was not  p resent  in  the  mee t ing  bu t  

the  meet ing  took p lace in  Mr  S teyn ’s  o f f i ce  wh ich  i s  

d i rec t l y  oppos i te  my o f f i ce  and i t  i s  g lass  o f f i ces ,  so  I  

cou ld  see the  meet ing  happen ing  a l though I  was not  in  the  

meet ing .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now you are  aware  who ac tua l l y  20 

a t tended fo r  VR Laser,  i t  seems to  be  s igned by  Mr  van der  

Merwe.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  your  a f f idav i t  re fe rs  a lso  to  a 

person be ing  p resent  known as Kamal  S inga la?  
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MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   How wou ld  you know i f  he  was 

present  i f  you  weren ’ t  there?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    L ike  I  sa id  my o f f i ce  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  she sa id  i t  i s  a  w indow,  she cou ld  

see.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    . . .  i t  i s  over  ja ,  and Mr  S teyn g iv ing  –  

th is  ins t ruc t ion  came to  en te r ing  i n to  an  ag reement  l i ke  in  

the  day be fore ,  they were  in  h i s  o f f i ce  wh i le  I  was s i t t ing  

across the  a is le  d ra f t ing  and f ina l i s ing  i t ,  so  he  wou ld  wa lk  10 

in  and out  in  my  o f f i ce  to  f ind  ou t  how fa r  am I  w i th  the  

agreement  a l ready,  and I  know they were  in  there ,  I  m igh t  

have wa lked in  there  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  what  –  sor ry  to  in te r rup t  –  what  I  

am in te res ted  in  is  how do you know tha t  –  you knew some 

peop le  were  there ,  and you knew what  they were  there  and  

how d id  you know i t  was Mr  S ingha la  d id  Mr  S teyn te l l  you  

or  were  you in t roduced to  Mr  S ingha la  or  d id  you 

see…[ in tervenes] .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  th ink  I  was cc ’d  on  the  inv i ta t ion ,  20 

the  bus iness inv i t a t ion ,  the  ou t look ,  and tha t  says S ingha la  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    F ine  thank you and then your  

a f f idav i t  re fe rs  to  a  Rumour  Mi l l  in fo rms you – you found  

out  th rough the  rumour  m i l l  tha t  Mr  S ingha la ,  in  fac t  has a  

fu l le r  name,  i t ’s  Kamal  S ingha la  Gupta .  
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MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  on l y  la te r  on .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  now you ’ve  men t ioned  

tha t  Mr  Ntshepe was unhappy,  you  dea l  w i th  tha t  in  3 .7  and 

one o f  the  po in t s  tha t  he  was unhappy w i th  was tha t  i t  was 

an non-b ind ing  agreement ,  i t  was not  ye t  a  b ind ing  

agreement  and there ’s  re fe rence a lso ,  to  h i s  compla in  tha t  

–  about  a  s ing le  source  supp l ie r.   What  d id  you unders tand  

Mr  Ntshepe ’s  requ i rements  to  be?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  want  to  come back to  my ev idence  

ear l ie r  on ,  we were  qu i te  new in  the  Dene l  s tab le  so  the  10 

PMFA and the  PPPMA – we weren ’ t  accustomed to  i t  ye t .  

So,  a t  tha t  s tage ,  when the  words ,  s ing le  source  supp l ie r  

was used in  our  env i ronment  i t  was jus t  exact ly  the  same 

what  the  layman wi l l  say,  s ing le  source  supp l ie r.   So,  i t  

was not  l inked back exact ly  to  how we wou ld  f rom,  a  supp ly  

cha in  perspect ive  f rom the  s ta te-owned ent i t y  look  a t  a  

s ing le  source  supp l ie r.   So,  to  us  i t  i s  team wi th  these  

peop le  and you can have a  type  o f  exc lus i ve  ag reement  

w i th  them to  work  w i th  them.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  so  you w i l l  p rocu re  someth ing  20 

exc lus ive ly  f rom VR Laser?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    What  wou ld  tha t  someth ing  be ,  tha t  

you unders tood Mr  Ntshepe des i red?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    We s t i l l  d id  no t  know a t  tha t  s tage.   
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So ,  i t  on ly,  la te r  on  panned out  tha t  they were  ta lk ing  about  

tha t  they want  us  to  do  a l l  our  hu l l  manufac tur ing  a t  VR 

Laser.  So,  th roughout  th is  pe r iod  tha t  we were  en ter ing  

in to  new agreement  o r  en ter ing  and d iscuss ing  

agreements ,  i t  came out  tha t  they are  ta lk ing  about  hu l l  

manufac tur ing  a t  VR Laser.  A l though we s tar ted  o f f ,  le t ’s  

see what  there  i s  tha t ’s  no t  pa r t  o f  our  co re  capab i l i t y  tha t  

we can g ive  to  VR Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now your  a f f idav i t  then goes 

on to  ta lk  o f  emai l  and o the r  communica t ions invo l v ing  10 

yourse l f  and Mr  S teyn and Mr  S teyn w i th  Mr  Ntshepe,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And Mr  Wesse ls  was a lso  invo lved a t  

a  cer ta in  s tage,  we ’ l l  ge t  to  tha t  in  a  moment  bu t  what  d id  

management  fee l  –  what  d id  you a t  the  Execut ive  leve l  o f  

DLS fee l  once i t  was c lear  tha t  what  Mr  Ntshepe  wanted 

was,  f i rs t l y  –  immedia te ly  ra ther  than th rough a  MOU and  

some negot ia t ion  and exp lor ing  the  way fo rward ,  ra ther  go  

s t ra igh t  fo r  an  ac tua l  b ind ing  agreement ,  second ly  tha t  i t  20 

be  a  so le  supp l i e r,  s ing le  supp l i e r  and th i rd ly,  tha t  what  

needed to  be  supp l ied  inc luded const ruc t ion  o f  hu l l s?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  jus t  want  to  cor rec t  you,  i t ’s  DVS 

not  DLS.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  beg your  pa rdon.  
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MS GELDENHUYS:    No,  i t ’s  f ine .   So,  we were ,  a t  th is  

s tage be ing  to ld  tha t  there  i s  a l ready agreement  tha t  was 

entered by  DLS wi th  VR Laser  and tha t  they wou ld  suggest  

then tha t  we mi r ro r  the  type o f  agreement  tha t  DLS has  

entered in to  w i th  VR Laser.   So,  there  was then  s tages 

where  they sa id ,  we l l  le t ’s  combine DVS and DVS become 

a  par ty  o f  the  DLS and VR Laser  agreement .   That  posed  

var ious issues i n  te rms o f  the  amendment  o f  the  agreement  

because i t ’s  –  DVS is  no t  a  d iv is ion  o f  Dene l ,  i t ’s  a  

separa te  lega l  en t i t y  and then i t  was dec ided,  we l l  the  best  10 

and the  fas tes t  rou te  fo r  us  to  go  is  to  en ter  in to  a  s im i la r  

agreement  tha t  DLS had w i th  VR Laser.  Yet  aga in ,  tha t ’s  

where  we d id  a  l i t t le  b i t  o f  chang ing ,  sor t  o f  g iv ing  

ourse l ves the  oppor tun i ty  to  ge t  ou t  o f  th is  ag reement  

shou ld  we –  the  bus iness case mean tha t  we a re  no t  bound  

by  th is  agreement .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you r  pos i t ion  seems to  have been  

c lea r  tha t  you r  pos i t ion  a t  DVS,  tha t  you had no need to  go  

in to  any agreement  w i th  VR Laser,  you were  f ine .  20 

MS GELDENHUYS:   That ’s  cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now,  your  a f f idav i t  re fe rs ,  a t  the  top  

o f  page 155 to  DVS hav ing  the  necessary  fab r ica t ion 

capac i ty  and tha t  i t  was requ i red  to  run  pre -product ion  
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p i lo t  fabr ica t ion  to  indust r ia l i sed  hu l l s  fo r  spec i f i c  veh ic les .   

So,  what  Mr  Ntshepe asked you o r  ins t ruc t ing  you to  do  to  

move f rom a  non-b ind ing  agreement  about  ta lk ing  about  

the  fu tu re  i s  someth ing  tha t  i s  b ind ing  wh ich  wou ld  inc lude  

fabr ica t ion  o f  hu l l s .   Was th i s  someth ing  tha t  cou ld  be  done  

in -house by  DVS i t se l f?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Abso lu te ly  tha t  was our  core  

capab i l i t y.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  was your  core  capab i l i t y?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Abso lu te ly.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and then you re fer  to  Mr  S teyn  

in  3 .10  in fo rming you about  a  meet ing  ear l ie r  tha t  day  

where  the  s t ra teg ic  in ten t  o f  the  Dene l  Landward  Bus iness  

was conveyed to  VR Laser  and i t  was exp la ined  tha t  a  

s ignature  wou ld  fo l low a f te r  the  approva l  o f  the  Board .   

What  does th is  re la te  to ,  the  Landward  Bus iness S t ra teg ic  

In ten t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    A f te r  we have been acqu i red  –  the  

DVS bus iness by  Dene l  there  was a  lo t  o f  ta lk ,  le t  me 

ra the r  say,  a f te r  the  –  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  a f te r  the  20 

suspens ion  o f  Mr  Sa loogee there  was a  l o t  o f  ta lk  tha t  the  

Landward  bus iness w i l l  conso l ida te ,  wh ich  w i l l  mean tha t  i t  

w i l l  be  the  LS,  DVS and LMT tha t  we w i l l  conso l ida te  bu t  

there  wasn ’ t  a  p roper  manner  in  wh ich  we were  go ing  to  do  

i t  and there  wasn ’ t  a  rea l  d i rec t ion  what  the  type  o f  lega l  
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en t i t y  wou ld  be ,  i t  was jus t  th is  c lus ter  tha t  w i l l  have a  

jo in t  v is ion  and th is  i s  then ta lk ing  to  the  c lus te r  be ing  

those th ree  –  or  two d iv i s ions and our  bus iness ’ jo in t  v is ion  

as  i t  i s  env i saged  by  the  DCO teams.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  so  a re  you say ing  th is ,  and  

cor rec t  me i f  my unders tand ing  is  wrong,  w i th in  Dene l ,  you 

had var ious en t i t ies  tha t  inc luded LMT tha t  was cont ro l led  

by  Dene l  w i th  a  51% shareho ld ing ,  you had DVS tha t  was a  

company on i t s  own but  fu l l y  owned and cont ro l led  by  

Dene l .  10 

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    LMT had cer ta in  co re  bus iness o f  i t s  

own,  you had core  bus iness o f  your  own wh ich  had  

prev ious l y  been conducted when  i t  was owned by  BAE,  

cor rec t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t  had now been brought  w i th in  the  

Dene l  Group,  you had capac i ty  and what  was now be ing  

in tended in  te rms  o f  the  Landward  Bus iness S t ra tegy,  was 

to  t ry  and enhance the  i n -house capab i l i t y  fo r  such  20 

products .   That  you wou ld  work  togethe r  and  maybe,  

u l t imate ly,  res t ruc ture .  So,  the  focus was to  car ry  on  your  

respect ive  core  bus inesses i n  a  coord ina ted  in-house way,  

i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now,  the 

proposa l…[ in tervenes] .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  jus t  want  to  add here ,  th is  was very  

ear l y  s tages,  very  h igh  leve l .   The  deta i l  was never  f lushed  

out ,  so  i t  was very  much b lue  sky  s ta tements  tha t  was 

be ing  made.  Def in i te ly  fo r  us  in  t he  bus iness un i t ,  there  

was no tang ib le  p lans a t  tha t  s tage,  unders tand ing  how i t  

w i l l  work ,  how i t  w i l l  f lush  ou t  in to  the  day- to -day  o f  the 

bus inesses.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  unders tand ,  so  i t  was,  a t  tha t  s tage 10 

jus t  a  b road s t ra teg ic  v is ion?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t  and d id  you unders tand tha t ,  

tha t  b road s t ra teg ic  v is ion  is  what  had been dec ided on a t  

the  Execut ive  leve l  even above you?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Abso lu te ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A t  Board  leve l  o f  the  Group?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Abso lu te ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  and…[ in tervenes] .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Board ,  Execut ive  leve l  a t  the  Group,  20 

I ’m  not  sure  where .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  so  a l though you hadn ’ t  go t  

in to  the  nu ts  and bo l ts  o f  how th is  was go ing  to  be  

rea l i sed,  th is  v i s ion ,  tha t  was where  the  Group wanted to  

move?  
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MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now,  how d id  you f ind  tha t  the  

ins t ruc t ion  f rom Mr  Ntshepe a t  the  leve l  o f  Group CEO or  

ac t ing  Group CEO,  tha t  now some o f  your  core  bus iness 

shou ld  be  cont rac ted  out  on  a  so le  supp l ie r  bas is  to  VR 

Laser?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I t  d id  no t  make sense to  us .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now your  a f f idav i t  in  3 .10  a t  

page 155 re fers  to  Mr  S teyn g i v ing  you feedback on a  

meet ing  tha t  he  seems to  have had  w i th  –  tha t  day w i th  VR 10 

Laser  Serv i ces  where  he  was t ry ing  to  exp la in  to  them,  VR 

Laser,  tha t  th is  approach had  to  be  sub jec t  to  the 

Landward  Bus iness S t ra tegy.   Do you unders tand why he  

was exp la in ing  tha t  to  VR Laser  because they ’ re  ou ts ide  

the  Group,  i sn ’ t  i t  an  issue tha t  he  shou ld  have had w i th  Mr 

Ntshepe?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  th ink  a t  tha t  s tage,  and I  don ’ t  want  

to  pu t  words in to  Mr  S teyn ’s  mouth ,  I  th ink  he  was ve ry  

much aware  tha t ,  th rough the  VR Laser  channe l  i t  –  there 

is  feedback in to  the  Execut ive  leve l  in  Dene l .   What  I  was 20 

re fer r i ng  to  in  th i s  paragraph is  –  and i t ’s  suppor ted  by  the  

emai ls  tha t  I  a t tached here to ,  i s  where  Mr  S teyn exp la ined 

to  Mr  van der  Merwe tha t  we cannot  jus t  en te r  in to  an  

agreement  and say,  okay we ’ re  go ing  to  g ive  you some o f  

the  work ,  we are  a  bus iness,  we ’ve  go t  an  in tegra ted  



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 164 of 310 
 

bus iness p lan  tha t  we ’ve  prepared fo r  a  f i ve-year  per iod  

where  we commi t ted  tha t  we w i l l  g ive  a  ce r ta in  re turn  to  

our  shareho lde r.   I f  i t  i s  tha t  we need  to  change and take  

some o f  our  co re  capab i l i t y  and our  core  work  ou t  o f  our  

bus iness p lan  then we w i l l  have to  change ou r  bus iness  

p lan  and go back  to  the  Dene l  Board  who is  the  au thor i t y  

tha t  approves ou r  bus iness p lan ,  they then need  to  see 

what  i s  the  impac t  o f  us  tak ing  ou t  our  bus iness,  ou t  o f  our  

own bus iness p lan  and they need to  au thor ise  i t .  So,  th is  i s  

the  reason why we kept  on  –  o r  they kept  on  re fe r r ing ,  i t  10 

needs to  be  approved by  the  Board  because the  Board  

needs to  see the  impact ,  f inanc ia l l y,  what  i t  w i l l  mean to  

the  DVS bus iness i f  we take  the  bus iness tha t  r i gh t fu l l y  

be longs then to  DVS and we p lace i t  on  VR Laser.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now d id  Mr  S teyn or  van der  Merwe,  who 

was the  CEO of  DVS?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Mr  S teyn.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  S teyn,  d id  he  ever  te l l  you  or  h i s  

team tha t  he  had conf ron ted Mr  Ntshepe and say,  bu t  I  

don ’ t  unders tand  what  you are  ask ing  us  to  do ,  te l l  me 20 

what  I  –  I  don ’ t  unders tand the  l og ic ,  why do we need to  

g ive  some bus iness to  these peop le  and i f  he  sa id  he  d id ,  

what  answer  was he g i ven because f rom what  you have 

sa id ,  i t ’s  c lear  you and the  team a t  DVS which  must  inc lude  

Mr  S teyn,  d idn ’ t  see the  need fo r  DVS to  g ive  some 
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bus iness to  VR Laser  bu t  d id  he  conf ron t  h im and say,  g ive  

me a  ra t iona l  reason,  I  don ’ t  unders tand why you want  us  

to  do  th is  and d id  he  g ive  h im any reason?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  cannot  answer  tha t  quest ion ,  what  I  

can answer  i s  tha t ,  cont inuous ly,  Mr  S teyn,  th rough 

cor respondence wh ich  is  added to  my a f f idav i t  and f rom 

our  bus iness we  cont inuous ly  conveyed to  DCO and Mr  

Ntshepe why th is  cannot  work .   So,  we re i te ra ted  why i t  

cannot  work ,  I  do  no t  bear  knowledge whether  he  asked,  

why must  we do th is .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  my quest ion  was whether  Mr  

S teyn eve r  repor ted  to  you tha t  he  had asked Mr  

Ntshepe…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You don ’ t  reca l l ?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  f rom what  you are  say ing ,  a re  you  

suggest ing  tha t  there  were  meet ings be tween yourse l ves 

f rom DVS or  some o f  you,  w i th  Mr  Ntshepe,  maybe o ther  

peop le ,  where  you d id  te l l  h im th is  o r…[ in tervenes] .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Where  we d id  te l l  h im th is  cannot  20 

work  fo r  our  bus iness?  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  a  meet ing .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  do  be l ieve ,  no t  where  I  was present  

bu t  I  do  be l ieve ,  i f  I  look  a t  the  cor respondence wh ich  I  

was cop ied  in  to ,  i t  does look  l i ke  there  have been 
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meet ings where  Mr  S teyn was present  and some o f  them 

where  Mr  Wesse ls  was a l so  p resent  where in  they exp la ined  

or  t r ied  to  exp la in  to  Mr  Ntshepe why th is  cannot  work  and 

does not  work  fo r  our  bus iness.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And there  is  no  ind ica t ion  tha t  he  had an  

answer  fo r  them,  a  proper  answer.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Not  to  my knowledge.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   On th is  po in t  may I  

take  you to  an  emai l  tha t  –  as  you po in t  ou t  i s  re fe r red  to  10 

in  your  a f f idav i t ,  can I  take  you p lease to  page 185 .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I ’ ve  go t  i t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I t ’s  re fe r red  to  as  Annexure  CG4.1 ,  I  

see in  your  a f f idav i t  you re fe r  to  CG4 but  i s  th is  the  CG4 

tha t  you ’ re  re fe r r i ng  to…[ in tervenes] .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cor rec t ,  thank you.   Now th is  i s  an  

emai l  –  l e t ’s  leave as ide  the  top  sect ion  because i t  seems 

to  be  fo rwarded a t  a  la te r  s tage but  the  ac tua l  ema i l  s ta r ts  

about  a  th i rd  o f  the  way down,  do  you see under  in  bo ld  20 

pr in t  13  November,  then there ’s  a  l i t t le  tab le  wh ich  shows 

the  sub jec t  o f  the  person who ’s  send ing  i t  and date  and so  

fo r th ,  the  usua l  emai l  head ing?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  i s  sent  f rom Johan S teyn,  
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tha t ’s  your  CEO o f  DVS.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And i t ’s  addressed to  P ie t  K ruger.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Who was he?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    He was the  –  he  was f rom DVS and  

he was the  Opera t iona l  Execut ive .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay and then i t  re fe rs  to  yourse l f ,  i s  

tha t  r igh t ,  Co le t te  Ge ldenhuys?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Percy  Indaba  a lso  a  DVS co l league?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    A lso ,  a  DVS co l league,  he  was,  a t  

tha t  s tage,  I  be l ieve  the  Genera l  Manager  o f  Gear  Rat io  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  and then,  i s  i t ,  RP du P less is ,  

was cop ied  in?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  cor rec t ,  he  was the  D i rec to r  o f  

P rog rammes and IT a t  DVS.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A t  DVS?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So ,  he  was on the  DVS Board?  20 

MS GELDENHUYS:    Execut ive  team,  so  bo th  Kruger,  

myse l f ,  Indaba and du P less i s  was pa r t  o f  the  DVS 

Execut ive  team.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  then  i t ’s  a lso  cop ied  to  Johan 

Wesse ls .  
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MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    He was the  Group COO,  a t  the  t ime,  

i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So ,  he  wasn ’ t  work ing  w i th in  DVS,  he  

was above tha t  a t  head o f f i ce .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A t  Group  leve l  repor t ing  to  Mr  

Ntshepe?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t  and then who ’s  the  o ther  

person,  Odwa Mh lwana?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Odwa Mhlwana,  Obo was  a t  tha t  

s tage the  ac t ing  CEO of  Dene l  a f te r  Mr  Sa loogee and 

Nt lon ts lo  …[? 17 .58]  were  suspended.   I  need to  say tha t  

Odwa came wi th  us  f rom BAE Systems.  So,  there  was a  

c lose ,  a t  th is  s tage,  a  ve ry  c lose  re la t ionsh ip  be tween us  

because i t  was one o f  our  co l leagues tha t  was now pu l led  

up  to  head o f f i ce .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So ,  a l though,  he  was a  b i t  d is tan t  20 

now in  a  sense tha t  he  was e lsewhere  w i th in  the  Group,  no  

longer  in  the  DVS…[ in tervenes] .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  Cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You s t i l l  had tha t  h is to r i ca l  

connect ion?  
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MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now th is  appears  to  be  a  

repor t  back f rom Mr  S teyn about  a  meet ing .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    He re fe rs  –  he  says,  

“Apo log ies  fo r  the  lengthy  emai l ,  I  go t  s tuck  on  the 

RG21 on my way back to  the  o f f i ce  f rom DCO.   Due 

to  the  urgency o f  the  mat te r  th is  cannot  wa i t  un t i l  

Monday” ,  

 So as  fa r  as  you,  as  an  Execut ive  team,  w i th in  DVS 10 

were  concerned,  was th is  v iewed as  someth ing  s ign i f i can t  

and impor tan t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  i t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then he says ,  

 “Fo l lowing Zwelakhe ’s  [? ]  request  two weeks ago” ,  

 I s  tha t  Zwelakhe Ntshepe?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  

“To  fo rmal ise  an  ag reement  w i th  VRL fo r  the  

fabr ica t ion  o f  our  hu l l s  in  fu tu re ,  severa l  20 

in te rac t ions take  p lace between DVS and VRL to 

s ta r t  the  process.   Eva lua te  VRL’s  capab i l i t y.   

Look ing  in to  the  negat ive  e f fec t  o f  such an 

agreement  on  ou r  fabr ica t ion  workshops,  recover ies  

e tce te ra ,  I  had a  fo l low-on meet ing  w i th  Zwelakhe,  
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Jan  and Odwa yeste rday on the  progress and next  

s teps” .  

 He seems to  be  say ing ,  we rece ived th is  ins t ruc t ion ,  

we ’ re  t ry ing  to  dea l  w i th  i t  and take  i t  fo rward ,  one o f  the  

th ings we have to  look  a t  i s  the  negat ive  e f fec t  tha t  such  

an agreement  wou ld  have on our  bus iness.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    D id  you unders tand there  to  be  some 

in te rac t ion  be tween Mr  S teyn,  who was the  head  o f  the  

Execut ive  o f  DVS wi th  h is  super io rs  a t  head o f f i ce?  10 

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Ac t ing  Group CEO,  Group COO and  

CFO?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t  and then he says,  

“A t tached,  a  few s l ides  or ig ina l l y  d ra f ted  by  Jan,  

updated fo l low ing the  meet ing  yeste rday to  

i l l us t ra te  our  in ten t  and  c la r i f y ing  cu r ren t  

oppor tun i t ies  fo r  VRL.  Zwelakhe asked tha t  Jan and 

I  meet  w i th  VRL today and share  th is  w i th  them,  20 

P ie ter  van de r  Merwe,  the  CEO”.  

That ’s  VR Laser ’s  CEO,  is  tha t  r igh t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Then he says ,  

“A t  our  meet ing ,  Jan and I  exp la ined tha t  DVS has a 
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fabr ica t ion  capab i l i t y ” ,  

 Now is  tha t  conf i rm ing what  you sa id  ear l ie r,  you  

cou ld  make these  th ings in -house?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Abso lu te ly.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    “And tha t  we are  requ i red  to  run  pre -  

p roduct ion  p i lo t  fabr i ca t ion  to  indust r ia l i se  hu l l s  o f  

spec i f i c  veh ic les .  P re-product ion  quant i t ies  can  

vary  depend ing  on customer  requ i rements  e t ce tera .   

Then the  next  l ine ,  in  the  end we agreed tha t  a  

more  appropr ia te  way to  approach  an ag reement  i s  10 

to  use the  DLS/VRL agreement ” ,  

 That ’s  the  DLS,  tha t ’s  you r  s is te r  en t i t y  –  we l l  

you ’ re  a  separa te  company but  DLS was an opera t ing  

d iv is ion  o f  Dene l  i t se l f .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And so  the  ag reement  reached,  i t  

seems,  be tween Mr  S teyn,  Mr  Wesse ls  and Mr  N ts lon t lo   

w i th  VR Laser  i s  tha t ,  to  accommodate  the  concern  about  

the  g iv ing  o f  bus iness to  VR Laser,  desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  

DVS had an in -house capac i ty  was to  fo l low,  as  an  20 

example ,  anothe r  agreement  wh ich  had a l ready  been 

entered in to  by  DLS wi th  VRL?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And tha t  wou ld  be  to  –  yes,  end ing  

up w i th  a  Dene l  Landwards VRL agreement  exc lud ing  LMT.  
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“Jan ’s  request  i s  tha t  we dra f t  the  appropr ia te  

c lauses,  p r inc ip les  and potent ia l l y  amend the  

DLS/VRL agreement ,  incorpo ra te  the  DVS par t  and  

f ina l i se  i t  by  nex t  week Fr iday,  P ie ter  w i l l  fo rward  

the  ve rs ion” ,  

 And then the re ’s  d iscuss ion  about  Jan exp la in ing  

how i t  wou ld  be  done by  way o f  Dene l  Board  o f  approva l  on  

the  7 t h  o f  December  then he says,  

“Th is  i s  the  background lead ing  up to  what  needs to  

be  done now.  1 .  F ina l i se  the  de ta i l  o f  fabr ica t ion  10 

work load over  the  budget  per iod ,  f i ve  years ,  based 

on our  cur ren t  budget ,  Percy  w i l l  comple te  th is .   2 .   

Ca lcu la te  the  negat ive  e f fec t  on  recover ies” ,  

 Now what  a re  the  recover ies  tha t  a re  re fer red  to  

there?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    So ,  we ’ve  go t  a  base l ine  fo r  the  

amount  o f  peop le  tha t  we ’ve  go t  and we have to  se l l  a  

cer ta in  amount  o f  veh ic les  or  p roduct ,  whatever  i t  i s  to  

cover  the  amoun t  o f  peop le  and  the  overhead cost  tha t  

we ’ve  go t .  So,  i f  we don ’ t  se l l  enough,  we have got  under  20 

recover ies  o r  we ’ve  go t  ove r  recover ies .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Okay,  and then 3 ,  a t  the  top  of  page 

186 is ,  

“The next  s tep  is  to  d ra f t  the  add i t iona l  c lauses  

requ i red  to  cover  DVS’s  pa r t  in  the  cur ren t  DLS/VRL 
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agreement  to  inc lude the  pr inc ip les  and out l ine  ve ry 

h igh  leve l  on  the  las t  s l ide ,  herewi th  some 

gu idance” ,  

 So,  he ’s  g iv ing  you some po in ters  as  to  what  you  

shou ld  do  i n  d ra f t ing  the  c lauses based on the  DLS 

agreement  w i th  VR Laser,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And one o f  them is  in ,  

“a )  Other  than in  the  DLS case the  preamble  shou ld  

inc lude the  fac t  tha t  DVS has  a  wor ld  c lass  10 

fabr ica t ion  fac i l i t y  capab i l i t y.   DVS requ i res  a  h igh 

qua l i t y  hu l l  fabr ica t ion  supp ly  depar tment  to  

manufac ture  hu l l s  fo r  p roduct ion  tha t  meets  the  

requ i rements  o f  Government ’s  B lack  Indust r ia l i s t  

P rog ramme in i t ia ted  by  DTI  and in  ou r  op in ion  VRL 

meets  such requ i rements ” ,  

 Now tha t  seems to  ra ise  two issues.   The one i s  

tha t  ment ion  wou ld  be  made tha t  DVS has i t s  own 

capab i l i t y  bu t  now needs somebody tha t  i s  a  top-c lass  

supp l ie r  o f  par t i cu la r  i tems.  Now,  had your  v iew changed or  20 

were  you persuaded tha t  DVS cou ldn ’ t  p rov ide  a l l  o f  th is  

in -house?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    No,  a t  tha t  s tage there  was –  and th i s  

i s  exact ly  what  he  re fer red  to ,  a  wh i te  paper,  i f  I  reca l l  

cor rec t l y,  about  B lack Indust r ia l i s t  P rogramme tha t  the 
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Government  w ished to  ro l l  ou t  and  i t  was then dec ided tha t  

we w i l l  use  th is  B lack  Indust r ia l i s t  P rogramme a t  leas t  as  

some sor t  o f  jus t i f i ca t ion  why we  are  en te r ing  i n to  th is  

agreement  because we can ’ t  jus t  fo l low the  DLS agreement  

because they say in  the i r  v iew they don ’ t  have the  

capab i l i t y  to  do  i t .   We’ve  go t  the  capab i l i t y,  we have to  

s ta te  tha t  we ’ve  go t  the  capab i l i t y  bu t  now you have to  

ra t iona l i se ,  i f  you ’ve  go t  the  capab i l i t y,  why i s  i t  tha t  you 

need to  ou tsource  i t  and th is  i s  the  best  and the  c lose  to  

ge t t ing  to  somewhere  where in  you  look then a t  the  B lack  10 

Indust r ia l i s t  P rog ramme.   I  have to  say I  know the re  were  

ta lks  about  i t ,  I  can ’ t  reca l l  the  de ta i l  o f  the  programme so  

unfor tunate ly,  I  can ’ t  comment  fu r ther  on  the  prog ramme.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You must  have been in  a  d i f f i cu l t  

pos i t ion  a t  DVS?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    We were  in  an  ex t remely  d i f f i cu l t  

pos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because i t  seems to  me tha t  you cou ld  

see tha t  there  was someth ing  un toward  in to  th is  who le  

th ing .   You had d iscomfo r t  assoc ia t ing  yourse l ves w i th  i t ,  20 

you had d iscomfor t  be ing  par t y  to  any agreement  tha t  

wou ld  g i ve  VR Laser  some bus iness in  these c i r cumstances 

where  you were  sa t is f ied  you had a l l  the  capac i ty  to  do  the  

work  tha t  you were  do ing  but  a t  the  same t ime you seem to  

have had some p ressure  and you had to  t ry  and wa lk  qu i te  



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 175 of 310 
 

a  t igh t  rope between hav ing  to  incur  the  wra th  o f  your  top  

leaders  and –  or  lose  your  bus iness,  your  core  bus iness,  

you had to  t ry  and say,  how do we s t r i ke  a  ba lance and  

s t i l l ,  no t  do  what  seems to  us  to  be  wrong but  a t  the  same 

t ime,  s t i l l  be  there  or  no t  lose ,  does tha t  re f lec t ,  more  or  

less  what  you th ink  your  s i tua t ion  was?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I t  was def in i te ly  what  our  s i tua t ion  

was in  –  h inds igh t  i s  a lways a  pe r fec t  sc ience but  when we  

were  in  the  happen ings,  I  th ink  t he  bus iness ra t iona le  fo r  

th is  does not  make sense fo r  us .   We are  an  o ld  bus iness,  10 

we know what  we  do,  we ’ve  shown pro f i t s ,  we are  good on 

what  we are  do ing .  I t  does not  make bus iness sense fo r  us  

to  g ive  our  bus iness away to  anybody e lse .   Tha t  was a  

b igger  d r i ve  fo r  us  than whether  i t  was VR Laser,  whethe r  

i t  was fo r  DLS,  whether  i t  was LMT,  the  dr ive  fo r  us  i s ,  why  

must  we g i ve  ou r  bus iness away.  So,  a t  tha t  s tage  the  b ig 

–  the  red  f lags  was def in i te ly  on  our  leve l ,  no t  what  we 

know now i t  was  more ,  why do we – bus iness p r inc ip les ,  

th is  does not  make sense.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  i t  was based on your  20 

assessment  o f  your  bus iness?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Abso lu te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  say we don ’ t  need to  do  tha t  bu t  

obv ious ly  i f  somebody keeps on say ing  do  i t  and you can ’ t  

unders tand why,  your  thoughts  have got  to  s ta r t  wonder ing .  
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MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Ms Geldenhuys so  

th is  emai l  cor respondence tha t  we ’ve  jus t  looked a t  wasn ’ t  

cop ied  in to  Mr  Ntshepe,  acco rd ing  to  the  emai l  address l i s t  

bu t  i t  was cop ied  in to  Mr  Wesse ls  as  COO,  Group COO.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That ’s  co r rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And he repor ted  to  Mr  Ntshepe,  then  

ac t ing  Group CEO.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  so  bo th  Mr  Wesse ls ,  Mr  Mhlwana 10 

and Mr  S teyn repor ted  to…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Mr  Mhlwana as  we l l?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A t  Group head o f f i ce  leve l?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  now jus t  –  the  s l ide  

presenta t ion  tha t  he ’s  re fe r red  to  in  the  emai l ,  i s  tha t  the 

se t  o f  th ree  s l ides  tha t  we see,  o r  four  s l ides  tha t  we see.  

MS GELDENHUYS:  That is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And what  did this – did this depict  what 20 

the object ive was for th is landward – landward object ive to 

incorporate the VR Laser that  they had in mind 

MS GELDENHUYS:   According to Mr Steyn yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MS GELDENHUYS:   So this was very high level  i t  was not  on 
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the execut ive level  of  the business discussed or – i t  was for 

informat ion for us.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   Now to the extent  that  an emai l  

ear l ier suggested that  i f  you fol lowed the V – sorry the DLS 

single source supply – s ingle supply agreement wi th VR 

Laser that  that  might  somehow br ing i t  wi th in the landward 

st rategic object ive of  Denel  to t ry and keep things in-house.   

In your  view would i t  –  was that  possible – was that  

feasib le? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Just  repeat  the quest ion please. 10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Just  – sorry I  am – I  was not  very c lear.   

You gave evidence ear l ier about  th is landward strategic 

pol icy.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  Denel  board had al ready adopted.   

They brought in what was previously owned by BAE.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  then became DVS your company.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   They al ready had a – thei r  own 20 

capaci ty and other div is ions as wel l .  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And they had bought a major i ty  

control l ing share in LMT.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   And al l  of  your ent i t ies and businesses 

had certain core capabi l i t ies.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And capaci t ies and in your case that  

included as part  of  your core business the abi l i ty to 

manufacture hul ls  of  armoured vehicles.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Correct .  And you said ear l ier the 

st rategic object ive was to t ry and enhance the in-house 

capabi l i ty.  10 

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MS GELDENHUYS:   I  – I  a lso just  want to say the – the 

di rect ion or the st rategic intent  i t  changed qui te of ten.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MS GELDENHUYS:   So – so I  would not  know at  th is stage 

what i t  was;  where i t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   Whether i t  was let  us consol idate and 

be one company and we br ing you in and we divis ional ised 20 

you whether you going to  stay on your  own but  we just  going 

to manage.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   Whether i t  was very f lu id.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes you test i f ied ear l ier that  how i t  
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would be achieved would be something that  would st i l l  

developed.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  at  th is stage were you under at  

least  the understanding that  that  broad object ive was st i l l  in  

place? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes i t  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   But  there was also an understanding 

that  there was a st rategic agreement that  was being entered 10 

into a VR Laser.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MS GELDENHUYS:  For what I  do not  know.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  am real ly just  asking… 

MS GELDENHUYS:   For the bigger – for the bigger  part  of  

the business.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   yes.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   I  mean we knew we did not  understand 

for  our part  of  the business why we need to do i t  so the 

rat ionale why i t  was there for the bigger part  of  the business 20 

was they have shared wi th us.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   But  that  – what I  am suggest ing 

to you and just  ask you to comment  on one way of  looking at  

i t  perhaps is that  i f  you have an object ive that   t r ies to keep 

in-house i t  does not  make sense to go out  of  the Denel ’s 
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d iv is ions and companies.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Including DVS to now start  get t ing 

some of  your core business done by VR Laser.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   No i t  does not .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is – do you share that  concern? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Or do I  express – do I  summarise what  

your concern was? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   I t  is 100% correct  because i f  we would 10 

have done that  i t  would have meant that  DVS would have 

ended up in a systems house and not  wi th the manufactur ing 

capabi l i ty and that  was not  what  our main business was.   

Our main business was physical ly manufactur ing.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   May I  ask you then p lease Mr 

Geldenhuys to turn to page 191.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   The emai l  hal f  way down seems to be 

an emai l  f rom the 13 November 2015.  And i t  appears to  

come from – is i t  f rom Mr Steyn to Mr – f rom Mr Steyn yes? 20 

Is that  r ight? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i t  seems to be addressed in  

conf idence to Jan that  Wessels and Odwa that  is Mr 

Mhlont lo.  
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MS GELDENHUYS:   No Mhlwana.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  beg your pardon Mhlwana yes.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   I  beg your pardon.   And 

then Mr – I  do not  want to go through al l  of  th is but  you have 

ment ioned this in  your aff idavi t  as being an emai l  that  Mr 

Steyn shared wi th you to show that  he had expressed 

concerns wi th Mr Wessels and Mr Mhlwana, is that  r ight? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   And then i f  we look at  the top 10 

emai l  that  is f rom Jan Wessels back to Mr Steyn again thei r  

col league – or Mr Wessels’ col league Mr Mhlwana was 

copied in and i t  is headed Pi t fa l ls and concerns fabr icat ion 

outsourcing to be VRL.  And then he says:  

“Refer my emai l  response to your ear l ier 

wider emai l  that  is the best  response – 

approach I  can advise.   Present  sober and 

professional  del ta  business impact  plus and 

minus of  such potent ia l  scenario to board 7 

December that  is  why no decision can be 20 

f inal ised before that  point  when shareholder  

made his choice.   Important  to quant i fy every 

parameter fa i r ly and object ively,  the p lusses 

and the minus del tas and doing so not  to  be 

seen against  change in pr inciple though. ”  
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Now what did you under – i f  I  may just  ment ion Mr Wessels 

himsel f  has been providing evidence to the commission but  I  

just  want to ask you f rom your d iscussions wi th Mr Steyn and 

your col leagues in execut ive management at  DVS what did  

you understand was happening between Mr Steyn and Mr 

Wessels? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   So… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Was Mr Steyn rais ing concerns along 

the l ines that  you have raised wi th the Chai rperson today? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   With his col league who was his 

superior in the group Mr Wessels.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And his col league a lso h is super ior Mr 

Mhlant la.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   Mhlwana.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Ms Mhlwana I  beg your pardon.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  do beg your pardon.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct  and then the – the 20 

coming back yet  again we were new in the groups so Mr Jan 

Wessels was the COO. 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   So Mr Steyn at  that  stage leaned qui te 

on him because i t  was guiding into the group.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Ja.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   As the COO I  mean with him as wel l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   And Johan kept  rais ing the concerns 

that  we have got .   We have draf ted l ists;  we have 

calculat ions;  we showed what  our concerns is  and then Jan I  

do bel ieve that  he t r ied as wel l  to convince Mr Ntshepe that  

th is is not  the r ight  and you wi l l  see i t  f rom the emai ls that  

th is is not  the same scenario  as the VR – DLS scenario 

because they do not  have capaci ty  or capabi l i ty to do hul l  10 

manufactur ing and that  i t  cannot be seen as exact ly the 

same that  Mr Wessels eventual ly  said wel l  the best  th ing 

that  you can do now is the board needs to decide.   You wi l l  

have to te l l  the board what is the impact  of  th is agreement.   

I f  you enter into this type agreement what is the impact?  

You wi l l  show i t  in your  business case and your business 

plan for the next  f ive years on the board meet ing that  was 

scheduled for the 7 December and then the board needs to  

decide what is  i t  that  they want to do.   Does the board want 

you to enter into an agreement l ike this or not? 20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MS GELDENHUYS:   Th is is what  I  understand f rom this 

emai l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Thank you.   And then I  would 

l ike to refer again to the emai l  f rom Johan Steyn to Mr 
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Wessels and Mr Mhlwana at  the foot  of  th is page 191.   We 

deal t  wi th that  but  what I  am interested in is the fol lowing 

page immediately af ter  the heading or the conclusion 

regards Johan.   There is  a  heading Fabricat ion outsourcing 

considerat ions in my copy I  assume that  everybody has the 

same copy – colour i t  is in brown, l ight  brown or tan.   And 

there are 15/16 points that  are considerat ions relat ing to the 

outsourcing of  fabr icat ion.   Who do you understand these to  

be considerat ions – who do you understand to be the person 

l ist ing these considerat ions? 10 

MS GELDENHUYS:   So… 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Was that  Mr Steyn or who? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   So how this  l ist  came about was Mr 

Steyn requested mysel f ,  Abr ie Du Plessis,  Piet  Kruger and 

Percy Ndaba to bra instorm i f  we go through this agreement 

what the impact  would be on our business.   And th is was – 

we had off  s i te  st rategic session and we just  in 10/15 

minutes compi led this l ist  to ind icate what we see as the 

execut ive team or  a core part  of  the execut ive team why this  

agreement would be problemat ic.   And you wi l l  then see in  20 

the emai l  on the previous page where he then actual ly 

informed Mr Wessels and Mr Mhlwana that  th is agreement  

was draf ted by his team and there was no inf luence f rom his 

side.   I  th ink i t  – at  th is stage i t  must  be said that  Mr Steyn 

was now obviously at  th is  stage seen in the group as being 
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b locking al l  the agreements because he just  did not  – he 

kept  on coming back and saying no this cannot happen, th is 

cannot happen.  So i t  was seen or  i t  was – he was seen and 

most  probably then the execut ive team have – of  DVS was 

seen as being a – a l i t t le rock in somebody’s shoes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay i f  we can look at  – as you point  

out  the emai l  i tse l f  refers to what you have said about him 

not  g iv ing the input  i t  was f rom a col lect ive team effort .   I  am 

back at  page 191.   Emai l  at  the bot tom and the f i rst  sentence 

– f i rst  paragraph:  10 

“At  our exec team off  s i te ear ly th is week I  

asked Abr ie,  Piet ,  Percy and Carene – 

Carene that  is yoursel f ,  correct?”  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    

“To form a smal l  team and brainstorm al l  the 

issues/angles concerns wi th respect  to  

outsourcing our fabr icat ion work.   Below an 

unedi ted version of  the l ist  I  have received 

an hour ago.   We wi l l  use this l ist  to ensure 20 

we cover most  of  the potent ia l  p i t fa l ls in  the 

agreement wi th VRL.  Most  notably of  i t  a l l  is  

the general  v iew not  inf luenced by me that  

th is would not  be the r ight  th ing to do.”  

Right  th ing to do f rom whose perspect ive? 
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MS GELDENHUYS:   From DVS’s perspect ive.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   From DVS’s perspect ive and then he 

puts in brackets i tems 1 and – i tem 1 and 2 and then he puts 

four explanat ion – exclamat ion marks I  beg your pardon.   

Then i f  we go to look at  i tems 1 and 2 on your l ist  at  page 

192.   The f i rst  two i tems are:  

“DVS wi l l  lose a core competency a real  

compet i tor wi l l  be created.”  

Was this is a ser ious concern on your part  and your 

col leagues part? 10 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Absolutely.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   And then 3  

“The outsourcing of  a l l  fabr icat ion wi l l  rob 

DVS of  the opportuni ty to develop fabr icat ion 

QSE’s and EME’s for a purpose of  

empowerment. ”  

What is QSE’s and EME’s? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   I t  is micro enterpr ises and qual i f ied 

enterpr ises.   I t  is  part  of  the – the BBBEE score card and 

how you develop.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MS GELDENHUYS:   The industry.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MS GELDENHUYS:   As wel l  as previous disadvantaged 

individuals.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   What about  the possible counter 

argument that  wel l  i f  you giving i t  to VR Laser i f  they have 

black empowerment credent ia ls are you not  achieving the 

same thing? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Ja but  I  do not  th ink that  they were – or 

they were the qual i f ied enterpr ises or the micro enterpr ises.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  see.   And then the fourth point .   Hul l  –  

I  am sorry.  

“Hul l  fabr icat ion is cr i t ica l  for protect ion and 

the accountabi l i ty  and reputat ional  r isk wi l l  10 

remain wi th DVS but  the responsibi l i ty wi l l  be 

wi th another party. ”  

Just  explain that  to us please? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   So when he is referr ing to protect ion.   

He is referr ing to landmine protect ion.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MS GELDENHUYS:   So the fabr icat ion of  the hul l  is cr i t ical  

for landmine protect ion and the accountabi l i ty wi l l  remain 

wi th us but  the responsibi l i ty to ensure that  there is landmine 

protect ion is now outsourced to another party.   So we wi l l  20 

take the r isk but  we are not  100% in cont rol  of  the r isk.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So you would be accountable? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I f  for example soldiers are blown up in 

a – in an unsafe armoured vehicle you would have to be 
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accountable but  you have not  manufactured i t .   You have got 

somebody to do i t  and you… 

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You leaving i t  to them to achieve the 

standard.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   Thank you.   And then – and then 

I  am not  going to  deal  wi th al l  of  the other issues but  I  just  

want to highl ight  a few.  

7.  Consider PFMA requi rement.   That  is the Publ ic Finance 10 

Management Act  that  an ent i ty must  preserve and protect  i ts  

IP and capabi l i ty.  

And then highl ighted in yel low Carene to check.  

That  is yoursel f .  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   And then the other point  that  I  

would highl ight  is paragraph 10 Ret renchment or real locat ion 

of  current  resources in fabr icat ion must  be considered.   So 

one of  the var ious other i tems that  you were concerned 

about is that  there could be impl icat ions for having to  20 

ret rench people who were employed in fabr icat ion in  the in-

house capabi l i ty i f  no longer were they doing the fabr icat ion.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Do I  understand you correct ly? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Thank you.   Now I  would l ike you to go 

to another  chain of  emai ls that  we f ind immediately  fo l lowing 

that  that  is page 193 to 195.   Let  us start  at  the emai l  in 

November on page 194 f rom Jan Wessels 17 November 2015 

that  is an emai l  f rom Mr Wessels to  Mr Ntshepe.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   What page is that  – I  heard 193? 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sorry Chair  194.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   About a th i rd of  the page down you see 10 

f rom Jan Wessels sent  on Tuesday November 17,  2015.   You 

with me Ms Geldenhuys? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes I  am.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And i t  appears and I  am not  going to go 

through this al l  but  i t  appears that  Mr Wessels was rais ing 

some of  the concerns that  had been ra ised by Mr Steyn.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And he refers to a meet ing on the 13 

November which had included Mr Van Der Merwe f rom VRL 

and Mr Steyn and Mr Wessels himsel f .   And then he says – 20 

do you see a number of  bu l let  points? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes in fact  before we get  that .   I  th ink I  

should read into the record i f  I  may Chair  the next  sentence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    

“ I  have to repeat  again that  the process and 

complexi ty d i ffers f rom when DLS appointed 

VRL as preferred single source hul l  

fabr icator.   DLS had no in-house capabi l i ty  

anyway and used a var iety  of  outsourced 

fabr icators f rom now with DVS with DVS 

having a strong in-house capabi l i ty which 

needs to be converted in an opt imal  way.”  

Am I  r ight  in understanding he was ra is ing the point  that  you 10 

have gone into some detai l  w i th the Chai r  to say in DLS’s 

case they did not  have an in-house capabi l i ty so i t  might  

make sense to have an outside provider on a s ingle source 

basis being VR Laser.   But  you were di fferent .   Here DVS as 

opposed to DLS had i ts own in-house capaci ty so why 

contract  i t  out? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is he referr ing to the same point  as 

yours? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Exact ly.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   A l r ight  thank you.   And then he says:  

“The fol lowing were discussed in  detai l  on 

Fr iday the 13 November at  the meet ing.”  

And again Chair  I  am not  going to go through everything but  

just  focus on a few.  
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“The model o f  st rategic cooperat ion 

envisaged between DVS and VRL in the 

context  that  DVS has a big in-house 

fabr icat ion capabi l i ty including people,  

faci l i t ies,  inf rast ructure that  wi l l  need to be 

migrated to VRL part ia l ly or fu l ly when and 

agreement is reached. ”  

Again i t  seems to be rais ing at  least  some of  the points that  

you have also ment ioned as problem areas that  – that  rang 

some alarm bel ls.  10 

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then there is reference to  

“Discreet  programs, pract ical i t ies,  t imel ines 

and then the f i f th bul let  point  is  

acknowledged by both sides that  the DVS 

business plan budget for 2016/2017 plus four 

years wi l l  be affected.   DVS becomes more 

of  a systems company than a manufacturer. ”  

Did you understand that  that  was where DVS would be 

heading i f  i t  entered into this  agreement  wi th  VR Laser 20 

where a lot  of  your core business was now – was 

manufactur ing which was now to be done by VR Laser? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   And i t  says:  

“As such Denel  board wi l l  have to sign off  the 
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partnership by vi r tue of  approving the 

rev ised budget. ”  

And then he refers to the way forward  

“A draf t  b inding agreement  wi l l  be 

constructed and then i t  w i l l  be referred to  

var ious part ies etcetera. ”  

Now – so – and then we get  a response f rom Mr Ntshepe at  

the top of  th is page but  can we start  at  the foot  of  page 193 

where we just  see in the last  three l ines – do you see f rom 

Zolake Ntshepe? 10 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Sent  on the 17 November at  8:44 am to 

Mr Wessels copied in Mr Mhlwana as wel l  as Stephan B and 

Johan Steyn and this is what he says:  

“Hi  Jan your emai l  is too long and as you 

usual ly say some of  the issues you put  on…” 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry – I  am sorry Mr Kennedy I  have 

lost  you.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  is the top of  page 194 l ine 3 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh the top – the top one.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So this is an emai l  f rom Mr Ntshepe 

replying to the lengthy and detai led emai l  that  Mr Wessels 

had sent  him rais ing inter al ia the concerns about the impact  
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th is would have on DVS’s core business.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay.   So Mr Ntshepe comes back wi th  

a very br ief  emai l  he says:  

“Hi  Jan your emai l  is too long and as you 

usual ly say some of  the issues you put  on 

paper can be d iscussed.   You forgot  to  

ment ion that  I  showed you Johan Odwa and 

now a Stephan I  am not  sure exact ly what  

that  means a let ter coming f rom the chairman 10 

instruct ing me to div is ional ise and opt imise 

DVS and DLS and show savings whi lst  the 

process is being carr ied through.   I  have 

asked Johan and Stephan to do just  that  

because we were taking too long to come to 

a f inal  conclus ion on this  matter.   Th is 

process would of  course involve you as a 

thi rd independent  party.   We are required to  

present  a plan for the board and I  have 

asked Stephan to take the lead on this. ”  20 

Were you made aware of  th is response f rom Mr Ntshepe? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes we were.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   We see that  he cr i t ic ises Mr Wessels 

f i rst ly for being too long in  the – in his emai l  and secondly 

for rais ing issues that  perhaps require rather discussion 
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presumably not  discussion by emai l  but  face to face and then 

he – the rest  of  h is emai l  seems to be saying he is under 

pressure f rom the chai rperson to make st ructural  changes 

wi thin Denel  and the matter  was accordingly urgent .   Were 

you aware that  – whether Mr Ntshepe and th is emai l  or  

anywhere else actual ly got  to gr ips wi th g iv ing a response of  

substance to the concerns that  Mr Wessels had raised in his 

emai l  concerning for example the impact  on DVS’s core 

business being taken away? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   No I  am not  aware.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And that  was one of  the concerns that  

you had raised that  then went  to  Mr Steyn,  that  then went to  

Mr Wessels and Mr Wessels then was conveying i t  by way 

his emai l  below the one that  we have just  looked at .  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you know whether the reference to 

chairman in that  emai l  is reference to the chai rman of  the 

Denel  board? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   I t  is indeed.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Corporate.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   I t  is indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And at  that  t ime who was that? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Mr Mant la.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Mantsha? 
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MS GELDENHUYS:   Mantsha yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   So this  is  not  a  reference to the 

chairperson of  the DVS board? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  is a chai rperson of  the Denel  SOC 

Limited board SOC Limited board to whom Mr Ntshepe 

reported.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   As Group CEO.  Was that  your 10 

understanding? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes you must just  th ink i t  through careful ly  

because there are boards for di fferent  ent i t ies and then there 

is the overal l  board for Denel  … 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   SOC. 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes so… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes SOC. 

MS GELDENHUYS:   So this was talk ing to  the Denel  SOC 20 

board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And the chai rman of  that  board.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   The chairman of  that  board.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   What I  understand f rom this emai l  was 
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what  happened was that  Mr Ntshepe indicated that  the 

chairman said DVS must  be d iv is ional ised meaning we 

cannot be a stand-alone business anymore we must be 

pul led into Denel  group and not  be a stand-alone company 

anymore and that  rea l  cost  savings must  be shown which I  

read between the l ines as a subt le threat  in i f  we need to 

show cost  savings you have got  two businesses,  the work is 

there but  the only th ing that  is dupl icated is the execut ive 

teams. So some of  the execut ives need to go that  is the real  

cost  saving.  He also then goes further when he said and 10 

Stephan wi l l  take the lead on this  which in effect  wi l l  then 

mean that  Mr Steyn’s author i ty level  is taken away f rom him 

and he is moving underneath Mr Stephan Burger f rom DLS.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right  thank you.   May I  then proceed to 

page 193.   That  is an emai l  –  i f  you look at  the tab le 

including subject  and who i t  comes f rom and to whom.  I t  is 

an emai l  sent  on the 20 November f rom Johan Steyn,  is that  

correct? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I t  is addressed to Mr Mhlwana, Mr 20 

Kruger,  Mr Du Plessis,  yoursel f  Ms Geldenhuys and Mr 

Ndaba and copied in Stephan Magabolo.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And what Mr Steyn says is th is:  

“Al l  s ince Zwelake surpr is ing instruct ion 
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g iven to me a few weeks ago to enter into an 

agreement wi th VRL we have made good 

progress.”  

Now did you understand Zwelaki  to mean Mr Ntshepe and d id 

you understand the inst ruct ion to mean that  you must  

proceed with the single source supply agreement wi th VR 

Laser? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Did he explain to you why or did you 

understand why that  instruct ion was – came as a surpr ise to 10 

Mr Steyn?  Was i t  the point  that  your raised ear l ier? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Because i t  was not  dr iven by our  

business.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Yes.   And then he cont inues we have 

made good progress wi th Jan Wessels’ help and overs ight .   

We had several  d iscussions wi th VRL and DCO about th is.  

DCO meaning? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Denel  Corporate Off ice.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Corporate Off ice that  is head off ice? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Headed by Mr Wessels report ing to Mr 

Ntshepe? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .   The process evolved mainly  

around OMC – what is that? 



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 198 of 310 
 

MS GELDENHUYS:   So i t  is stands for Ol i fant  Manufactur ing 

Company.   I t  is an old legacy name of  one of  the divis ions of  

DVS.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   I  see.   So mainly around that  div is ion’s  

fabr icat ion capabi l i ty how we protect  i t  not  to increase r isk in  

the business and we ut i l ise i t  in the future.   And then says 

he:   

“ I  had a br ief  review of  revision 3 at tached to 

the draf t  agreement wi th Jan Wessels and 

Stephan Burger yesterday at  DCO and both 10 

were happy wi th i t .   S ince Zwelake instructed 

Stephan to take the lead in th is see below 

emai l  f rom him he,  Stephan wi l l  now discuss 

and f inal ise this agreement wi th VRL.”  

Now Stephan Burger was the CEO of  DLS.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   At  that  stage.  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   But  the DLS a lready had i ts  own single 

source supply agreement wi th VR Laser? 20 

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is that  correct?  You were a separate – 

in fact  not  only a – not  a separate divis ion in fact  a separate 

company f rom DLS which was a div is ion of  Denel  i tse l f .  

MS GELDENHUYS:   That  is correct .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:   Is  that  correct .   What  did  you – do you 

have any comment or fee l ing about why suddenly now Mr 

Stephan Burger f rom a separate ent i ty is now becoming 

act ively involved in negot iat ing and f inal is ing the agreement 

wi th VR Laser? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Mr Steyn was res ist ing too much and his 

execut ive team.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Right .  

MS GELDENHUYS:   And l ike I  said ear l ier on in effect  h im 

and his execut ive team was moved one layer lower than the 10 

author i ty then that  s i ts wi th DLS.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Okay thank you.   And then i t  

cont inues.    

“ I  wi l l  keep you posted i f  and when I  get  

feedback. ”  

Am I  r ight  to read or do you also read into this a measure of  

unhappiness on the part  of  Mr Steyn that  he was not  

necessari ly being kept  in the loop? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   Ja I  def in i te ly  read i t  that  he wi l l  not  be 

part  of  d iscussions because he is resist ing too much.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:   Did he express that  to you Mr Steyn? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   I  cannot recal l  i t  was so many words.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   You cannot recal l .  

MS GELDENHUYS:   But  we al l  knew this is what is  

happening.  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    

“And then my understanding is  the Denel  

board approval  is  required before DCO can 

enter into this agreement.  See Jan’s emai l  

below.  We – that  is Jan,  Odwa and I  

d iscussed and agreed this wi th Zwelake last  

week so unt i l  then and af ter the agreement is  

s igned no – and unt i l  af ter the agreement is  

s igned in other  words no onward 

communicat ion please. ”  10 

What d id you understand that  to be instruct ing you to  do? 

MS GELDENHUYS:   So we have to wai t  for the board 

approval  and let  us f i rst  see i f  there is approval  before we 

communicate wi thin the business to the people in the 

business that  there is an agreement  being entered into.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:   And then his next  paragraph reads:  

“ I  pointed out  to Jan and Stephan yesterday 

that  we are making progress wi th determining 

the effect  of  th is agreement on the DVS 

business and that  i t  wi l l  completed soon. ”  20 

And then the f inal  paragraph I  wi l l  not  read out  that  seems to 

refer to his col leagues and superiors in relat ion to some of  

the f inancial  data.    

MS GELDENHUYS :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you.   I  am sorry Chai r.   May I  
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just  f ind the reference? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   I  just  need you to conf i rm.   There 

is a draf t  agreement at  page 196.   In fact ,  not  a  draf t .   This 

is a signed agreement.    

MS GELDENHUYS :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Were you involved in the draf t ing of  

th is agreement? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    No,  th is is the agreement between VR 

Laser and DLS.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    DLS? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Oh,  so that  was the one that  was 

actual ly concluded.  I t  seems at  pages 291 and 220 on the 

18t h or the 14t h and then the 18t h of  December 2015.   

MS GELDENHUYS :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  correct? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    Just  repeat  again,  please?  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    The signature was in December.   Page 

219.   The signatures happened on the 14t h and 20 

18t h of  December.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    Yes,  that  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  that  is,  as you pointed out ,  was the 

agreement between DLS as the . . . [ in tervenes]   

MS GELDENHUYS :    No.   You. . .  there. . .  the one agreement 
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starts on page 209.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am sorry.   I  beg your pardon.    

MS GELDENHUYS :    Correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you very much.  I  do beg your 

pardon Chai r.   I t  is actual ly at  page 203.   I t  is  what I  was 

looking for.   Thank you very much.  Is the 19t h of  May 2015.   

MS GELDENHUYS :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  correct? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    Ja.   So I  was not  part  of  th is 

agreement.  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    So this agreement starts on page 196 

which is wi th VR Laser and the DLS.  And I  was not  pr ivy to 

th is agreement.   I  was given this agreement af terwards.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  you were told to use that? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    As i t  were,  to copy . . . [ intervenes]   

MS GELDENHUYS :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    . . .and paste to do a simi lar agreement  

for . . . [ intervenes]   20 

MS GELDENHUYS :    Ja,  on that  basis.   Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And then the DVS agreement is f rom 

page 209.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Now apart  f rom the in i t ia l  
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draf t ing that  you were involved in.   Were you involved in the 

f inal isat ion of  the draf t ing of  th is agreement? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    Yes,  I  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    R ight .   And was that  according to 

instruct ions f rom anybody? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    Yes.   So we were then told to complete 

the agreement.   I t  was then given to DLS and some of  the 

senior people at  DLS, rev iewed the agreement as wel l .   And 

when they said they are happy wi th  the agreement,  we then 

concluded that  we are in a posi t ion for Johan Steyn to sign 10 

the agreement.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A lr ight .   And did he in fact  do that? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    I  bel ieve,  i f  I  recal l  correct ly,  that  VR 

Laser signed i t  f i rst .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    A lr ight .   Let  us just  take a look at  219.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    That  was the reference that  I  confuse 

mysel f  wi th ear l ier.   That  was the 14 t h of  December.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    S igned by Mr Van der  Merwe.  I  see 20 

there is a wi tness who has signed there  Geldenhuys.   Is that  

yoursel f?  

MS GELDENHUYS :    That  is but  I  was not  present  at  the 

signature.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  see.   And then on the fol lowing page 
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220,  i t  was signed in Pretor ia on the 18t h of  December by 

Mr Steyn.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Is that  your signature again as a 

wi tness? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    Yes,  and I  was present  here.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    You were present  th is t ime? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    How did i t  come about that  you signed 

as a wi tness? 10 

MS GELDENHUYS :    I  cannot recal l .   I  was now shocked 

when I  saw this.   [ laughing]  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    [ laughing]    

MS GELDENHUYS :    I  do not  know whether  I  maybe have 

signed on the wrong l ine.   I  do not  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And was this a binding one? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    This is  a b inding agreement .   Yes.   

[ laughing]    

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]    

MS GELDENHUYS :    But  not  a bind ing wi tness.   [ laughing]    20 

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughing]    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    [ laughing]   And does this  in fact  mi rror 

in substance the ear l ier agreement  between DLS and VRL?  

MS GELDENHUYS :    That  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    In the sense that  there was a 



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 205 of 310 
 

commitment by the Denel  ent i ty  to appoint  VR Laser,  

obviously for di fferent  th ings to do,  but  i t  was on a single 

source supply basis.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And what was the per iod? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    I t  was for a per iod of  ten years.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.   Simi lar to the DLS agreement,  

which was a lso for a per iod of  ten years,  correct? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    That  is correct ,  yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Right .   Did you and in fact . . .   Yes,  did 10 

you have any view on that  speci f ic point?  Leave aside 

whether the issue of  whether i t  was a good business 

decision to give away a lot  of  DVS’s core business to  an 

outsider.   Did you have any views as to whether  i t  was 

appropriate to enter into an agreement for ten years? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    I  cannot say that  we have given this a 

lot  of  thought.   At  th is stage,  we were so. . .  we t r ied 

everything . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You . . . [ intervenes]   

MS GELDENHUYS :    . . . to enter into this agreement.   We 20 

just . . .  we had a couple of  sentences that  would give us an 

out  but  we stopped the f ight .   We could not  proceed with i t  

anymore.   I  mean,  i t  ended up that ,  l ike I  said ear l ier on,  that 

the business was sort  of  rest ructured because we were 

res ist ing too much.   
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CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    So I  cannot te l l  you that  at  that  stage,  I  

even thought about  the durat ion of  the agreement because 

this is the agreement we are going to enter into.   We wi l l  

enter into i t  and we have given ourselves a caveat  in certain 

ci rcumstances,  we wi l l  not  proceed with th is agreement and 

let  us f ight  the f ight  when we get  there,  when we were 

supposed to place orders on VR Laser.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  th is agreement,  was i t  s igned af ter  

you have gone to the board,  Denel  Board?  Because I  heard 10 

ear l ier on the idea that  wel l  you would have to go and te l l  

the board and see what i t  says?  Had that  happened by the 

t ime this agreement was s igned? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    I  do not  know i f  i t  happened.   In the 

evidence i t  is that  Mr Steyn asked Mr Ntshepe i f  i t  indeed 

happened, i f  the board gave author i ty for us to proceed with  

the agreement.   And then in my pack there,  there is an emai l  

back f rom Mr Ntshepe that  said this is approved,  go ahead to 

sign the agreement.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  20 

MS GELDENHUYS :    So whether i t  happened in f ront  of  the 

board,  whether the board ever discussed i t ,  we bear now 

knowledge.   

CHAIRPERSON :    In terms of  the emai ls exchanged, i t  is not  

c lear whether when Mr Ntshepe said this is approved,  he 
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meant that  that  had been approved by the board or whether 

he meant as act ing Group CEO, he was approving i t?  

MS GELDENHUYS :    No,  I  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You cannot . . . [ intervenes]   

MS GELDENHUYS :    I  just  want to  look at  the emai ls again.   

I . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    The emai l  t ra i ls  speci f ical ly  referred to,  

there is a board meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  10 

MS GELDENHUYS :    Th is need to go to the board meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    What happened now.. .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    So i f  i t  was not  said physical ly.   Did the 

board approve i t?   I t  is def in i te ly al luding to i t  that  the board 

approved this.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Oh, okay al r ight .   Mr Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes,  thank you Chai r.   May I  just  have 

a moment?  I  have just  been drawn.. .  my at tent ion has just  20 

been drawn.  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No audible reply]   

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I f  I  can just  pick up a point  that  has 

just  been drawn to my at tent ion?  I f  we can go back for a 

moment to page . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    No,  maybe you are able to assist  me in 

terms of  the quest ion I  was asking? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Exact ly Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  am and I  hope to get  wi th the 

assistance Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay,  okay.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    But  just  before I  get  to the emai ls that  

Ms Geldenhuys has just  referred us to,  that  we wi l l  get  to.   

May I  just  ask to go back to page 194?  That  very br ief  emai l  10 

that  came f rom Mr Ntshepe.  Mr Ntshepe said,  page 194.   

Remember the emai l  that  said:  

“HI ,  Jan.   Your emai l  is too long.”  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    And as usual ,  he refers to  a let ter 

coming f rom the chairman, instruct ing to divis ional ise .   That ,  

of  course,  was not  an inst ruct ion f rom the board.   I t  seems to 

speci f ical ly approve the VR Laser contract .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Correct? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay but  now i f  I  can take you ahead 

to page 207? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    [No audible reply]   
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    You wi l l  see this is a t r ia l  of  emai ls.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  would l ike to start  at  the foot  of  the 

page.  The one f rom Mr Steyn on the 15t h of  December to  

Mr Ntshepe, copying in Mr Wessels and Mr Mhlwana.  You 

have i t?  

MS GELDENHUYS :    Yes,  these are the emai ls I  referred to  

ear l ier on,  to the Chai r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   Then what he says here.   Ja,  I  

th ink i t  is wi th reading i t  into the record Chai r.    10 

“ . . . fo l lowing your  inst ruct ions a few weeks ago to 

sign the agreement wi th VR Laser for DVS’s 

fabr icat ion work,  we had several  d iscussion wi th  

them, in i t ia l ly,  wi th Jan involved and recent ly wi th  

Stephan Burger.    

VRL how now signed the agreement at tached with  

minor adjustments of  the DLS, Stephan and Denise 

have reviewed i t  as wel l ,  DVS’s legal ,  Carene. . . ”  

 That  is yoursel f ,  is i t?  

MS GELDENHUYS :    That  is correct .  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

“ . . .a lso checked i t  f rom a legal  point  of  v iew.”  

 Now i f  I  can just  stop at  that  po int  just  to get  some 

clar i f icat ion.   His emai l ,  we note,  is dated the 

15t h of  December and we have noted a moment ago that  VR 
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Laser,  in fact ,  s igned i t  on the 14t h of  December.    

 So he seems to be referr ing to  the very agreement  we 

looked at  a moment ago.   To say to Mr Ntshepe:  VR Laser 

have al ready signed i t .    

MS GELDENHUYS :    That  is correct .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    With a few minor amendments.   And 

then to cont inue.   He says:  

“ I  am not  sure about the delegated author i ty in a 

case l ike this.   My informat ion is that  i t  needs board 

approval  or you might  want Fortune to review i t  but  I  10 

am not  sure. ”  

 So Wessels expressed ignorance about whether the 

board approval  is actual ly requi red,  al though he says he has 

told i t .   I t  seems to be requi red.   Who is the Fortune,  the 

person referred to  as Fortune there? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    Fortune was the Legal  Manager at  

Denel  Corporate off ice.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Corporate? 

MS GELDENHUYS :    Ja.   Unfortunately,  I  cannot remember 

or recal l  her surname.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Okay.   And then:  

“ I  am looking forward to your further  instruct ions.”  

 So he has updated Mr Tshepe to say the agreement  has 

now been signed by the other side.    

 That  there has been checking done by people l ike 
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yoursel f  to check that  i t  is legal ly okay.   And then he refers. . .  

but  he f lags the issue of  whether,  in  terms of  the delegat ion,  

board approval  is requi red.    

 And then the emai l  immediately above i t ,  comes f rom Mr 

Ntshepe back to mister. . .   addressed this t ime to Mr Steyn,  

copying in Mr Wessels and Mr Mhlwana.   

“Hi  Johan.  I t  is approved.   You can go ahead.”  

 So that  one-l iner  expresses. . .  i t  says that  i t  has been 

approved.   Are you aware whether  i t  had been approved at  

th is or at  any other stage by anyone other than Mr Ntshepe 10 

himsel f?  

MS GELDENHUYS :    No.   But  I  understood this to be,  there 

was a board meet ing and i t  is approved at  the board.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    The tone throughout the 

correspondence was,  i t  needs to  go to the board on the 

7t h of  December.   And this emai l  is af ter the 7 t h of  December.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

MS GELDENHUYS :    So whether the 7t h of  December,  th is 

board meet ing took place,  whether  th is was an agenda i tem 20 

on the board meet ing,  I  bear no knowledge.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You see,  what stands out  here is,  that  i t  

does not  answer the quest ion raised by Johan to say who 

has the author i ty  to approve this and because he says he 

thinks i t  is the board but  he says he is not  sure.    
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 So Mr Ntshepe does not  say:   Yes,  i t  is the board and 

the board has approved i t .   He says,  i t  is approved,  you can 

go ahead.   

 He gives himsel f  room later to say:   I  d id not  mean i t  had 

been approved by the board because i t  d id not  need the 

board approval ,  according to me.  I t  needed my approval  and 

I  granted the approval .    

 Or i f  the board had approved,  he might  say:   Wel l ,  the 

board had approved and I  was tel l ing him, he must  not  worry 

about  other th ings.   I t  has been approved by the board.   I t  is 10 

just  that  I  d id not  say so expressly.    

 But  the. . .   Ja,  the answer is not  categorical .   Of  course,  

the other emai ls that  you referred to,  where the. . .  which you 

were saying the board is going to have a meet ing and so on.    

 I t  may wel l  be that ,  when one looks at  that  whole emai l  

t r ia l ,  then one might  give his answer a certain meaning.    

Okay.    

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Now I  just  want to  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   We are at  f ive.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    How does i t  look l ike in terms of  how 

much t ime do we need? 

ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  hope about 30-minutes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You think we wi l l  f in ish at  hal f  past? 
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ADV KENNEDY SC :    I  hope so,  yes.   I  th ink that  is  

probable.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay alr ight .   Maybe let  us just  take a 

short  adjournment .   Maybe f ive minutes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ten minutes.   Maybe let  us say ten 

minutes because f ive minutes is going to f in ish whi le you are 

walking i f  you are going out .  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay let  us take a ten minute break and 10 

then we wi l l  come back.  

ADV KENNEDY SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  by  the  t ime o f  the  agreement  tha t  we 

are  ta lk ing  about  now,  the  b ind ing  one,  had the  ins t ruc t ion  

to  d iv is iona l i se  DVS been ca r r ied  ou t  o r  no t?  20 

MS GELDENHUYS:    I t  never  ac tua l l y  came to  f ru i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    So  we were  work ing  towards i t  bu t  i t  

d id  no t  come to  f ru i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Were  you work ing  towards i t  in  the  same 
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way you were  work ing  towards a  nonb ind ing  agreement?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    We were  lead ing  the  nonb ind ing  

agreement ,  somebody e lse  was  lead ing  the  – work ing  

towards d iv i s iona l i s ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   Yes,  Mr  Kennedy.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Cou ld  we tu rn  to  

page 159 o f  you r  a f f idav i t .    You dea l  there  in  pa ragraph 6  

to  the  next  few pages w i th  an  i tem tha t  you have headed 

the  ou tsourc ing  o f  the  40  outs tand ing  N35 hu l l s  to  VR 

Laser  and the  te rm inat ion  o f  the  Memorandum of  10 

Agreement .   Now is  tha t  the  te rm inat ion  o f  the  

Memorandum of  Agreement  we have jus t  been look ing  a t ,  

tha t  was conc luded in  December  2015? 

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .   Now can you jus t  –  I  do  no t  

p ropose,  Cha i r,  un less  you gu ide  me o therwise ,  to  go  in to 

the  de ta i l  o f  th is ,  th is  a f f idav i t  i s  there  fo r  the  Cha i r  to  

read.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   No,  no ,  you  do not  need to .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Can you jus t  sum 20 

up fo r  us  be fo re  we get  to  the  ac tua l  te rm inat ion  o f  the  

agreement ,  what  d id  these 40 ou ts tand ing  N35 hu l l s  and  

the i r  ou tsourc ing  to  VR Laser,  what  d id  they invo lve?   Were  

they hu l l s  covered by  the  ag reement  tha t  was conc luded,  

the  s ing le  source  supp ly  o r  was tha t  someth ing  separa te?  
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MS GELDENHUYS:    They wou ld  have been covered  by  the  

agreement  bu t  there  was more  than th is  40  hu l l s ,  i f  I  reca l l  

cor rec t l y,  and now I  m ight  be  wrong on the  amount  o f  

numbers .   We des igned th is  veh ic le  and then we bu i l t  30 

preproduct ion  un i ts .   Now par t  o f  the  –  you reca l l  tha t  we  

sa id  tha t  there  is  p i lo t  runs tha t  needs to  happen before  

you can outsource  your  fabr i ca t i on  so  tha t  you get  to  a  

cer ta in  matur i t y  leve l .   We bu i l t  the  veh ic les  in -house to  

ge t  to  the  matur i t y  leve l .  

 Then there  was a  fo l low on order  on  –  or  i t  was par t  10 

o f  the  same order,  bu t  there  was 40 veh ic les  to  be  bu i l t  

wh ich  was now in  a  s ta te  tha t  i t  i s  rea l l y  to  be  ou tsourced 

and i t  i s  now past  the  cer ta in  matur i t y  s ta te  bu t  then we  

dec ided tha t  th is  40  veh ic les  and  th is  i s  –  we k i cked the  

ba l l  to  –  f rom 2015 to  February  2017.   So now we  are  in  

February  2017 and we d id  our  sums and we sa id  i t  i s  no t  

wor th  ou r  wh i le  to  ou tsource  th is ,  we need to  bu i l d  these 

40 veh ic les  w i th in  DVS and then  Mr  S teyn in fo rmed Mr  

Ntshepe and Mr  Mgwana tha t  we are  go ing  to  bu i l d  -  the  

execut ive  team and h imse l f  dec ided we are  go ing  to  bu i ld  20 

these veh ic les  w i th in  DVS.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t  and tha t  took p lace in  2017.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So you were  no t  very  conf ron ta t iona l  o r  

no t  bu t  you knew what  you were  t ry ing  to  do .  
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MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And then you  re fer  –  i f  I  can  take  you 

perhaps to  page 230.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    230?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    230,  yes .   A t  the  foo t  o f  page o f  page 

230 is  an  emai l  f rom P ie ter  van der  Merwe who was f rom 

VR Laser,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And he was address ing  your  Mr  

S teyn and yourse l f ,  Ms Geldenhuys and o thers .   What  was  10 

th is  emai l  re la t ing  to?   What  was he requ i r i ng?   

MS GELDENHUYS:    So  fo r  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Was th is  re la t ing  to  these add i t iona l  

i tems to  be  fabr i ca ted?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  am not  hundred pe rcent  su re  i f  i t  

was on ly  to  tha t  spec i f i c  o rde r  bu t  i t  i s  indeed to  a l l  the  

work  tha t  has happened in  DVS.   So what  happened was,  

in  the  b ind ing  ag reement  we kept  tha t  caveat  fo r  ourse l ves,  

i f  i t  makes f inanc ia l  sense fo r  us ,  we w i l l  look  a t  i t  to  

cont rac t  VR Laser  bu t  what  we kept  on  do ing  is  we  d id  our  20 

bus iness case each and eve ry  t ime before  we p laced the  

order  and what  we d id  i s  we d id  ask  VR Laser  to  quote  and  

we d id  ask  o the r  peop le  to  quote  as  we l l  and then based  

on in fo rmat ion  tha t  we got  we f igu red out  what  i t  i s  tha t  we 

can do ourse l ves and then we dec ided.    
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 So  th is  emai l  tha t  was wr i t ten  in  Ju ly  2017 by  Mr  

P ie ter  van der  Merwe –  and I  have to  jus t  qua l i f y  tha t  I  was 

not  deep ly  invo lved in  the  supp ly  cha in  process and the  

var ious programmes and oppor tun i t ies  tha t  was runn ing  a t  

tha t  s tage wh ich  he  is  re fe r r ing  to .   He came to  us  and he 

sa id  bu t  we have  entered in to  agreement ,  we are  seen in  

the  market  tha t  we are  quot ing ,  you are  never  coming back  

to  us  and say ing  whether  we are  successfu l .   We thought  

we have got  a  s ing le  source  supp l ie r  ag reement  w i th  you  

but  we do not  see orders  coming to  us ,  do  you s t i l l  th ink  10 

tha t  we have got  a  s ing le  source  supp l ie r  agreement  o r  do  

you not  ag reement  anymore?  Which  is  in  e f fec t  h is  emai l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Which  is  then?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Which  is  in  e f fec t  the  contents  o f  h is  

emai l .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  thank you.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    We have got  an  agreement  bu t  we do 

not  ge t  work  f rom you so  what  i s  happen ing?  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  VR Laser?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    VR Laser,  yes .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    And by  the  t ime o f  th is  emai l  you reca l l  

how long the  ag reement  had been  in  p lace ,  fo r  how long i t  

had been in  p lace? 

MS GELDENHUYS:    S ince December  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  th is  was about  a  year  and a  ha l f?  
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MS GELDENHUYS:    I  can  b r ing  i t  under  the  Cha i rperson ’s  

a t ten t ion  tha t  the re  was indeed one order  tha t  we d id  p lace  

on VR Laser  fo r  fabr ica t ion  o f  hu l l s  in  th is  per iod  bu t  our  

bus iness case a t  tha t  s tage,  where  we were  in  our  

bus iness,  i t  wou ld  have been more  to  the  bus iness ’s  

p ro f i tab i l i t y  i f  we  outsourced i t  because we d id  no t  have 

enough peop le  a t  tha t  moment .   We had to  ramp up and  

every th ing  and i t  made sense.   A t  tha t  s tage VR Laser  was 

cheaper  than us  then what  we cou ld  have done i t  ins ide .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  10 

MS GELDENHUYS:    So  i t  made f inanc ia l  sense to  us .   I  

th ink ,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  i t  was fo r  9  RG32 veh ic les  tha t  

we p laced the  o rder  on  them.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    A l r igh t ,  then i f  I  may take  you to  

page 232 and 3 .   These are  two le t te rs  tha t  you sent .   The 

one 232 is  da ted  8  March 2018  addressed to  VR Laser  

CEO and tha t  re fe rs  to  a  te rm inat ion  tha t  re la tes  to  Dene l  

invok ing .   The second paragraph:  

“We have no a l te rna t ive  as  to  herewi th  invoke DVS ’ 

te rm inat ion  fo r  conven ience  r igh t  tha t  fo rms pa r t  o f  20 

the  te rms and cond i t ions  on  wh ich  the  spec i f i c  

o rders  were  p laced on yourse lves.   The 

a forement ioned o rde rs  i s  thus herewi th  cance l led . ”  

So you are  here  cance l l ing  par t i cu la r  o rders .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV KENNEDY SC:    Th i s  does no t  say  you are  cance l l ing  

a  comple te  agreement  though.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    No,  i t  was the  orders .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And does  the  same app ly  to  the  

subsequent  le t te r  o f  3  Apr i l  page 233? 

MS GELDENHUYS:    The subsequent  le t te r  i s  ac tua l l y  the  

–  the  order  number  was incor rec t ly  –  so  the  subsequent  

le t te r  was jus t  f i x ing  the  incor rec t  quoted orde r  number.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  see .   So i t  was rea l l y  jus t  c la r i f y ing  

someth ing  f rom your  p rev ious le t te r.  10 

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Aga in  no t  a  te rm inat ion  o f  the 

agreement  i t se l f .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    No,  I  unders tood tha t  the  s t ra tegy  

agreements  w i th  VR Laser,  acco rd ing  to  my knowledge,  

was cance l led  a t  a  co rpo ra te  leve l  a t  a  cer ta in  s tage .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Were  you invo lved in  tha t?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    No.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now I  jus t  want  to  go  back to  a  

comment  tha t  you made ea r l ie r  tha t  Mr  S teyn was 20 

express ing  perhaps in  d ip lomat ic  te rms in  the  ema i ls  tha t  

we looked a t  ear l ie r  to  a  fee l ing  tha t  he  was  be ing  

s ide l ines  or  kept  ou t  o f  the  loop and Mr  Burger  was now 

tak ing  the  lead in  dea l ing  w i th  VR Laser,  e tce tera .   Your  

own pos i t ion ,  as  a  member  o f  the  execut ive  team a t  DVS,  
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was there  a  change in  what  you  unders tood to  be  the  

a t t i tude o f  o thers  in  the  Dene l  o rgan isa t ion  in  re la t ion  to  

how you were  be ing  t rea ted  in  par t i cu la r  when one looks a t  

how Mr  Burger  was now tak ing  the  in i t ia t i ve ,  Mr  S teyn was 

no longer  kept  in  the  loop to  the  same exten t .   D id  th is  

a f fec t  you a l so  as  an  execut ive  team in  re la t ion  to  these 

mat te rs?  

MS GELDENHUYS:   Yes,  dur ing  d iv is iona l i s ing  d i scuss ions  

there  was a  new s t ruc ture  fo r  the  landward  bus iness.   L ike  

I  exp la ined,  show cost  sav ings,  there  i s  jus t  two execut ive  10 

teams one needs  to  end up and there  was d iscuss ions w i th  

var ious execut ives  members  as  to  where  you w i l l  f i t  in ,  who 

you w i l l  repor t  to  and –  ja ,  so  we had to  compete  fo r  our  

pos i t ions  aga in  t o  be  i n  th is  landward  s t ruc ture  on  the  

execut ive  team.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  may have missed someth ing .   I  

unders tood the  idea o f  res t ruc tur ing  and maybe Mr  Burger  

tak ing  over  and the  DVS CEO be ing  under  h im i f  DVS was 

d iv is iona l i sed,  as  you put  i t ,  bu t  i f  DVS was not  

d iv is iona l i sed and remained lega l  en t i t y  on  i t s  own,  I  do  20 

not  see how tha t  ta lk  wou ld  f i t  in  un less  the  ta lk  may have  

been meant  to  in t im ida te  the  DVS execut ive  o r  so f ten  them 

up because they  were  be ing  d i f f i cu l t .   In  o ther  words,  to  

make –  to  k ind  o f  th rea ten them,  you know,  i f  you  cont inue  

l i ke  th is ,  th is  i s  what  may happen,  you had bet te r  behave.  
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MS GELDENHUYS:    From a  lega l  po in t  o f  v iew I  agree 

w i th  you,  the  s t ruc ture  cannot  work  l i ke  tha t ,  i t  i s  two 

separa te  lega l  en t i t ies  and you cannot  now jus t  d isso l ve  a  

lega l  en t i t y  by  a  p iece o f  paper  overn igh t .   Somebody tha t  

i s  no t  your  employer  now dec ides –  tha t  we know and tha t  

we have,  myse l f  par t i cu la r l y  ra ised numerous t imes to  Mr  

Burger  and say ing  bu t  th is  cannot  happen th is  way  and i t  

was ignored.    So whether  i t  i s  a  combinat ion  o f  a  b i t  o f  

th rea ts  go ing  on  or  whethe r  there  was a ,  in  my mind,  as  a  

lega l  person,  lega l l y  tha t  cou ld  no t  happen,  i t  jus t  cannot  10 

happen.   They do not  have lega l  s tance but  f rom a  

bus iness perspec t ive  f rom d i v is iona l i s ing  and conso l ida t ing  

and Mr  Burger  be ing  the  head o f  our  bus iness,  in  te rms o f  

the  Dene l  Group  tha t  happened and he has go t  au thor i t y  

over  us .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you had a  de  fac to  res t ruc tu r ing?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  no t  a  de ju re  res t ruc tur ing .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  f rom a  cer ta in  po in t  you a t  DVS and  20 

the  execut ives  knew tha t  f rom now one we are  under  Mr  

Burger,  o r  whatever.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    From tha t  emai l  where  Mr  Ntshepe 
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sa id :   And Mr  Burger  w i l l  lead f rom now on.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    So  there  was  a  meet ing  –  he  re fer red  

in  tha t  emai l ,  I  showed an emai l  to  everybody f rom the  

Cha i r  where  he  sa id :   And S tephan  w i l l  lead.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    F rom tha t  moment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  was f rom tha t  moment .  

MS GELDENHUYS:    F rom tha t  moment ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Yes,  Mr  Kennedy?  10 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Ms Geldenhuys,  I  

jus t  want  to  take  you th rough a  coup le  o f  –  the  f ina l  

parag raphs in  your  a f f idav i t .   Some o f  those we have 

touched on a l ready so  I  do  no t  p ropose to  go  in to  those.   

In  paragraph 9  you re fer  to  the  prescr ibed procedure  in  

ident i f y ing  a  s ing le  source  supp l ie r.   When d id  your  

company move in to  the  Dene l  Group?  A t  what  s tage was 

tha t?   How soon before  th is  ag reement  took p lace? 

MS GELDENHUYS:    So  i t  was,  i f  I  reca l l ,  28  Apr i l  the  

t ransact ion  c losed.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Which  year?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    2015.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    2015.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    So i t  i s  f i ve ,  s ix  months  pr io r.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    F ive ,  s ix  mon ths  pr io r?  
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MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    You ind i ca te  your  lack  o f  knowledge 

o f  par t i cu la r  p rocesses w i th in  the  Dene l  Group a t  the  t ime.   

Jus t  exp la in  tha t  to  the  Cha i r  p lease?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    So  when we –  obv ious ly,  f rom the  

regu la tory  f ramework  fo r  a  s ta te  owned ent i t y  i s  vas t ly  

d i f fe ren t  f rom what  i t  i s  fo r  a  p r iva te  company  and we 

unders tood and we were  in fo rmed tha t  fo r  the  f i rs t  year  

wh i le  we are  pa r t  o f  the  Dene l  s tab le  we w i l l  no t  be  sub jec t  

to  the  PFMA.   So we updated ou r  p rocesses,  we s tar ted  10 

w i th  in tegra t ion  and every th ing  wh i ls t  we are  do ing  our  

day- to -day work  bu t  there  was no rea l  knowledge fo r  us  

dur ing  tha t  per iod  o f  exact ly  the  PFMA and what  i s  

requ i red  f rom us because the  in tegra t ion  was not  

comple ted  and we d id  no t  know tha t  –  o r  we were  to ld  tha t  

the  PMFA was no t  app l i cab le  to  us .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Now may I  jus t  go  back to  one po in t  

tha t  my lea rned co l league has drawn to  my a t ten t ion  wh ich  

I  th ink  does indeed need re ference.   Jus t  go  back to  page 

185.   Yes,  th is  i s  the  emai l  we looked a t  ear l ie r,  13  20 

November,  f rom Mr  S teyn to  in te r  a l ia  yourse l f .   The  

second –  the  th i rd  a f te r  g ree t ing  P ie t ,  Carene and  Percy,  

he  says:  

“Fo l lowing Zwelakhe ’s  request  two weeks ago to  

f ina l i se  a  fo rmal  agreement  w i th  VRL fo r  fabr ica t ion  
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o f  our  hu l l s  in  fu tu re ,  severa l  in te rac t ions took  

p lace between DVS and VRL to  s ta r t  the  process…” ’  

And th is  i s  the  impor tan t  par t :  

“…to  eva lua te  VRL’s  capab i l i t y. ”  

Now tha t  must  be  seen aga ins t  your  ev idence ear l ie r  tha t  

DVS had i t s  own  in -house capab i l i t y  and one d i v is ion  in  

par t i cu la r  m ight  be  heav i l y  h i t .   So  Mr  S teyn re fers  to  a  

d iscuss ion  about  a  p rocess wh ich  wou ld  invo lve ,  amongst  

o thers  th ings,  eva lua t ing  VRL’s  capab i l i t y.   In  o ther  words,  

to  ensure  tha t  i f  VRL was go ing  to  ge t  bus iness tha t  DVS 10 

was a l ready do ing  in -house i t  wou ld  have to  a t  leas t  be 

sure  tha t  VRL cou ld  do  the  work .  

 Now i f  I  can  take  you to  page 211 .   Th is  i s  par t  o f  

the  agreement  tha t  was ac tua l l y  s igned in  December  2015  

tha t  you w i tnessed and a t  page 211 in  c lause B  –  B  is  pa r t  

o f  c lause A ,  wh ich  dea ls  w i th  the  scope o f  the  

Memorandum of  Agreement ,  i t  reads:  

“VRL wi th  i t s  p roven capab i l i t ies  and qua l i t y  i s  

cons idered to  be  a  key supp l ie r  and a  s t ra tegy 

par tner  to  DVS. ” ’  20 

So Mr  S teyn ’s  emai l ,  somet ime before  sa id  we need to  

eva lua te  VR Laser ’s  capab i l i t ies ,  the  agreement  then says 

we l l ,  i t  i s  a l ready proven tha t  i t  has  go t  remarkab ly  good 

capab i l i t ies .   You have a l ready g iven ev idence tha t  VR 

Laser  had a l ready been fo r  some t ime a  supp l ie r  to  Dene l  
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bu t  a re  you aware  o f  what  s teps,  i f  any,  were  taken  in  fac t  

to  car ry  ou t  Mr  S teyn ’s  fee l ing  tha t  be fore  such an 

agreement  i s  conc luded VRL’s  capab i l i t y  spec i f i ca l l y  in  

re la t ion  to  th is  type o f  work  tha t  you cou ld  do  in -house,  

whethe r  tha t  was ac tua l l y  tes ted  and es tab l i shed? 

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  know tha t  Mr  S teyn requested Mr  

Kruger  and Mr  Ndaba to  v is i t  VR Laser  to  go  and so r t  o f  do  

an  inspect ion  or  to  go  and see what  the i r  capab i l i t ies  i s  

and what  i s  happen ing  the re  and I  know tha t  was,  i f  I  reca l l  

cor rec t l y,  tha t  was a l so  met  a  coup le  o f  days l a te r  f rom Mr  10 

Ntshepe to  Mr  S teyn in  a  very  un favourab le  tone where in  

he  sa id  tha t  your  peop le  are  jeopard is ing  Dene l ’s  bus iness 

go ing  to  VR Laser.   So tha t  i s  wha t  I  reca l l  tha t  happened,  

I  do  th ink  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Who sa id  your  peop le  a re  jeopard i s ing  

Dene l ’s  bus iness go ing  to  VR Laser?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I t  was Mr  Ntshepe tha t  sa id  tha t  to  Mr  

S teyn.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  in  o ther  words say ing  they shou ld  no t  

be  go ing  the re?  20 

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  qu i te  a  te l l ing  remark .   Yes,  okay.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  a lso  th ink  tha t  the  re ference to  

capab i l i t ies  tha t  Mr  S teyn made in  h i s  emai l  tha t  you  

re fer red  to  i s  a l so  re fer r ing  to  maybe there  is  add i t iona l  
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work  tha t  we can  sent  to  VR Laser  tha t  wou ld  no t  be  the  

hu l l  fabr ica t ion .   So go and see what  i t  i s  tha t  they  can do,  

maybe we can send them o ther  work  and not  ou r  core  

bus iness.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Bu t  u l t imate ly  they in  fac t  conc luded  

a  s ing le  source  supp ly  ag reement  fo r  a l l  the  work?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes bu t  the  word ing  in  th i s  s ing le  

source  agreement  was a  –  we gave up.   We gave up.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Cha i r,  may  I  conc lude w i th  jus t  one  

more  ve ry  b r ie f  top ic?   On page 163 you dea l  w i th  the  lega l  10 

s ta tus  o f  the  Memorandum of  Agreement  and you re fer  to  

cer ta in  l i t i ga t ion  tha t  was in i t ia ted ,  b rought  by  VR Laser  

aga ins t  DVS.   Were  you s t i l l  the  lega l  execut ive  a t  DVS a t  

the  t ime tha t  was  s ta r ted?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Yes,  I  was.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    And jus t  very  broad ly,  what  does the  

l i t iga t ion  re la te  to?   What  i s  VR Laser  ask ing  the  cour t  to  

aga ins t  Dene l  Veh ic les  Serv ices?  

MS GELDENHUYS:    So  I  re fe r red  ear l ie r  on  tha t  there  was 

indeed an order  tha t  was p laced on VR Laser  tha t  made  20 

sense to  us  and we rece ived goods f rom them.   We never  

pa id  them.   When the  –  there  was a  combinat ion  o f  

ac t i v i t ies  be tween –  Dene l  ran  in to  f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t ies ,  we 

got  a  new board ,  a l legat ions o f  s ta te  capture ,  a l legat ions  

o f  s ta te  capture  w i th  VR Laser,  i t  was you a re  no t  pay ing .   
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Le t  us  f i rs t  look  a t  what  happened here  and le t  us  see i f  

the  agreement  i s  ta in ted  and how we a re  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  

i t  fu r ther.   And now I  do  no t  want  to  tes t i f y  anyth ing  fu r ther  

because then I  w i l l… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   No,  no ,  we unders tand.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I t  i s  sub jud ice .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  ce r ta in l y.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    I  cannot  tes t i f y  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:     We unders tand,  ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t .  10 

MS GELDENHUYS:    On th is  po in t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you .   And then in  11 .3 .4  on  

page 164 you re fer  to  an  in ten t ion  by  DVS to  rev iew and  

se t  as ide  the  Memorandum of  Agreement .   Notw i ths tand ing  

tha t ,  i t  pa id  an  amount  o f  R2.7  m i l l ion  to  VR Laser.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Had tha t  been s tar ted ,  tha t  rev iew 

app l i ca t ion ,  be fo re  you le f t  o f f i ce  as  lega l  execut ive  o f  

DVS? 

MS GELDENHUYS:    I f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  the  rev iew 20 

app l i ca t ion  has  no t  s ta r ted .   What  happened in  th is  

c i rcumstances,  DLS owed VR Laser  a  lo t  o f  money  as  we l l  

because DV –  or  Dene l  was in  f inanc ia l  d i f f i cu l t ies ,  there  

was a  lo t  o f  work  tha t  was w i th  VR Laser,  tha t  the  moment  

tha t  i t  i s  re leased,  DLS wou ld  ge t  money,  to  make  a  sa le ,  
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and they cou ld  ge t  money in  fo r  the  bus iness.   So the 

payment  f rom DVS o f  ha l f  o f  R2 .7  m i l l ion  was sor t  o f  to  

secure  tha t  VR Laser  re lease some o f  DLS ’ goods tha t  was 

work - in -progress so  tha t  DLS can  se l l  i t  so  tha t  they can 

genera te  more  cash.   So i t  was a  group type o f  

a r rangement  to  ge t  more  l iqu id i t y  in to  the  bus iness  a t  tha t  

s tage.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    R igh t ,  thank you.   Thank you,  Ms 

Geldenhuys.   Cha i r,  we have no fu r the r  quest ions f rom the  

lega l  team.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   Thank you very  much,  Ms  

Geldenhuys,  fo r  coming to  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion ,  we 

apprec ia te  i t  very  much.   I f  we need you to  come back we  

w i l l  ask  you to  come back bu t  thank you very  much,  you 

are  now excused.  

MS GELDENHUYS:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   Mr  Kennedy,  tomorrow your  

es t imate  o f  how much t ime we need fo r  your  w i tness is  

what?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    My es t ima te  is  s t i l l  p robab ly  th ree  20 

hours ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    So  I  hope tha t  we can f in ish  

comfor tab ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We can s tar t  a t  n ine .   Shou ld  we s tar t  a t  
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n ine?  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    I  be l ieve  so .   That  wou ld  ass i s t ,  

thank you,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    We want  to  f in ish  a t  twe lve .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Yes,  thank you,  Cha i r,  tha t  shou ld  be  

feas ib le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    As  I  have ind ica ted  to  your  

p rev ious l y  we p lan  to  ca l l  on ly  the  one w i tness,  Mr  Teubes.   

He w i l l  in  fac t  cover  qu i te  a  lo t  o f  mater ia l  bu t  we th ink  tha t  10 

we can f in ish  i t  comfor tab ly  w i th in  th ree  hours .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    May I  jus t  d raw to  your  a t ten t ion  one  

log is t i ca l  th ing?  You have p rev ious ly  been g iven a  bund le  

o f  h is  documents ,  h is  a f f idav i t  and annexures.   We have  

been g i ven a t  a  la te  s tage a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t .   I  

have in  fac t  no t  ye t  had a  chance to  work  on  i t ,  I  w i l l  

ton igh t ,  bu t  may  I  jus t  ind ica te  to  you tha t  you  shou ld  

expect  a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  coming ton igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Which  I  unders tand w i l l  be  sent  by  

your  reg is t ra r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you ve ry  much.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  f ine ,  so  tomorrow we wi l l  s ta r t  a t  
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n ine  then.  

ADV KENNEDY SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we w i l l  ad jou rn  fo r  the  day and  

tomorrow we s tar t  a t  n ine .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good even ing  Mr  Se leka,  good even ing  

everybody.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Good even ing  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  apo log ise  to  everybody,  par t i cu la r ly  to  10 

you Mr  Tsots i  because we asked you to  come th is  even ing  

and then somehow I  fo rgo t  tha t  we have an even ing  

sess ion  and when we f in ished a t  f i ve  I  sa id  no  we w i l l  

ad journ  un t i l  tomorrow,  so  –  bu t  a r rangements  had been  

made and I  apo log ise  to  the  team as we l l ,  the  lega l  team 

and the  te lev is ion  peop le  who f ind  themse lves hav ing  to  

work  beyond the  t ime tha t  they have p lanned  and to 

everybody,  I  am g ra te fu l  tha t  everybody is  ab le  to  cont inue.  

Thank you fo r  coming Mr  Tsots i .  

 Okay,  a l r igh t .  20 

MR TSOTSI :    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Se leka are  you –  yes  we w i l l  

have to  I  th ink  ge t  Mr  Tsots i  to  do  the  oa th  a f resh  before  

we p roceed.    Le t  us  do  tha t ,  yes .  

REGISTRAR:   Please s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 231 of 310 
 

MR TSOTSI :    Zola  And i le  Tsots i .  

REGISTRAR:  Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR TSOTSI :    No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  

g ive  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e lse  bu t  

the  t ru th ,  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r i gh t  hand and say  so  he lp  10 

me God.  

MR TSOTSI :    So he lp  me God.  

ZOLA ANDILE TSOTSI :    [duly  sworn,  s tates]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you ve ry  much Mr  Tsots i .   Jus t  fo r  

the  –  to  in fo rm the  pub l i c  we  are  hav ing  an  even ing  

sess ion  th is  even ing  in  re la t ion  to  Eskom in  accordance 

w i th  our  p rogramme for  th is  par t  o f  the  year  where  we are  

t ry ing  to  f in ish  the  hear ing  o f  o ra l  ev idence w i th in  the  t ime 

tha t  we have been g iven so  some o f  the  even ings we are  

go ing  to  s i t  du r ing  the  day,  f in ish  a t  four  o r  f i ve ,  take  a  20 

break,  come back,  cont inue so  th is  i s  one o f  those 

sess ions and in  next  week and the  weeks to  come we wi l l  

be  hav ing  more  o f  those so  we w i l l  have day sess ions and 

even ing  sess ions to  t ry  and f in ish  the  work  o f  the  

Commiss ion .  
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 Okay,  thank you.    Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe you w i l l  -  i t  m igh t  he lp  f o r  –  to  

jus t  recap where  we a re  so  tha t  the  pub l i c  can fo l low.  

ADVI  SELEKA SC:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And Mr  Tsots i  has g i ven ev idence a  few 

t imes before ,  he  is  he re  because he needs to  f in ish ,  there  

was some –  there ’s  some issues tha t  had not  been dea l t  

w i th  when we had  to  ad journ  las t  t ime he was he re .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  thank  you Cha i r.   When we  10 

ad journed las t  t ime Cha i rperson,  Mr  Tsots i ,  we were  a t  the  

po in t  where  I  had jus t  asked you a  quest ion  about  the  

meet ing  o f  the  16 t h  o f  March 2015.   The meet ing  wh ich  was 

tes t i f ied  about  by  f i rs t l y  by  Mr  N ick  L inne l l ,  you  added to  i t  

a lso  as  a  resu l t  o f  my quest ion ing ,  and you had tes t i f ied  in  

response to  the  quest ion  I  asked  as  to  who the  persons 

were  who a t tend the  meet ing ,  tha t  you had been in fo rmed 

i t  was Mr  Romeo Khumalo  and Mr  Z i thembe Khosa.    I s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR TSOTSI :    That  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  we had gone th rough ex tens ive ly  

a lso  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Ms Dudu Myen i  in  regard  to  the  events  

tha t  took p lace a t  the  meet ing  o f  the  8 t h  o f  March  2015,  do  

you reca l l  tha t?  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes I  do .  



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 233 of 310 
 

ADV SELEKA SC:    And we gave you the  oppor tun i ty  to  

respond to  her  vers ion  o f  events  and a lso  to  in te r rogate  

your  own vers ion ,  do  you remember  tha t?  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  p ick  i t  up  on  the  

meet ing  o f  the  16 t h  o f  March and  what  remains  thereaf te r  

Cha i rperson is  to  pu t  fu r ther  ve rs ions o f  o the r  w i tnesses to  

you Mr  Tsots i  and I  th ink  tha t  shou ld  then wrap up your  

ev idence in  regard  to  the  suspens ions,  and tha t  vers ion  

u l t imate ly  inc ludes what  they have sa id  be fo re  the  10 

Cha i rperson in  regard  to  the  g rounds fo r  your  what  they  

ca l l  d isc ip l ina ry  ac t ion  or  wha tever  s teps they were  

sub jec t ing  you to  as  the  Board .  

 Do you fo l low tha t?  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you.   Now you d id  conf i rm as I  

reca l l ,  because I  d id  watch  the  v ideo o f  you r  tes t imony,  

tha t  th is  meet ing  tha t  you were  i n  fac t  in fo rmed tha t  the  

meet ing  d id  take  p lace on the  16 t h  o f  March 2015,  you can 

conf i rm?  20 

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    And as  I  reca l l  your  reco l lec t ion  was 

tha t  you were  in fo rmed by  Jabu Maswanganye about  th is  

meet ing?  

MR TSOTSI :    Cor rec t  ja .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  can you te l l  the  Cha i rperson what  

was sa id  to  be  the  purpose o f  th is  meet ing?  

MR TSOTSI :    Cha i r  I  rea l l y  d id  no t  know,  I  wasn ’ t  

express ly  to ld  what  the  purpose o f  the  meet ing  was ,  even  

what  was d iscussed so  I  was not  aware  o f  ne i t her  the  

content  o f  the  meet ing ,  nor  the  reason fo r  the  conven ing  o f  

the  meet ing ,  to  tha t  ex ten t  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Tsots i  were  you inv i ted  to  tha t  

meet ing?  

MR TSOTSI :    No,  I  was not  inv i ted .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    D id  you know tha t  the  mee t ing  was 

go ing  to  take  p lace?  

MR TSOTSI :    No,  I  d idn ’ t  know.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now I  have a lso  gone back to  l i s ten  to  

the  ev idence o f  Mr  L inne l l  and  towards the  end o f  h i s  

ev idence he tes t i f ied  on  the  5 t h  o f  October  and on the  6 t h  

o f  October,  he  cou ldn ’ t  f in ish  on  the  1s t  because the re  was 

a  l igh tn ing  in te r rup t ion .   On the  6 t h  towards the  end o f  h is  

tes t imony he says tha t  he  was  a lso  in fo rmed tha t  the  

Min is te r  d id  a t tend the  meet ing  o f  the  16 t h  o f  March,  were  20 

you aware  o f  tha t?  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes I  was aware  o f  tha t  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You had learn t  tha t  the  Min is te r  had 

a t tended the  mee t ing ,  i s  tha t  what  you are  say ing  you were  

aware  o f?  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  I  had lea rn t  tha t  the  Min i s te r  had 

a t tended the  mee t ing  yes.  

MR TSOTSI :    Okay,  okay,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now Mr  L inne l l  he  has s ince ,  he  is  in  

touch w i th  the  Commiss ion ,  w i th  us  in  the  work  s t ream,  and 

he w i l l  be  prov id ing  the  Commiss ion  w i th  a  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t  on  th is  issue,  because as  he  exp la ins  to  us ,  and  

maybe you can conf i rm th is  because he says he  sent  an  

emai l  to  your  l ega l  team back on the  30 t h  o f  March 2015,  

seek ing  to  p ropose ce r ta in  quest ions tha t  you r  lega l  team 10 

shou ld  ask  the  persons he sa id  shou ld  be  ca l led  as  

w i tnesses to  your  d isc ip l inary  ac t ion ,  do  you reca l l  tha t?  

MR TSOTSI :    I  don ’ t  express l y   reca l l  tha t  par t i cu la r  

emai l ,  I  w i l l  have  to  check w i th  the  lega l  team Cha i r  bu t  I  

don ’ t  reca l l  i t  myse l f .  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Okay,  now we wi l l  show when Mr  

L inne l l  has  prov ided us  w i th  tha t ,  because he ment ions 

names o f  cer ta in  board  members  who he sa id  shou ld  be  

asked quest ions why a t tended the  meet ing  o f  the  16 t h  o f  

March.  20 

 Now le t  me pa in t  the  p ic tu re  fo r  you s i r  t ha t  we  

move a  l i t t le  fas te r.   Mr  L inne l l ,  th is  i s  on  the  16 t h  o f  

March,  on  the  17 t h  o f  March he rece ives an  emai l  f rom a 

gent leman ca l led  Thu los i le le ,  and he rece ives th is  emai l  he  

sa id  a t  ten  to  f i ve ,  ear ly  in  the  morn ing ,  4 .50  am.   
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Cha i rperson Mr  L inne l l ’s  a f f idav i t  i s  found on page 158 o f  

Eskom Bund le  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  fo r  the  record  we are  us ing  Eskom 

Bund le  07A,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    07A,  thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and what  page w i l l  I  f ind  tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 158.  

CHAIRPERSON:    158?  

ADV SELEKA SC:     Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay thank you.   Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    And I  –  th is  i s  the  ev idence a l ready  

tes t i f ied  about  Mr  Tsots i  f rom paragraph 42,  and 158 i t  i s  

the  b lack  pag ina t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR TSOTSI :    What  page?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    158.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And look a t ,  remember  the  b lack  

numbers  as  opposed to  the  red  numbers .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Use the  b lack  numbers .  

MR TSOTSI :    Oh,  okay.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  the  le f t  hand co rne r.  

MR TSOTSI :    Okay,  go t  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You have the ,  you have tha t?  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:  Now I  am not  go ing  to  read f rom i t  bu t  I  

w i l l  te l l  you ,  because the  ev idence has been tes t i f ied  

about ,  so  Mr   L inne l l  tes t i f ied  on  the  ve ry  day o f  the  16 t h  o f  

March 2015 he had a  meet ing  he  th inks  he  reca l l  w i th  Ms  

Mabude a t  your  house to  p lan  the  way  fo rward  in  regards  

to  the  te rms o f  re fe rence.   Ms Mabude was the  Cha i rpe rson 

o f  Aud i t  &  R isk  Commi t tee ,  you reca l l  tha t?    

MR TSOTSI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now he tes t i f ies  tha t  there  was an 

agreement  w i th  Ms Mabude fo r  t hem to  meet  fu r ther  the  10 

next  day bu t  on  the  17 t h  o f  March 2015,  the  ear ly  hours  o f  

the  morn ing ,  he  rece ives an  emai l  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  he  is  

no  longer  needed  a t  the  Aud i t  &  R isk  meet ing  to  wh ich  he  

had been inv i ted  and he th inks  th is  was the  tu rn ing  po in t ,  

and he reads tha t  togethe r  w i th  the  a t t i tude o f  Ms Mabude 

the  n igh t  be fore  or  the  day be fo re  wh ich  he  re fe rs  to  as  a 

coo l ing  o f  en thus iasm in  regard  to  what  he  had been 

ass igned to  do ,  Mr  L inne l l .  

MR TSOTSI :    I  see  tha t  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  he then  says th is  –  he  read th is  20 

emai l ,  and l inked  i t  to  the  meet ing  wh ich  was sa id  t o  have  

taken p lace on the  16 t h  o f  March,  a  secre t  mee t ing ,  a  

p r iva te  meet ing  where  some Board  members  were  present  

together  w i th  some suspended execut ives .    D id  you hear  

tha t?  
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MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now obv ious ly  th is  has to  be  tes ted  

before  the  Cha i rperson by  those who are  coming,  we have 

to  pu t  th is  vers ion  to  them because we have on ly  so  fa r  

heard  the  one s ide  o f  the  s to ry  f rom Mr  L inne l l  and f rom 

yourse l f ,  because  i f  indeed some Board  members  met  w i th  

suspended execu t ives  on  the  16 t h  o f  March,  i f  indeed tha t  

i s  the  case,  and you might  no t  know,  Mr  Ba loy i  was 

removed f rom the  Board  fo r  hav ing  made communica t ion  

w i th  a  suspended  execut ive .   D id  you know tha t?  10 

MR TSOTSI :    Yes I  reca l l  Mr  Ba loy i ’s  tes t imony  to  tha t  

e f fec t  yes .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  these board  members  i f  the  fac t s  

a re  es tab l i shed to  be  t rue ,  they were  –  they “charged” ,  and 

I  use  the  word  in  inve r ted  commas “charged”  Mr  Ba loy i  and 

found h im gu i l t y  o f  an  ac t  they themse lves had commi t ted  

way back on  the  16 t h  o f  March,  f resh  a f te r  the  suspens ion  

o f  the  execut ives ,  f i ve  days a f te r  the  suspens ion  o f  the 

execut ives .    You fo l low tha t?  

MR TSOTSI :    Cor rec t .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  we w i l l  tes t  tha t  w i th  them when  

they a re  here ,  because you have  a l leged two names,  Mr  

S i themba Khoza,  and Mr  Romeo Khumalo .  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Now what  then deve lops Mr  Tsots i  i s  
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tha t  on  the  18 t h  however,  and you see tha t  fu r the r  in  the  

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  L inne l l ,  he  says  he  ignored the  –  he  

in te rpre ted  the  emai l  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  he  is  no  longer  

needed.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  nonethe less  he  d is regarded tha t  

and he proceeded to  prepared the  te rms o f  re fe rence,  

wh ich  in  paragraph 46 o f  h is  a f f idav i t  he  fo rwards them to 

you and to  Ms Mabude.   

MR TSOTSI :    R igh t .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because –  and you know why they are  

fo rwarded them to  Ms Mabude because the  Board  had 

de legated the  power  to  Aud i t  &  R isk  to  ove rsee the  inqu i ry,  

so  Ms Mabude was the  Cha i rperson o f  the  inqu i ry,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR TSOTSI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And on the  next  page,  page 158,  he  

says a lso  –  we l l  he  touches on what ’s  the  te rms  o f  h is  

re fe rence,  the  essent ia l  te rms o f  h is  re fe rence were  he  

recommended tha t  a  re t i red  judge be appo in ted ,  he  20 

recommended tha t  a  law f i rm be appo in ted  together  w i th ,  I  

th ink  tha t  was ENS,  together  w i th  an  aud i t ing  f i rm,  Grant  

Thorn ton ,  and tha t  you see in  paragraph 50 o f  the  a f f idav i t .   

And remember  paragraph 45,  so r ry  49 ,  tha t  i s  –  those  

te rms o f  re fe rence are  a lso  emai led  to  Ms Dudu Myen i  and 
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then there  is  a  meet ing  aga in  a t  your  house in  the  even ing  

o f  the  18 t h  o f  March.   Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Because you ind ica ted  in  parag raph 52  

he says the  Cha i rman contac ted  me and in fo rmed  me tha t  

he  had spoken to  Ms Mabude and she had under taken to  

come to  h i s  house as  soon as  she  was ab le  to  d iscuss the  

documents  sent .   He asked tha t  I  a lso  a t tend.   And  by  m id-

morn ing  the re  was no fu r ther  response f rom Ms Mabude  

and I  ca l led  the  Cha i rperson and I  suggested I  v i s i t  h im as 10 

the  med ia  were  ask ing  fo r  comment .    

 And I  want  to  sk ip  some o f  these  paragraphs – i f  

you  go to  parag raph 64 on page 160,  because tha t ’s  where  

he  says I  was la te r  in fo rmed –  th is  i s  s t i l l  on  the  18 t h ,  la te r  

in fo rmed by  Mr  Tsots i  tha t  members  o f  the  board  had met  

w i th  the  Min is te r  on  Fr iday,  so  I  sk ipped a  pa ragraph wh ich  

I  want ,  because you meet  w i th  the  two o f  them and there  is  

a  d iscuss ion  tha t  ensues and there  is  a  debate  about  the  

acceptab i l i t y  o r  o therw ise  o f  the  te rms o f  re fe rence and I  

remember  he  says you in te r jec ted  and sa id  cu t  i t  ou t  20 

because the  two  o f  them were  becoming angry  w i th  each 

o the r.   Can you reca l l  tha t?  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes I  do .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  the  nonethe less  he  says he  gets  

inv i ted  to  another  meet ing  o f  Aud i t  &  R isk  tha t  was to  take  
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p lace  on the  19 t h  o f  March.   Now Cha i rpe rson tha t  emai l  

there  is  an  emai l  in  fac t  tha t  shows tha t  Ms Mabude d id  

have a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Tsots i  and Mr  L inne l l  a t  your  house 

and she adv ises members  o f  the  Board  tha t  I  have  agreed 

w i th  Mr  N ick  tha t  he  must  come to  ou r  meet ing  and meet  

w i th  us  as  Aud i t  &  R isk ,  tha t  emai l  Cha i rpe rson i s  found in  

Eskom bund le  10 ,  Exh ib i t  U20.   Exh ib i t  U20 is  Mr  Ba loy i ’s  

bund le ,  and he p rov ided the  Commiss ion  w i th  a  coup le  o f  

emai ls ,  the  one I  am re fer r ing  to  now is  on  page 330.  

MR TSOTSI :    Page?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    330.    Page 330 i t  i s  the  second –  i t  i s  

techn ica l l y  the  f i r s t  emai l  f rom the  top  Cha i rpe rson but  the  

second in  th is  case,  wh ich  is  f rom Chwai ta  Mabude,  i t  i s  an  

emai l  sent  on  Wednesday 18 March 2015,  a t  22 :20 ,  twenty  

past  ten  in  the  even ing ,  do  you see  tha t  Mr  Tsots i .  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  22 :20?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    22 :20 .  

MR TSOTSI :    18 t h  March?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    18  March yes.   I t  i s  an  emai l  sent  to  a l l  

the  Board  members ,  the  company secre tary,  you were  a lso  20 

there ,  Tsots i z@eskom.co.za ,  and the  emai l  reads:  

“Good even ing  . . . ”  

Wel l  the  sub jec t  l ine  i s :  

“Re Eskom Board  Med ia  s ta tement  18  March 2015”  

So i t  reads:  
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“Good even ing ,  

I  had a  meet ing  w i th  the  cha i rman Nick .   We have 

agreed to  take  th is  to  the  ARC meet ing  to  fu r the r  

d iscuss and reso lve .   The meet ing  w i l l  be  in  the  

a f te rnoon depend ing  on the  ava i lab i l i t y  o f  members .  

Regards  

CHM”  

Do you reca l l  th is  emai l?  

MR TSOTSI :    No t  exp l i c i t l y  no ,  I  don ’ t  reca l l  the  ac tua l  the  

emai l ,  bu t  I  reca l l  the  event  o f  the  meet ing  a t  my house.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Jus t  say  tha t  aga in ,  you reca l l?  

MR TSOTSI :    I  reca l l  the  meet ing  a t  my house.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A t  your  house,  thank you.   Do you 

reca l l  tha t  the  ag reement  was to  th is  e f fec t?  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  abso lu te ly.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Wel l  accord ing  to  Mr  L inne l l  even  

though the  mee t ing  was schedu led  to  take  p lace the  

meet ing  was subsequent ly  cance l led .    Do you reca l l  tha t?  

MR TSOTSI :    I  reca l l  N ick  compla in ing  about  tha t  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  and i t  i s  in te res t ing  tha t  now tha t  20 

I  have read the  sub jec t  l ine ,  dea l ing  w i th  a  med ia  

s ta tement  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  go  back to  tha t  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr 

N ick  L inne l l  in  your  bund le ,  the  parag raphs tha t  I  have – 

tha t  I  had sk ipped.    

MR TSOTSI :    Ja .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    So  tha t  i s  back to  page 158.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you back to  Mr  Tsots i ’s  bund le .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Tsots i ’s  bund le  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    158?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 159,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Cont inue.    Of  course  Mr  Se leka in  

pu t t ing  to  Mr  Tsots i  o ther  w i tnesses ’ vers ions where  they 

don ’ t  cont rad ic t  h im,  h is  vers ion ,  o r  don ’ t  imp l ica te  h im in  10 

any wrongdo ing  you don ’ t  have rea l l y  to  go  th rough tha t  

un less  you want  h im to  conf i rm someth ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  f ine  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  and I  take  i t  he  has had a  chance to  

read a l l  o f  these emai ls .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i f  there  i s  a  pa r t i cu la r  one here  he  

fee ls  he  wou ld  l i ke  to  comment  tha t  you don ’ t  touch he may  

do so  bu t  the  ones tha t  you need to  focus on  the  ev idence  

you need to  focus on  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  where  they e i ther  say  20 

someth ing  tha t  is  incons is ten t  w i th   h is  vers ion  or  they  

cont rad i c t  h im or  they imp l ica te   h im in  some wrongdo ing  

or  i f  you  are  want ing  to  conf i rm a  par t i cu la r  vers ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Cha i r,  I  am wi th  you.    Le t  

me approach i t  th is  way Mr  Tso ts i .   Thank you  Cha i r,  
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because tha t  he lps  me exped i te  i t .    Le t  me approach i t  

th is  way Mr  Tsots i ,  the  invo l vement  o f  Mr  L inne l l  i s  

apparent  f rom the  fac ts ,  the  invo l vement  o f  Mr  L inne l l  by  

the  Board ,  in  mat te rs  per ta in ing  to  the  in tended  inqu i ry,  

you can see tha t  f rom the  documenta t ion ,  cor rec t?  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  and I  want  to  then acce le ra te  to  

the  charges tha t  ge t  b rought  aga ins t  you by  the  Board ,  

because tha t  i s  dec ided in  the  mee t ing  o f  the  19 t h .  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    And one o f  those charges is  tha t  you  

had commiss ioned the  dra f t ing  o f  a  med ia  s ta tement  wh ich  

went  w i thout  the  Board  approva l ,  le t  me see tha t  you f ind  

in  the  re ference  bund le ,  Cha i r  I  w i l l  qu ick l y  read i t .   

Charge 3  says:  

“The d i rec tor  au thor ised the  Commiss ion  w i th  a  

med ia  s ta tement  in  re la t ion  to  an  inqu i ry  in to  the  

a f fa i rs  o f  the  company w i th  the  ass is tance o f  the  

consu l tan t  w i thou t  the  knowledge and/or  consent  o f  

the  Board . ”  20 

That  cha rge goes on to  say  th is  med ia  s ta tement  

consequent ly  fe l l  in to  the  pub l i c  domain ,  the  med ia  

s ta tement  conta ined numerous inaccurac ies  and 

mis in fo rmat ion  wh ich  may lead to  the  company  fac ing  

po tent ia l  lega l  ac t ion  f rom th i rd  pa r t ies  named there in .  
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 Now we know tha t  you have dea l t  w i th  th is  a t  th is  

meet ing ,  and maybe you cou ld  open to  the  re ference 

bund le  fo r  Mr  Tsots i  so  tha t  we can qu ick ly  dea l  w i th  th is  

par t i cu la r  a l legat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  I  don ’ t  know what  you have in  m ind  

Mr  Se leka,  bu t  I  do  reca l l  tha t  I  th ink  Dr  Ngubane i t  wou ld  

be  fa i r  to  say to  a  very  la rge  ex ten t  he  s t rugg led  to  exp la in  

a t  leas t  some o f  these charges.   I  do  remember  tha t  I  

asked h im whether  he  agreed tha t  they cou ld  no t  charge Mr  

Tsots i  fo r  invo l v ing  Mr  L inne l l  in  the  a f fa i rs  o f  the  Board  10 

and Eskom and the  ro le  he  was to  p lay,  because they had a 

chance to  te l l  h im we don ’ t  want  th is  man he re ,  you have 

to  fo l low procedures and my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  Dr  

Ngubane cou ld  no t  de fend tha t  par t  o f  the  charge  and he 

sought  to  say someth ing  e lse ,  I  can ’ t  remember  what  he  

sa id  and –  wh ich  my impress ion  is  m ight  no t  have  been in  

the  charge sheet ,  in  the  f i rs t  charge.  

 So where ,  whatever  they have sa id  i t  doesn ’ t  rea l l y  

cont rad i c t  ser ious ly  what  Mr  Tsots i  has sa id ,  we don ’ t  need 

to  spend much t ime on i t  and the  best  –  one th ing  you can  20 

do is  jus t  ment ion  to  Mr  Tsots i  what  they sa id  and i f  he  has  

comments  he  can comment  and move on.   I t  is only in  

regard to those where they may have sought to resist  or 

just i fy thei r  decision to charge him with the var ious charges.   

Now I  know that  on the one about the media statement both 
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– certainly  Dr  Ngubane I  seem to say real ly st ruggled as wel l  

in the face of  quest ions to defend that .   But  you might  have 

a bet ter recol lect ion and you might  have a recol lect ion that  

is di fferent  f rom mine.    

A l l  I  am simply saying is where – where we do not 

need to be detained where they did not  come up wi th  – they 

were not  ab le to defend the charges.   But  there may be one 

or  – that  they seemed to defend I  am not  sure but  even with  

that  I  am struggl ing to remember which one.   But  you are 

young I  saw you – you – and your  junior  is even younger so 10 

you might  have a bet ter memory than me.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja Chair  thank you.   Then that  is  exact ly  

the reason why I  lef t  charge 1 and 2 and I  went to 3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay al r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because 3 that  is where they seem to be.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You know l ike a dog holding onto a bone 

and I  d id not  want  to let  go.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr Tsotsi .  

MR TSOTSI:   I  am in the worst  posi t ion memory wise Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  can understand Mr Tsotsi .  

MR TSOTSI:   Ja.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   The f i rst  part  of  charge 3 I  agree 

wi th the Chai rperson in nei ther here nor there because we 

can see f rom the documentat ion the evidence led that  they 

engaged with Mr Linnel l  in the draf t ing of  the statement.   But  

they say the statement was leaked and they want to – you 

wi l l  know that  you leaked the statement.   And they are 

hanging onto that .   You want to respond to that  quickly? 

MR TSOTSI:   Chair  l ike I  said.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR TSOTSI:   Clear ly that  I  deny my leaking the statement.   I  10 

am – i t  makes me wonder what wi l l  be the purpose of  my 

leaking the statement in the f i rst  p lace.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja no I  th ink Mr Seleka on that  one. .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  is also the problem.  

CHAIRPERSON:   We have a problem because I  asked Mr 

Tsotsi  – Dr Ngubane why the Chai rperson would have wanted 

to leak a media statement when he knew that  al l  he wanted 

is to  get  the board to approve and you remember what Dr 

Ngubane’s response was.   He said something l ike about  a 

ego or something l ike that .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so cont inue but  real ly… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   No that  is f ine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  no we wi l l  not  be labour the point  but  
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that  was just  to give you a chance Mr Tsotsi  to put  your  – 

your response to that  on record.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  other board members come and tel l  us 

something di fferent  then you know we might  br ing you back 

you know.  There are some board members who must st i l l  

come.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   L ike Mr Romeo Khumalo but… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   There was not… 

CHAIRPERSON:   There are those that  have test i f ied on this 10 

I  th ink there were some chal lenges.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   Thank you Chai r.   Chai r  let  me then 

– let  us test  th is one.   They also Mr Tsotsi  ment ioned 

something about you having proposed to the board – to the 

board members that  one Mr Malesela Sekhasimbe who was 

at  that  t ime on suspension the fact  which they say you d id 

not  disclose to the board.   You proposed that  he be 

appointed to one of  the act ing posi t ions of  those who were 

suspended.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink did they not  say CEO – act ing CEO 20 

or maybe not  act ing CEO but  ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr Tsotsi  wi l l… 

CHAIRPERSON:   What do you say to that? 

MR TSOTSI:   Yes Chai r.    

ADV SELEKA SC:   May I  say that  as you answer Mr Tsotsi .   
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I  am aware that  that  is not  one of  the charges but  I  am aware 

that  they have sa id they were unhappy about that  as wel l .   

You understand what I  am saying? 

MR TSOTSI:   Yes I  do understand.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

MR TSOTSI:   I  just  want to wi thout  belabouring this issue 

Chair  just  to put  i t  in perspect ive.   The issue regarding Mr 

Sekhasimbe and Sumitomo dates back to 2008 for i t  is an old 

issue.   And I  just  want to conf ine mysel f  wi th  what they are 

concerned with meaning that  I  suggested someone who is 10 

suspended should act  in a posi t ion of  the Group Execut ive of  

Technology and Commercia l .    

Now the s i tuat ion Chair  is that  af ter the said incident  

for  which Mr Sekhasimbe was suspended I  spoke and this  

happened at  the end of  February 2015 around end of  

February 2015 somewhere around there i f  not  very ear ly  

March 2015.   

I  then raised this  issue wi th the Chief  Execut ive Mr 

Matona and I  said – I  asked Mr Matona to look into this 

because I  th ink at  the t ime I  said to him I  fe l t  that  Ms 20 

Sekhasimbe was – was being hard done by because he 

real ly has nothing to do wi th the charges that  is being la id 

against  him and that  he should see to i t  that  Mr Sekhasimbe 

is taken out  of  suspension because he is not  involved in … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sorry Mr Tsots i  you may deal  wi th that  
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later when I  put  to you Mr Koko’s vers ion.   But  just  address 

this one of  whether or not  you had suggested to the board at  

the t ime of  the suspension of  the execut ives that  one of  the 

act ing persons should be Mr Sekhasimbe and you did not  

disclose to the board that  he was in  fact  on suspension.  

MR TSOTSI:   Chair  that  is not  correct ,  that  is not  t rue.   The 

fact  of  the matter  is when I  – when I  raised the issue of  – 

and queries the names of  the people who are going to be 

suspended – I  mean who are going to be taking the places of  

the people who are suspended I  said to the board in regard 10 

to Mr Sekhasimbe he – he would have been the person 

appropriate to act  in the posi t ion of  Mr Matshela but  he has 

been suspended and I  even commented that  I  was very 

unhappy wi th the suspension because I  d id not  bel ieve that  

he meri ted to be suspended.   

And the name that  was brought forward was that  of  

one of  the engineers who worked wi th Mr Matshela who then 

subsequent ly became the person who acted.   So I  d id te l l  the 

board or the members of  the PNG commit tee at  the t ime that  

Mr Sekhasimbe was under suspension and therefore could 20 

not  act .   I  merely  brought up his name because I  fe l t  he the 

person who was appropriate for that  posi t ion.   I t  is then that  

the name of  the other person came up who eventual ly  ended 

up act ing.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Is that… 
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CHAIRPERSON:   I  wonder Mr Seleka whether… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   In the minutes or in the t ranscr ipt  

recording this part  is ref lected in any way… 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  have the minutes r ight  here Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So that  is  te lepathic communicat ion 

Chai r.   That  is –  in the Reference Bundle Chai rperson Mr 

Tsotsi  the – the minutes of  the 30 March 2015.  

MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Have I  got  the Reference Bundle here? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   The Reference Bundle.   Eskom Bundle is  

i t  12?  Yes Eskom Bundle 12.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay and what is the page number? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   The page number is 230.  

CHAIRPERSON:   230 okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   230.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You can cont inue as soon as Mr Tsotsi  has 

found the page in the meant ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:   But  you wi l l  know whether we need to 

check or where to  f ind i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And we can do wi thout  … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Oh ja.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   I t  just  in [ ta lk ing over one another] .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Let  me read i t?  Let  me read i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    

“Mr Tsotsi  you are cal led to th is meet ing on 

the 30 March that  is because you could not  

be removed on the 19 March.   On the 30 

March you have the charges given to you and 

now you are making your presentat ion to the 

board on each of  the charges. ”    10 

And al though Sekhasimbe issue is not  one of  the charges.  

MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You did address i t  in that  meet ing.   At  the 

bot tom of  the page of  230 the minute taker records:  

“ In respect  of  the nominat ion of  Mr 

Sekhasimbe as act ing CE.”  

And this is what Chairperson recol lected ear l ier.   

“Mr Tsotsi  stated that  al though Mr 

Sekhasimbe was a good candidate he could 

not  be considered as he was on suspension. ”  20 

So they record that  you said this.  

MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So this is – these are minutes of  what 

meet ing? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   These are minutes of  the board meet ing 
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Chairperson page 226.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  what date? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   On 30 March 2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh so this is now Mr – they are recording 

what was said on that  date.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   About something that  happened before.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  would be interest ing now i f  there is  

anybody who said no,  no,  no but  you said you want  him to 10 

act .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Chair  i f  you turn to  page 232 these are 

the minutes that  get  to be signed more than a year  later by 

Dr Ngubane on the 18 November 2016.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And there is no indicat ion of  anybody who 

contradicted Mr Tsotsi  to say that  is not  what you to ld us at  

the board two weeks back or whatever.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Not  at  al l  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Because in fact  on page 231 the second 20 

last  paragraph i t  says:  

“The act ing Chai rman thanked Mr Tsotsi  for  

his presentat ion and asked members i f  they 

wanted to clar i fy on any i tems.”  

And I  put  th is to Ms Venete Klein that  they were given the 
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opportuni ty to ask quest ions on Mr Tsotsi ’s presentat ion why 

did they not  ask quest ions?  Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  remember.   Okay no that  is al r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  looks l ike Mr Tsotsi  these minutes 

seem to be consistent  wi th what you are saying in terms of  

what you say you had told the board about Mr Sekhasimbe 

because you are saying – you had told them that  al though he 

would have been in your view the r ight  person to act  he was 

suspended and therefore could not  which is  what th is says.   10 

Ja okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Mr Tsotsi  then related to th is issue 

of  Mr Sekhasimbe is  the Sumitomo issue which is  al leged 

qui te  extensively  by Mr Koko;  Mr Koko has provided the 

commission wi th  an aff idavi t  in which he says:   You signed a 

let ter to Sumitomo a Japanese company commit t ing Eskom 

to a payment to th is company and when he discovered this I  

th ink the let ter was ei ther sent  by Mr Sekhasimbe to 

Sumitomo or was i t  brought to you by him – he then took 

steps to suspend him.   20 

You were unhappy about the suspension of  Mr  

Sekhasimbe.  You asked Mr Matona to approach Mr Koko 

about the issue.   According to Mr Koko you said to Mr 

Matona tel l  Koko – Mr Koko to reverse the suspension and 

he said he wi l l  not  reverse the suspension.   
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 And as a resul t  of  h is refusal  to reverse that  

suspension he bel ieves that  that  is  how he was suspended 

on the 11 March 2015.  Because Mr Matona said to him i f  

you do not  l i f t  the suspension of  Mr Sekhasimbe you and I  

are going to be suspended.  And he bel ieves on the 11t h that  

is how he was suspended. I t  is because of  you.  

MR TSOTSI:   Chai r  that  is a complete fabr icat ion.   I  th ink 

the corroborat ions of  the other wi tnesses who have come 

before th is commission for me are suff ic ient  to dispel  the 

idea that  Mr Matshela is proposing to the extent  that  I  recal l  10 

very speci f ical ly that  Mr Matona himsel f  does not  accord wi th  

what is being al leged he is supposed to have done or  said.  

So I  am – I  have to dismiss what Mr Matshela is al leging.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja wel l  at  least  there seems to be an 

acceptance by many of  the wi tnesses that  the idea that  he 

and the other execut ives should be suspended is an idea you 

got  for the f i rst  t ime at  the Durban meet ing.   So there is that  

but  he wi l l  g ive his evidence and we wi l l  hear.    

He might  have genuinely bel ieved that  i t  was because 

of  that  and maybe by now he has heard a lot  of  evidence i f  20 

he is fo l lowing about where the idea of  the suspension of  the 

execut ives seems to have come from.  So he wi l l  come and 

he wi l l  g ive evidence.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Chai r.   Chair  I  may just  point  out  

yesterday we received a supplementary aff idavi t  f rom Mr 



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 256 of 310 
 

Matona where he rebuts those al legat ions  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   We have forwarded i t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   To Mr Tsotsi .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   To Mr Tsotsi  and Mr Koko.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay al r ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  a ff idavi t  wi l l  f ind i tse l f  into the 

bundle of  Mr Matona.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   In due course.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Now Mr Koko – Mr 

Tsotsi  I  beg your pardon.   L inked wi th that  because you know 

i t  is important  we have not  touched on the sequence of  

events and you need to tel l  the Chai rperson the sequence of 

events insofar as you recal l .    

When I  ta lk about  the sequence I  mean the 

chronology,  the dates of  the events.   Because then you get  

to the t ime when you meet wi th the Minister.   Where the 

Minister says to you Mr Chai rperson I  understand f rom the 20 

management and f rom the di rectorate that  you are interfer ing 

wi th the execut ives.   Now that  is in 2015.  

MR TSOTSI:   Yes that  is in 2015 around the t ime of  the- of  

the SONA.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   The State of  the Nat ion Address.  
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MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   That  is in February 2015.  Because Mr 

Tsotsi  a l leges that  the issue of  Sumitomo arose dur ing or  

about  June 2014.  

MR TSOTSI:   Mr Matona.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr Koko.  

MR TSOTSI:   Okay Mr Koko yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes I  beg your pardon.   Mr Koko.  

MR TSOTSI:   Yes.   That  is about  correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now the Minister  in her aff idavi t  expl ic i t ly 10 

says an execut ive came to her  – one execut ive and 

complained about you interfer ing wi th management.   

Chairperson the same bundle of  Mr Tsotsi  page 450.    

CHAIRPERSON:   The Reference Bundle?  Not  the Reference 

Bundle.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Not  the one of  Mr Tsotsi .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh what page? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Page 450.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Eskom Bundle 7[a] .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Page 450 paragraph 1 – i t  starts at  100 

but  I  want  to pick i t  up at  101.   Because at  100 the Minister  

refers to the quest ion which we asked her and we put  the 

vers ion of  Mr Tsotsi  to her about  the meet ing in February 
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2015 which she reproduces there.   Am I  – you found i t?  

MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Mr Tsotsi  okay.  

MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then paragraph 101 the Minister says  

“The only related conversat ion I  remember 

having wi th Mr Zola Tsotsi  related to his 

interference with management for operat ional  

issues as opposed to d irectorate issues.   In  

his oral  test imony before the commission he 10 

conf i rms this referr ing to me he says 

whereupon the Minister had.   Wel l  in th is 

instance he was not  happy about the fact  

that  I  was said to be interfer ing wi th  

management.   There have been complaints 

about  Mr Zola Tsotsi  both f rom the 

execut ives and the directorate. ”  

Now she adds:   

“The directorate.  What comes to mind in  

part icular was that  one of  the execut ives 20 

came to see me in person complaining about  

Mr Tsotsi ’s interference with operat ional  

issues producing a let ter al legedly penned by 

Mr Tsotsi  to a Japanese company about  

buying oi l  or some other fuel  I  decided I  had 
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to intervene.   This is why I  invi ted Mr Tsotsi  

repr imanded him and directed him to refrain  

f rom interfer ing wi th management.   As to the 

verbat im exchange I  cannot recal l .   I  do 

recal l  that  the meet ing was tense.   The 

exchange could have been intemperate.   I  

must  also say that  I  d id  not  have the best  of  

re lat ionship wi th Mr Tsotsi .   We did not  real ly  

get  on wel l  wi th each other. ”  

Says the Minister.   She says.   Do you know what the Minister 10 

is ta lk ing about there?  The Japanese company? 

MR TSOTSI:   Yes Chai r.   I  must  assume that  when she says 

one of  the execut ives came to her to complain about my 

interference in management she must  be referr ing to th is  

incident  and hence consequent ly re ferr ing to Mr Matshela as 

the person who would have come to her.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  – was i t  something acceptable for any 

execut ive at  Eskom or  any SOE for  that  matter other  than at 

least  the CEO Group CEO to bypass this Group CEO, bypass 

the board and go and speak to the Minister about  issues at  20 

work?  Was that  something that  was permit ted;  was that  

using the r ight  channels? Was the posi t ion not  that  normal ly 

you would be the contact  person for the Minister but  

obviously i f  somebody needed to complain to the Minister  

about  you they would not  ask you to speak to the Minister  
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about  i t .  But  then one would have thought that  any execut ive 

would speak to the Group CEO and i t  would be the Group 

CEO who one would have expected would f i rst  ra ise the 

issue wi th you or wi th the board.   But  certainly i f  the Group 

CEO approached the Minister about  a complaint  relat ing to 

the board or  to  the chairperson one might  be able to  

understand that  compared to an execut ive lower than the 

Group CEO bypassing the Group CEO; going to the Minister 

to speak about the chai rperson of  the board.  

MR TSOTSI:   You are correct  Chairman.  I f  protocol  in the 10 

organisat ion was very clear about  how the communicat ion 

should work.   The least  I  would have expected would be for  

the Chief  Execut ive to have received such a complaint  and 

put  i t  to me and i f  he fel t  that  he needed to pass i t  onto the 

shareholder because i t  involved the chairman then he had 

the opportuni ty to contact  the Di rector General  who then 

could process the issue at  the level  of  the Minister.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The Minister.  

MR TSOTSI:   That  would have been… 

CHAIRPERSON:   The channels.  20 

MR TSOTSI:   The channel  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight .   And the Minister does not  

seem to – does not  say anyth ing here about having taken 
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object ion to th is execut ive whoever i t  was i f  i t  was not  the 

Group CEO bypassing the Group CEO and going to – and the 

board and going to ta lk to her.  

MR TSOTSI:   Not  only that  Chair  but  to – just  to elaborate 

some on this mat ter.   When she approached me about th is 

part icular issue and of  course I  knew what she was talk ing 

about she did not  even ask for – f rom me what my s ide of  the 

story is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR TSOTSI:   You know she did not  say to what is  10 

happening,  can you explain to me what actual ly t ranspi red?  

She decided that  i t  was opportune for her just  to repr imand 

me on the basis of  what she had been informed by a member 

of  the execut ives.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The execut ive ja.  

MR TSOTSI:   Without  having – who did not  fo l low – bother to 

fo l low any proper protocol .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Mr Tsotsi  I  intended 

exact ly to ask you the quest ion.  20 

MR TSOTSI:   Sorry Si r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   No,  no that  is f ine because al though the 

Minister says what she is saying the quest ion is did she 

ment ion that  to you?  Did she say i t  to you th is is the reason 

why I  am speaking wi th you.   One execut ive has said to me 
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you have wri t ten a let ter commit t ing Eskom to payment in  

respect  of  th is Japanese company.  

MR TSOTSI:   No she never – she never addressed the issue.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Wel l  your vers ion is up there.   The 

Minister has reproduced your vers ion in her aff idavi t .   Do 

you see that?  And this is where the Minister says to you 

“Chai rman I  have received complaints f rom management and 

board members that  you are interfer ing in management.   

Please ref ra in f rom doing so because i f  you do not  I  shal l  

have to f ind someone else to do your job. ”  10 

MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   But  she later in her aff idavi t  says:  

“As to the verbat im exchange I  cannot 

recal l . ”  

MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  does appear on her version – on 

her own version i t  does appear l ike she did not  give you a 

chance to – to respond to whatever the execut ive concerned 

or board members who might  have spoken to her what they 

real ly said you had done wrong.  20 

MR TSOTSI:   That  is correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  does appear she on her version she had 

made up her mind whatever they have told her you have 

done.  

MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   And she was then repr imanding you and 

saying stop i t  otherwise I  wi l l  f ind somebody else to  do your 

job.  

MR TSOTSI:   Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the impression one gets f rom her  

own version.  

MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Then Mr Tsotsi  there is another vers ion 

of  the Minister which I  want to place to you.   Turn the page 

to 451.   This is now in regard to your removal  Mr Tsotsi .  10 

MR TSOTSI:   Chair  I  do not  know i f  I  am – I  want to belabour 

th is point  but  i t  is  noteworthy that  the individual  who was the 

subject  of  a l l  of  th is to her about  my interfer ing wi th  

management went  to the CCMA and was – what is the word 

now – what is the legal  word?  Shal l  I  say acqui t ted is that  

correct  or was i t?  The CCMA … 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Vindicated.  

MR TSOTSI:   He was vindicated at  the CCMA that  he had 

been unfair ly t reated.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  20 

MR TSOTSI:   By this act ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR TSOTSI:   Of  suspension.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So his suspension was found to have been 

unfai r?  
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MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is now we are talk ing about Mr 

Sekhasimbe? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Sekhasimbe.  

MR TSOTSI:   Sekhasimbe.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Um.  

MR TSOTSI:   Sekhasimbe.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes Sekhasimbe okay.  

MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you just  making the point  that  your 10 

views that  you held about his suspension were vindicated 

because the CCMA found that  the suspension was unfai r.  

MR TSOTSI:   Correct  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR TSOTSI:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Now Mr Tsotsi  you wi l l  assist  us obta in 

that  informat ion.  

MR TSOTSI:    I  would gladly do Chai r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja.   Thank you.   Was he reinstated? 20 

MR TSOTSI:   He – there was an inst ruct ion f rom the CCMA I  

gather that  he was to be reinstated but  the – the person in 

charge of  the CCMA proceedings I  gather indicated that  i t  

would be – he would be enter ing host i le environment – work 

environment.   He should – his ent i t lement should go back to 
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work but  the person fe l t  that  he would be enter ing a host i le 

work envi ronment  and may have to opt  for negot ia t ing his  

departure f rom the organisat ion.   But  I  th ink the rul ing of  the 

CCMA would make i t  c lear as to what actual ly t ranspi red.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you.   Then in regard to your 

removal .   I  have said page 451.   The minister deals wi th the 

removal  of  yoursel f  as chairman of  the board and she says in  

paragraph 108 that :  

“This was a vote issue and I  d id not  interfere.   I  d id  10 

not  have any pr ivate discussions wi th Mr Tsotsi  

about  th is.    

I  do know that  eventual ly Mr Tsotsi  and the board 

reached some understanding and set t led the matter.   

As I  understood the arrangement,  he would resign 

so that  his name does not  tarnish as a di rector and 

so can cont inue serv ing on other boards. ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    Of  course,  she was not  there.   She is just  

saying this based on whatever repor ts she had received.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And that  is what we want to test  20 

Chairman.  That  is exact ly . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  but  I  do not  know whether you want to  

f i rst  check wi th Mr Tsotsi  because not  somebody who was 

there.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    So you see?  So I  do not  th ink you 

should. . .  ra ise that  wi th Tsotsi .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The people who can speak about that ,  the 

board members.   She must have received certain reports.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    She is interpret ing certain things.   So I  do 

not  th ink you. . .  I  th ink you should move on to something 

else,  ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Because she was not  there.   She was not  

part  of  the board meet ing.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Should I  ask him one quest ion,  Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And that  is that  she did not  interfere.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mr Tsotsi ,  are you able to respond to 

that  al legat ion by the minister that  she did not  interfere in 

the issue between you – what she says is an issue between 

you and the board? 20 

MR TSOTSI :    Chai rman, let  me say what I  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR TSOTSI :    And want to make a judgment as wel l  that  

const i tutes interference or not .   The meet ing of  the 

19t h of  March where I  was f i rst  or where I  f i rst  encountered 
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these charges,  that  meet ing f in ished in the ear ly hours of  the 

morning around one o’c lock or something.    

 And the same day,  I  knew and I  was told that  the board 

had requested – in fact ,  i t  is in the minutes – the board 

requested to have a meet ing wi th the minister.    

 Now when they asked that  I  should recuse mysel f  f rom 

that  meet ing,  i t  was blatant ly  obvious to me that  they want to  

ta lk about  me and the issue that  they have ra ised wi th me in 

the previous meet ing.    

 Now I  have consistent ly asked for minutes of  that  10 

part icular meet ing because for me that  would have been very 

signi f icant  because I  needed to know how the board 

presented the issue to the minister  because that  wi l l  

determine thei r  own ro le in  terms of  how that  meet ing was 

conducted.    

 And I  have pers istent ly not  been able to f ind those 

minutes.   I  recal l  in Cape Town at  the par l iamentary hearing,  

I  speci f ical ly pointed out  the fact  that  those minutes are 

important  for one to get  a sense as to exact ly what happened 

in that  meet ing of  the 20t h.    20 

 And I  th ink i t  wi l l  be worthwhi le to explore wi th members 

who were present  in that  meet ing exact ly what happened.  

So her presence there and the discussion that  went on,  

culminated in now my formal – me being formal ly charged.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  
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MR TSOTSI :    Ja,  I  th ink i t  is  up to whoever who wants to 

make a determinat ion as to whether the minister effect ively 

interfered or not .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you t r ied to  get  those minutes? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    The minutes Chai rperson of  the 19t h 

when Mr Tsotsi  is . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  I  th ink the one he is ta lk ing about 

is. . . [ intervenes]   

MR TSOTSI :    The 20t h.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .between the board and the 10 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MR TSOTSI :    And the minister.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .and the minister.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  those minutes he is ta lk ing about.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Oh,  no we do not  have those minutes 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you asked for them? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Chai r.   There is  the minutes.   I  see 

my invest igator is  s ignal l ing to me.  Yes,  they did ask for the 20 

minutes.   They were not  given i f  those minutes exist .  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  we know whether minutes were taken.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    No,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What. . .  I  do not  know whether dur ing your 

t ime,  the board or  members of  the board had. . .  ever had the 
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meet ing wi th the minister other than in a si tuat ion where the 

minister came to a meet ing of  the board in which case there 

would be minutes.   But  i f  they went to see here,  would 

minutes normal ly be taken?  Do you know? 

MR TSOTSI :    They ought to be taken Chai r.   There is no 

reason why they should not  be taken.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  I f  i t  is formal business 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MR TSOTSI :    . . . the minutes were avai lable.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .because they are coming to discuss 10 

formal business.  

MR TSOTSI :    Correct .    

[Part ies intervening each other and cannot be heard c lear ly. ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  in terms of  your experience,  had there 

been such meet ings between the board or members of  the 

board delegat ion wi th  the minister  outside of  board 

meet ings?  And i f  so,  would there have been minutes that  

were kept  in  the past?  Because you were a long-serving 

member of  the board.    

MR TSOTSI :    Chai r,  I  do not  recal l  there be a meet ing 20 

wi th. . .  Minister Gigaba, actual ly only at tended, to the best  of  

my recol lect ion,  a meet ing when we have asked him or he 

has requested to address a part icular issue.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR TSOTSI :    But  that  did not  happen very of ten.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.   Wel l ,  at  least  what should be 

done is to get  people who would know that  about  that  

meet ing,  such as the person who was the chai r.   The person 

was the chai rperson of  the board at  the t ime or who was 

act ing as chairperson and the company secretary i f  her or 

she was there in that  meet ing wi th the minister.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    To depose to aff idavi ts to say:   Did the 

meet ing take place?  Were there minutes?  What was 

discussed?  There should be aff idavi ts by people.   The 10 

minister hersel f  should be – i f  she does not  deal  wi th that  in  

her aff idavi t  – should be asked to depose to an aff idavi t  to 

say whether such a meet ing did take p lace wi th her.   What 

was discussed.   As far as she knows were there minutes.   

Blah-blah-blah. ’  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mr Tsotsi ,  so you are saying there was a 20 

meet ing on the 20 t h of  March? 

MR TSOTSI :    The 20t h of  March,  yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So you were not  invi ted to that  meet ing? 

MR TSOTSI :    I  was expl ic i t ly exc luded f rom that  meet ing,  

yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Who told you that  you are excluded? 

MR TSOTSI :    I f  I  recal l ,  I  th ink i t  was Dr Ngubane who 

asked that  I  should recuse mysel f  because he was act ing 

chairman at  the t ime.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   No,  we . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  do not  know i f  the two are not  

ta lk ing at  cross-purposes.   Were you asking him whether he 

was not  invi ted to the meet ing between the board and the 

minister? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Of  20 March.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Of  20 March? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  is the meet ing that  we have been 

talk ing about? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  is r ight  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And Mr Tsotsi ,  you said you were 

excluded f rom the meet ing.   Were you saying that  because 

the decision to go and see the minister was taken in a 20 

meet ing f rom which you were excluded?  Or was there 

speci f ic decision or is there somebody who said:   No,  you 

must  not  come along.  

MR TSOTSI :    I  was speci f ical ly to ld by Dr Ngubane that  I  

should recuse mysel f  f rom the meet ing.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  the meet ing wi th the minister? 

MR TSOTSI :    With the minister,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  okay.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So that  is f ine.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay that  is f ine.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So he is there on the meet ing – at  the 

meet ing on the 19 t h Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  meet ing that  takes place overn ight .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    They stopped at  around – to one the 

next  morning.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  the meet ing of  the 19t h,  is the posi t ion 

not  that  that  is the meet ing where they asked him to leave 

the meet ing.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And when he comes back,  Dr Ngubane is 

chair ing.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And suddenly he is just  a di rector  now.  

He is no longer chairperson.   From then on,  did he ever 

come back to be a chai rperson?  Mr Tsotsi ,  you never came 

back to be chai rperson or did you? 
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MR TSOTSI :    No,  Chai r  I  d id  not  chair  any meet ing 

subsequent to that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Af ter that ,  ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Is there anyth ing further that  you want   

to te l l  the Chairperson about the meet ing of  the 19t h? 

MR TSOTSI :    Chai r,  something I  thought I  observed and I  

could not  qui te understand what to  make of  i t ,  was that  the 10 

meet ing of  the 19 t h when I  was chair ing the meet ing at  that  

point  in t ime, was in process and we were discussing Eskom 

business.    

 And then,  at  some point ,  Mr Romeo Khumalo walked into 

the meet ing.   And he whispered something to Dr Ngubane.  

And i t  is at  that  point  I  was asked to recuse mysel f  f rom the 

meet ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR TSOTSI :    Ja.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  I  remember you ment ioned that  in the 20 

past .   

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.   So I  got  the impression,  for what i t  is 

worth,  that  there was a message that  must  have come in  

f rom somewhere.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  
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MR TSOTSI :    That  i t  is t ime to deal  wi th th is person in th is  

part icular way.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR TSOTSI :    That  I  thought was rather unusual  but  that  was 

the last  t ime I  chaired a meet ing of  the board.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

MR TSOTSI :    And incidental ly,  I  a lso requested Chair  the 

minutes of  the discussion which took place . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    In your absence? 

MR TSOTSI :    . . .on the 30t h now when I  was now defending 10 

mysel f  in terms of  the charges in the presence of  my 

at torneys as wel l  as the Eskom’s at torneys.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MR TSOTSI :    Because at  the end of  my presentat ion,  I  was 

asked and my team was asked to recuse ourselves.   And the 

board del iberated.   Up to now, I  do not  know what i t  was that  

they were del iberat ing on.   And I  have not  been able to f ind 

out .   And I  have requested those minutes and I  was never  

given those minutes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Seleka,  has your team asked for the 20 

minutes of  those del iberat ions? 

MR TSOTSI :    Because I  may add Chair  just  for ease of  

reference for Mr Seleka.   I f  you look at  the end of  the 

recordal  of  the minutes of  the 30th,  there is a statement 

there which says minutes of  the – whatever they cal l  i t -  
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minutes of  in-commit tee or what – are kept  separately.   I  was 

very int r igued by that  because . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR TSOTSI :    . . . that  minutes do exist . . .   Sorry,  i f  you look at  

the minutes of  the 30t h of  March,  the end of  that  minute,  

there is a statement at  the bot tom there.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja.  

MR TSOTSI :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Chairperson,  what we have in regard to  

the meet ing of  the 19t h.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    We have on single documents which is 

the minutes of  the meet ing.   I t  records when Mr Khumalo 

comes in.   I t  records when the board takes a break and i t  

resumes.  And at  resumpt ion,  Mr Tsotsi  is asked to be 

excused.   And you have a minute of  what takes place in his 

absence to the end of  that  discussion when he is cal led 

back.  

CHAIRPERSON :    yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And the meet ing gets adjourned.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So you have i t  in the same document.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR TSOTSI :    That  is for the 19t h Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  
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MR TSOTSI :    That  I  accept .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  that  is for the 19t h.   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which is also important .   I t  is good that  

you have said that .    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  he has added now something in 

regard to the 30t h,  the minutes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He says af ter he and his legal  team had 10 

made a presentat ion,  they were asked to leave for the board 

to del iberate,  I  guess on the presentat ion.   And he says he 

has asked for the minutes which would cover  those 

del iberat ions.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  he says he has never been furnished 

with those.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Yes,  no . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    And he says the minutes of  the 30t h  

. . . [ intervenes]   20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  am looking . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . ref lect  that  those minutes of  the 

del iberat ions were kept  separate.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  so which means they must  be in 
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existence somewhere.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja,  that  is i f  they recorded them Chai r.   

They do say,  as Mr Tsots i  points out ,  just  before closure the 

minute-taker had indicated in-commit tee minutes are kept  

separately.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  know that  we do have some of  the 

minutes of  in-commit tee board meet ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    But  the invest igators do not  have. . .  they 10 

do not  have the one which Mr Tsots i  is referr ing to where he 

was excused in that  meet ing.   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    So we wi l l  make a note of  that .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink make a note and the company 

secretary must  be asked for the minutes of  the board’s  

del iberat ions af ter the presentat ion by Mr Tsotsi  and his  

legal  team . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .on the 30t h.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Okay al r ight .  

MR TSOTSI :    Can I  just  on that  point  Chai r  because I  th ink 

this is very important  because that  de l iberat ion wi l l  te l l  us 

what mot ivated . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR TSOTSI :    . . . for them to discard my presentat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR TSOTSI :    And in fact ,  opt  for . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR TSOTSI :    . . .my having to be struck off  as a di rector.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   Wel l ,  Dr  Ngubane’s evidence – I  do 

not  know whether  th is is what may have emerged f rom those 

del iberat ions – his evidence was that  somebody – I  do not  

know i f  i t  was him – came up wi th the idea to say:   You know,  10 

we must ta lk to Mr Tsotsi  and say maybe he should resign 

because i f  we pass a vote of  no conf idence,  that  is  going to 

impact  negat ively on him.   

 And I  th ink he said he was then mandated.   I  do not  

alone or  together wi th somebody else to approach you to put  

th is idea of  you resigning.   To say:   Look,  i f  we. . .  i f  the board 

passes a vote of  no conf idence,  i t  is going to impact  

negat ively on you.   Maybe i t  is bet ter i f  you just  resign.   That  

is what he said.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  I  do recal l  that  Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   So i t  is just  that  I  do not  know 

whether he said that  was discussed outside of  the 

del iberat ions of  the board or whether i t  was dur ing the 

del iberat ions.   But  we know that  in the end,  that  is what 

happened. 
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MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MR TSOTSI :    I  a lso heard that  Mr Baloyi  was a sending 

voice in those del iberat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.   But  i t  might  be helpful  to get  

those minutes i f  they exist .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Let  us move on.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja,  we wi l l  f in ish . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    We are at  twelve minutes past  eight .  10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   I  have got . . .   Chai r,  we are 

f in ished.   The Chair  is correct  that  that  Mr Venete Kle in ’s 

evidence.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  that  is Ms Klein’s evidence? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  is Ms Venete Klein’s evidence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mister. . .   I  have got  three points Chai r.   

Ar is ing f rom the aff idavi t  recent ly received and the 20 

Chairperson has not  seen that  aff idavi t  of  Mr Zethembe 

Khoza.   Mr Tsots i ,  which you. . .  a copy of  which you were 

favoured wi th.   Has i t  been included in the Reference 

Bundle?   

INVESTIGATORS :    [No audible reply]   
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Chai r,  i t  has been included in the 

Reference Bundle.   But  there is a  paragraph there by Mr 

Zethembe Khoza.   Al though he . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Do we know what  page i t  is in the bundle? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  i f  you do not  th ink I  need to go to i t ,  i t  

is f ine.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja,  i t  is the . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe i t  is f ine,  I  th ink.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  is the smal ler  bundle.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You can let  me know later on.   You can put  

to Mr Tsotsi  what you want to put .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Page? 

INVESTIGATORS :    [No audible reply]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Page 447.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    447.  

CHAIRPERSON :    On the same bundle? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    From the Eskom Bundle 13.   I t  is a 

cont inuat ion of  the Reference Bundle.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  cont inue.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Mr Tsotsi ,  there is an al legat ion 

there regard ing you . . . [ intervenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Just  repeat  the page for Mr Tsotsi .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    447.  

CHAIRPERSON :    447.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    On page.. .   That  is the beginning page 

of  the aff idavi t .   The speci f ic paragraph I  want to read f rom 

is,  is 454.    

MR TSOTSI :    447.   I  have got  the wrong document.   What,  

what?  What document is that? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Eskom Bundle 13.    

MR TSOTSI :    [No audible reply]   10 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Eskom Bundle 13.  

MR TSOTSI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    You can have mine.  

MR TSOTSI :    Okay,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Just  go straight  to page 454.  

MR TSOTSI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Paragraph 34,  Mr Zethembe Khoza 

wri tes:  

“ I  do not  recal l  that  the minister. . .  

 No,  i t  is not  th is one.    20 

MR TSOTSI :    46? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  there is  an al legat ion he makes 

about you regarding the pre-suspension let ters.  

MR TSOTSI :    46.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    46.   Thank you.   Page 457 Chairperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  am now at  454.   You say I  must  go back 

to 447? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    To 457.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  457? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    457.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Paragraph 46.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay yes? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Mr Zethembe says:  

“ I  do not  recal l  exact ly when and cannot f ind the 10 

record of  same but  Tsotsi  sent  me pre-suspension 

let ters for Marokane,  Molefe,  Koko and Matona 

which al luded to their  a l leged misconduct .    

At  the t ime, I  thought that  the let ters would be 

prepared Linnel l  in order to assist  the board.   

However,  as the board did not  charge the execut ives 

in any way,  these let ters were ul t imately never  

ut i l ised.    

As I  was re l ieved f rom my role as chai rman of  the 

People in Governance Commit tee,  I  was t ransmit ted 20 

copies of  these let ters to Klein on 14 March 2015.   

The copy of  the emai l  is annexed hereto,  marked 

ZK9.”  

 Now Mr Tsotsi ,  I  provided you wi th th is aff idavi t  and I  

bel ieve you have had a chance to look at  i t .  
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MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mr Zethembe said you,  al though he 

cannot recal l  when and cannot f ind a record of  same, he 

nonetheless says,  he got  pre-suspension let ters f rom you.   

And might  I  add?   

 That  th is pre-suspension let ters are also talked about  by 

Ms Venete Klein in her aff idavi t ,  a l though she does not  

ment ion you,  nor  does she ment ion Mr Zethembe Khoza in  

her aff idavi t .    

 But  when she test i f ied here,  she said that  she recal ls 10 

she received these let ters f rom Mr Zethembe Khoza.   Now 

Mr Khoza said he received them from you even though he 

has no record or recol lect ion of  exact ly when.   

 Now Chairperson,  these are the let ters that  in  the 

aff idavi t  of  Ms Venete Klein,  she says that  were authored by 

Ms Suzanne Daniels together wi th Mr Sal im Essa.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  see Mr Khoza says that  as wel l .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Says the same thing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   He certainly says that  at  paragraph 

47.  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  is r ight  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    He says:  

“Whi le preparing this aff idavi t ,  I  not iced that  the pre-

suspension let ters were actual ly prepared by 

Daniels and edi ted by Mr Sal im Essa.”  
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 I  th ink i t  is the same let ters that  in the previous 

paragraph he says he thought he got  f rom Mr Tsotsi .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And he thought that  they had been 

prepared by Mr Linnel l .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  is r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  is what he says at  46 but  a t  47 he 

says:  

“Whi le preparing this aff idavi t ,  I  not iced that  the pre-

suspension let ters were actual ly prepared by 10 

Daniels and edi ted by Mr Sal im Essa.”  

 He says:  

“The propert ies of  the document show this as I  have 

now discovered.   Again,  I  d id not  know how to check 

who has authored or edi ted the Word document pr ior  

to know.”  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Mr Tsotsi ,  your comment on this? 

MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  Chai r.   Fi rst  of  a l l ,  I  th ink,  I  do not  know 20 

where Mr Khoza got  th is  f rom but  wi thout  a  doubt I  never  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    But  I  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR TSOTSI :    . . .sadly . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  do not  know Mr Seleka we should 
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order to let  h im comment because in effect ,  Mr Khoza seems 

to be retract ing that  or is that  not  your understanding? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    No,  that  is  exact ly my understanding 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   He f i rst  says he thought he got  them 

from Mr Tsotsi  and af ter they had been prepared by 

Mr Linnel l .   But  the next  paragraph he says:   No,  actual ly,  

when now preparing this aff idavi t ,  I  real ised that  they were 

prepared by Daniels and edi ted by Sal im Essa.   So I  do not  

th ink Mr Tsotsi  needs to comment  further on i t  because in 10 

effect ,  he is wi thdrawing what he has said before.   

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Should we move on 

Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I  am happy to move on.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  move on.   Move on.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   And then.   Mr Tsotsi ,  a minor  th ing.   

Wel l ,  I  am going to leave that  one.   There is  a meet ing af ter 

you have resigned.   You have resigned.   There is a  meet ing 

between you and Ms Molefe as she talks about  in her  20 

aff idavi t  where you – she says apologise to her that  she 

should not  have been suspended.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    You conf i rm that  meet ing? 

MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  Chai r.   I  fe l t  very aggr ieved about in  
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part icular about  her suspension and I  just  fe l t  the need to 

say to her that  I  d id not  be l ieve she should have been 

suspended.   

 And I  made this  clear in  the way I  addressed the issue of  

the FD coming in  as part  of  the l is t  of  the execut ives to be 

suspended.  I  pret ty much had a good sense of  what is l ikely  

to happen.   

 Let  alone the fact  that  I  d id not  bel ieve that  there was 

anything to invest igate in the Department of  Finance.   When 

I  say I  had a sense of  what was l ike ly to happen actual ly did 10 

occur when I  was conf ronted by a whole host  of  investors of  

Eskom who were asking these quest ions.    

 And they part icular ly wanted to know what has the FD 

done.  Because she,  I  mean, the Financial  Di rector  is the 

custodian of  the investment of  the investors of  the business.   

So I  pret ty much knew that  there was going to be this  

problem.   

 And incidental ly,  Mark Pamensky also ment ioned that  

dur ing the one of  the – I  th ink i t  was the PMG Meet ing i f  I  

recal l  correct ly.    20 

 So I  am just ,  you know, connect ing these issues 

because I  u l t imately fe l t  that  I  needed to say to Ms Molefe 

she should never real ly had been suspended.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Chai r,  that  actual ly marks the end of  my 
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quest ions.   I  have something on the composi t ion of  the sub-

commit tees but  he has now deal t  wi th i t  in  one way.   We 

wi l l . . .   I  th ink we wi l l  test  i t  wi th the min ister.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i f  you want to ask h im about that ,  

you can ask him.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Can I  ask? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja.   Mr Tsotsi ,  Nokholo(?) has provided 

us wi th an aff idavi t  to which some of  the emai ls exchanged 

between you and the minister are at tached and this  10 

speci f ical ly relates to the composi t ion of  the board.    

 Then the emai ls are dated. . .   your  emai l  to the minister  

is 26 January 2015.  The min ister respond to that  by emai l  

dated 28 January 2015.  26t h,  23r d(?) [c lear ing of  throat  by 

wi tness]    You f i rst  sent  an emai l  wi th  the composi t ion.   

Chai r,  for your benef i t ,  I  th ink you need to have a look at  i t .   

That  is Eskom Bundle 10 and Exhib i t  U22.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    And this is the last . . .  I  am explor ing wi th 

Mr Tsotsi .   Eskom Bundle 2,  Exhibi t  22.  20 

MR TSOTSI :    Number? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    10.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Exhibi t  22.  

MR TSOTSI :    Page? 



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 288 of 310 
 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Page 471.   And your  emai l  starts  on 

page – thank you Mr Tsotsi .    Your  emai l  i s  be low the  

min is te r ’s  emai l .   So your  emai l  f rom Zo la  Tsots i ,  da te  i s  

26  January  2015 a t  13 .52 .   You address the  emai l  to  

Lynne.Brown5@me.com and the  sub jec t  i s :  

“Dep loyment  o f  nonexecut ive  board  members  to  

board  commi t tees . ”  

MR TSOTSI :    My  emai l  i s  on  what  page?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    472.  

MR TSOTSI :    472,  okay.  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  you fo rward  to  the  m in i s te r  your  

emai l  be low.   So your  emai l  be low reads:  

“Dear  Min i s te r,  p lease f ind  the  rev ised board  

subcommi t tee  dep loyment  as  fo l lows:   

Aud i t  and R isk . . . ”  

You g ive  the  names and I  be l ieve  we shou ld  read accord ing  

to  how you have  a lmost  tabu la ted  them,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   

Under  aud i t  and r i sk  i s  Chway i ta  Mabude and you go to  the  

next  page,  Vi roshn i  Na idoo,  Nad ia  Car r im,  Romeo Kumalo ,  

Norman Ba loy i .  20 

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Do you see tha t?   And the  l i s t  car r ies  

on ,  under  Tender  and Procurement  you have Ben Ngubane  

as  the  Cha i rperson.   A t  the  next  page,  i t  i s  Chway i ta  

Mabude,  Zethembe Khoza,  Naz ia  Car r im.   And then the  
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IFC,  Mapamenz i ,  Pat  Na idoo,  Zethembe Khoza,  Ven i ta  

K le in  and so  on .   There  are  some mis takes he re  in  the  

names.   The spe l l ing  o f  the  names.    

MR TSOTSI :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    For  ins tance,  Naz ia  Car r im,  she is  no t  

Nad ia ,  she is  Naz ia .  

MR TSOTSI :    Cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Kumalo  is  spe l t  w i thout  an  h .  

MR TSOTSI :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Khoza  is  no t  Za thembe,  i t  i s  10 

Zethembe Khoza.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Were  these your  m is takes?   

Typograph ica l  e r ro rs?    

MR TSOTSI :    They must  have been,  Cha i r,  t ypograph ica l  

e r ro rs .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Then the  m in i s te r  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  a re  you sure  tha t  th is  was your  

compos i t ion?  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  Cha i r,  on  the  bas is  o f  th is  ema i l  i t  has 20 

to  be ,  yes .    

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR TSOTSI :    We l l ,  le t  me [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You remember  there  is  another  

compos i t ion  tha t  we are  s t i l l  l ook ing  fo r,  I  do  no t  know i f  
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you  found i t  in  the  meant ime.  

MR TSOTSI :    Cha i r,  th is  emai l  i s  a  cu lm inat ion  o f  the  back  

and fo r th  tha t  occur red  on th is  i ssue between the  m in is te r  

and myse l f  and I  guess I  shou ld  say be tween th ree  o f  us,  

Sa l im Essa,  m in is te r  and myse l f .   Now I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t  

fo l low ing the  m in is te r ’s  ins is tence when we met  a t  our  

house,  where  I  sa id  Tony Gupta  was p resent  and  so  was 

Sa l im Essa,  th is  wou ld  have been  u l t imate ly  what  she had 

wanted to  have.   So I  am say ing  tha t  th is  p robab ly  wou ld  

no t  represent  what  I  had wanted but  the  l i ke l ihood  tha t  i t  10 

wou ld  represent  what  the  m in is te r  had wanted and together  

w i th  whoever  was –  Sa l im Essa,  in  th is  ins tance ,  wou ld  

have wanted.    

 So I  am say ing  –  because I  look  a t  the  da te  and I  

see tha t  i t  i s  –  we are  communica t ing  w i th  the  m in i s te r  a t  

the  end o f  January  and the  back and fo r th  w i th  m in is te r  

and Sa l im Essa s tar ted  –  wou ld  have s ta r ted  somet ime in  –  

conce ivab ly  in  December,  i f  no t  ear ly  January.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cha i rperson,  inc identa l l y,  we do have 

Mr  Tsots i ’s  emai l  o f  December  2014 to  the  m in is te r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Which  is  no t  par t  o f  the  record  and I  

am go ing  to  beg the  Cha i rpe rson ’s  leave to  hand i t  up .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    For  the  pu rposes o f  the  Cha i rperson ’s  
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compar ison and Mr  Tsots i ’s  benef i t .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We wi l l  mark  i t  accord ing ly  fo r  

inc lus ion  in to  the  record  and Mr  Tsots i  cou ld  br i e f l y  then  

exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson how the  two documents  

compare ,  one fo r  the  Cha i rperson,  one fo r  the  w i tness.   So 

the  emai l  handed up,  Cha i rperson,  i s  an  emai l  f rom Zo la  

Tsots i  sent  on  Tuesday 16 December  2014 a t  14 .02 ,  a lso  

sent  to  Lynne.Brown5@me.com and the  sub jec t  i s  a lso :  

“Dep loyment  o f  nonexecut ive  board  members  to  10 

board  commi t tees . ”  

And i t  says :  

“Dear  Min i s te r,  I  t rus t  you a re  we l l  and en joy ing  

some res t .   P lease f ind  be low the  pre l im ina ry  

dep loyment  o f  nonexecut ive  board  members  to  

board  commi t tees.   The aud i t  commi t tee  a t  Eskom 

has a lways been cha i red  by  a  CA. ”  

I  p resume tha t  means a  char te red accountant ,  Mr  Tsots i?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  i t  obv ious ly  means tha t ,  I  wou ld  

imag ine .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Not  a  cand ida te  a t to rney.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We may have to  dea l  w i th  med ia  

react ion  to  th is  change.   A re  you contempla t ing  l im i t ing  the  

board  to  13?  The prev ious board  had 14 members .   For  

mailto:Lynne.Brown5@me.com
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those se rv ing  on  th ree  commi t tees ,  depend ing  on the i r  day 

jobs,  the  work load may be qu i te  tax ing .   So wou ld  th is  

have been the  f i rs t  emai l  you sent ,  Mr  Tsots i?   And I  no t ice  

the  –  sor ry,  can I  g ive  you a  change to  answer  then,  Mr  

Tsots i?   Would  th is  have been the  f i rs t  emai l  you  sent  to  

the  m in is te r?  

MR TSOTSI :    I  cannot  reca l l  whether  th is  i s  the  f i rs t  one  

but  cer ta in l y  i t  was December  wh ich  accords w i th  what  I  

reca l l  was when the  in te rac t ion  was tak ing  p lace.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   And I  a lso  no t ice  the  e r ro rs  in  the  10 

surnames o f  some o f  you r  board  members  there .   

Ze thembe Khoza is  spe l t  w i th  an  x .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  wou ld  no t  have imag ined tha t  you 

wou ld  spe l l  Khoza l i ke  tha t ,  Mr  Tsots i .  

MR TSOTSI :    That  i s  a  g ross  e r ro r,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m? 

MR TSOTSI :    That  i s  a  gross  e r ro r.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cou ld  th is  be  in  Sa l im Essa ’s  l i s t ,  Mr 

Tsots i?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  mean,  I  canno t  imag ine  tha t  you wou ld  20 

spe l l  Khoza w i th  an  x .  

MR TSOTSI :    Ja ,  tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Un less  i t  was your  secre tary  and your  

secre tary  was someone who cou ld  make th is  k ind  o f  

m is take.  
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MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  I  see tha t  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then you d id  no t  check p roper ly.  

MR TSOTSI :    H is  name has been repeated as  Za thembe 

Xhosa.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  mean i t  i s . . .  

MR TSOTSI :    Ja ,  tha t  i s  de f in i te ly  an  er ro r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  a lso ,  I  see you were  go ing  to  serve  

–  you,  be ing  Cha i rperson o f  the  board ,  you were  go ing  to  

serve  as  a  member  –  as  an  ord inary  member  in  var ious 10 

commi t tees,  i s  tha t  normal?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  in  IFC? 

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  you  are  Cha i rpe rson o f  the  board  do  

you not  cha i r  jus t  the  board  and  you do not  go  to  o the r  

commi t tees and –  because they must  repor t  to  the  board ,  

those commi t tees ,  and you are  cha i r ing  the  board?  

MR TSOTSI :    I t  has  been a  t rad i t ion  a t  Eskom tha t  the 

Cha i rman does par t i c i pa te  in  some o f  –  in  fac t ,  the  

Cha i rman is  l im i ted  –  we l l ,  obv ious ly,  the  Cha i rman wou ld  

no t  serve  in  the  s ta tu tory  commi t tee .   But  the  Cha i rman is  20 

genera l l y  l im i ted  to  the  peop le  i n  governance commi t tee 

and  the  soc ia l  the  –  i t  i s  the  e th i cs?   Cannot  remember,  

there  is  another  commi t tee  tha t  the  Cha i rman is  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  looks very  …[ in tervenes]  
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MR TSOTSI :    Bu t  cer ta in ly  no t  the  IFC.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  looks  very  s t range to  me because i f  

the  Ch ie f  Jus t ice  who cha i rs  the  heads o f  cour t  goes to  a  

commi t tee  and he is  then jus t  a  member,  an  ord inary  

member  o f  tha t  commi t tee ,  tha t  commi t tee  is  cha i red  by  

somebody e lse ,  i t  looks  very  awkward  i f  the  Pres ident ,  who 

cha i rs  a  cab ine t  meet ing  then goes to  a  subcommi t tee  of  

the  cab ine t  and then he a t tends as  an  ord ina ry  member  

and tha t  commi t tee  is  cha i red  by  somebody e l se ,  i t  is  

s t range.  10 

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.   I  can  accept  tha t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i s  what  you in tended because  one o f  

the  th ings I  th ink  Mr  Se leka is  look ing  a t  and I  am look ing  

a t  i s  whether  th is  genu ine ly  came f rom you.   But  i f  i t  

genu ine ly  came f rom you,  tha t  i s  what  you say and we 

accept .  

MR TSOTSI :    Th i s  wou ld  have come f rom me,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  came f rom you?  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   In  wh ich  case 20 

obv ious ly  your  secre tary  wou ld  no t  have put  your  name in  

cer ta in  commi t tees un less  you had sa id  …[ in tervenes]  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Mr  Tsots i?  
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MR TSOTSI :    Yes?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  do  you no t  leave the  Cha i rperson 

w i th  the  impress ion  tha t  i t  i s  your  sec re tary  who  typed  

th is?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  p robab ly  secre tary  typed bu t  i f  she  

typed o r  he  typed what  he  sa id  she shou ld  t ype then  i t  i s  

no t  her  fau l t  o r  h is  fau l t .   I  th ink  what  Mr  Khoza -  Mr  Tsots i ,  

I  am sor ry,  Mr  Tsots i  has sa id  i s  the  compos i t ion  re f lec ted  

what  he  wanted.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  thank you,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  and  

you were  say ing  tha t  cer ta in l y  no t  you,  Mr  Zo la  Tsots i ,  

cha i rman o f  the  board  on  the  IFC.  

MR TSOTSI :    Ja ,  we l l  tha t  i s  a  b i t  odd.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

MR TSOTSI :    I t  wou ld  no t  have been a  good idea.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   But  i t  a lso  s t i l l  begs the  quest ion  

we l l ,  i s  th is  your  l i s t?  

MR TSOTSI :    We l l  …[ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  he  has sa id  i t  i s  h is .  

MR TSOTSI :    I  can  on ly  say i t  i s  m ine because  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  he  has sa id  i t  i s  h is .  

MR TSOTSI :    I  am the  one who sent  the  emai l  to  the  
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m in is te r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you accept  tha t ,  ja .  

MR TSOTSI :    I  cannot  d isassoc ia te  myse l f  f rom i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  a l r igh t .  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  i s  a l r igh t .   Then,  Cha i r,  las t l y  on  

th is ,  i f  you  go back to  the  f i le ,  i s  the  m in is te r ’s  rep l y  to  Mr  

Tsots i .  

CHAIRPERSON:    About  the  compos i t ion?  10 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  emai l  –  le t  me see,  I  th ink  i t  i s  

dup l i ca ted .   We can read i t  on  the  next  page,  wh ich  is  page 

474.    

MR TSOTSI :    Which  bund le?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The bund le  where  your  emai l  –  Eskom 

bund le  10 ,  EXHIBIT 22.  

MR TSOTSI :    Oh,  the  same one we were  look ing  a t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    The same one,  yes .  20 

MR TSOTSI :    What  page?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Page 474.  

MR TSOTSI :    Oh,  the  next  page.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja ,  the  nex t  page.   So the  m in is te r  

responds to  you 28 January  2015 a t  8 .21  and she cop ies  a  
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coup le  o f  peop le  there ,  Mats ie ts i  Makho lo ,  B randon 

Rober ts  and o the rs  and she says:  

“Dear  Mr  Tsots i ,  thank you fo r  the  emai l  be low 

regard ing  the  compos i t ion  o f  board  commi t tees .   

G iven tha t  th is  i s  a  newly  appo in ted  board  i t  i s  my 

respons ib i l i t y ,  as  shareho lde r  representa t i ve ,  to  

fo rmal ly  cons ider  the  compos i t ion  o f  the  

commi t tees.   I  wou ld  there fore  apprec ia te  i t  i f  the  

compos i t ion  o f  board  commi t tees is  submi t ted  under  

fo rmal  cover  le t te r  w i th  the  fo l low ing suppor t ing  10 

in fo rmat ion ,  a  copy o f  the  board  reso lu t ion  on  the  

compos i t ion ,  a  d ra f t  reso lu t ion  fo r  shareho lde r  

approva l  o f  members  o f  the  aud i t  and r i sk  

commi t tee ,  a  d ra f t  shareho lder  reso lu t i on  

conf i rm ing membersh ip  o f…”  

I  th ink  i t  i s  soc ia l  and e th i cs  commi t tee .  

“…and susta inab i l i t y ,  a  d ra f t  shareho lder  reso lu t ion  

no t ing  a l l  o ther  commi t tees,  l i s t  o f  a l l  d i rec tors ’  

d isc losure  o f  in te res t  inc lud ing…”  

And the  res t  o f  i t  i s  there .   What  I  d id  no t  unders tand,  Mr  20 

Tsots i ,  and maybe you can exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson and  

us  is  the  m in i s te r ’s  s ta tement  tha t  g iven tha t  th is  a  newly 

appo in ted  board ,  i t  i s  my respons ib i l i t y ,  as  shareho lder ,  to  

fo rmal ly  cons ide r  the  compos i t ion  o f  the  commi t tees  

because we have unders tood f rom the  –  some o f  the  
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w i tnesses who  tes t i f ied  here ,  tha t  the  m in is te r ’s  

respons ib i l i t y  wou ld  have on ly  re la ted  to  two s ta tu tory 

subcommi t tees.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  exact ly .   Cha i r ,  tha t  i s  co r rec t ,  when 

they [ inaud ib le  –  loud cough ing ]  commi t tees what  wou ld  

happen is  tha t  the  –  whatever  p roposa l  the  board  may 

make on those commi t tees is  sub jec t ,  express l y  sub jec t  to  

the  approva l  o f  the  m in is te r  so  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes because in  regard  to  tha t  commi t tee  

or  those commi t tees she has the  power.  10 

MR TSOTSI :    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now in  regard  to  o ther  commi t tees has 

she got  any power?  

MR TSOTSI :    No,  no ,  Cha i r,  she does not  have the  power.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  she says  in  the  

emai l  tha t  the  compos i t ion  o f  a l l  the  commi t tees  o f  the  

board  is  sub jec t  to  her  power,  she has the  power  to  dec ide  

tha t  tha t  wou ld  no t  be  co r rec t .  

MR TSOTSI :    No,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  no t  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR TSOTSI :    What  the  board  is  do ing  is  g iv ing  the  

shareho lder  the  cour tesy  o f  knowing how is  invo lved in  

wh ich  commi t tees .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  no t  because she has the  

…[ in tervenes]  
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MR TSOTSI :    Not  because  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    …to  the  dec ide  tha t .  

MR TSOTSI :    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   In  her  a f f idav i t  does she  repeat  

th is?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    She dea ls  w i th  th is ,  Cha i r ,  to  some 

exten t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  guess we are  wrapp ing  up now,  hey?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I  am,  I  am,  Cha i r .   I  have in  f ac t .   Le t  10 

me …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  may be –  there  may be s ta f f  who 

might  s t i l l  need to  go  some long d is tances home who d id  

no t  know they have to  s tay  longer  today.   I t  i s  a l l  my fau l t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Sor ry ,  sor ry ,  qu ick l y  –  tha t  i s  back to  

your  bund le ,  Mr  Tsots i ,  and tha t  i s  on  page 444,  page 444 

f rom paragraph 43 onwards.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  does she say?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    She conf i rms tha t  she is  respons ib le  

on ly  fo r  the  appo in tment  o f  members  o f  two board  

subcommi t tees.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Aud i t  and r i sk  and soc ia l  and e th ics  
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commi t tee .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    And then she goes in to  the  process a t  

DPE tha t  she wou ld  be  gu ided in  appo in t ing  members  o f  

the  board .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  then she does not  s top  a t  aud i t  

and r i sk  and soc ia l  and e th ics .   In  parag raph 47 she goes  

on about  she wou ld  have fo l lowed the  same process fo r  the  

o ther  subcommi t tees.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    In  respect  o f  the  two tha t  she sa id  she  

is  respons ib le  fo r .   But  then she says:  

“ I  cannot  reca l l  o f fhand whether  th is  i s  what  

happened regard ing  the  2014 appo in tment  o f  the  

commi t tees ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine ,  i f  her  a f f idav i t  says  

she is  on l y  respons ib le  fo r  those  two commi t tees,  tha t  i s  

f ine .   When she comes she w i l l  g ive  ev idence about  tha t  

emai l .  20 

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And she can prov ide  c la r i f i ca t ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .   Mr  Tso ts i ,  jus t  r igh t  a t  the  end 

now,  there  is  an  emai l  in  December  2014 you sent  to  the  

m in is te r  w i th  the  compos i t ion .   Then the re  is  an  emai l  on  
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the  26  January  2015 tha t  you sent  to  the  m in is te r ,  w i th  the  

compos i t ion .   Now what  in fo rmed the  emai l ,  the  

compos i t ion ,  the  compos i t ion ,  in  the  emai l  o f  26  January 

2015.   Now my quest ion  is ,  le t  me put  i t ,  i s  tha t  the 

compos i t ion  tha t  the  m in is te r  wanted in  January  when you 

sent  i t  to  h im(?) .    

MR TSOTSI :    That  wou ld  be  the  case,  Cha i r ,  because as  I  

sa id ,  the  back and fo r th  occur red  du r ing  the  month  o f  

December  p r imar i l y  and what  cu lm inated in  then the  fo rmal  

submiss ion  to  the  m in is te r  wou ld  then be the  compos i t ion  10 

as  the  m in i s te r  had wanted i t  to  be .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  is  the  pos i t ion  tha t  fo r  –  tha t  in  

regard  to  a l l  the  commi t tees you  or  the  board  ended  up  

bas ica l l y  le t t ing  her  have or  dec ide  the  compos i t ion .  

MR TSOTSI :    That  i s  the  de fac to  s i tua t ion ,  Cha i rman.   

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  what  u l t imate ly  happened? 

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Because in  the  emai l  she had sa id  

i t  i s  her ,  as  the  shareho lde r  she wou ld  dec ide .  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  tha t  means the  m in i s te r  went  

beyond the  l im i t  o f  the  two subcommi t tees tha t  she is  

respons ib le  fo r.  

MR TSOTSI :    I t  wou ld  appear  so  by  her  own admiss ion  
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because she is  say ing  tha t  she needs the  fo rmal  document  

fo r  her  cons idera t ion .   You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  i s  what  you read  

ear l ie r  in  the  ema i l .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  tha t  i s  one th ing .   Tha t  i s  one 

th ing ,  yes .  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Bu t  I  am ta lk ing  fac tua l l y  f rom the  

compos i t ion  in  your  subsequent  emai l ,  tha t  tha t  i s  what  the  10 

min is te r  wanted you …[ in tervenes]  

MR TSOTSI :    That  i s  what  the  m in is te r  had  wanted  

…[ in tervenes]   

ADV SELEKA SC:    How to  compose.  

MR TSOTSI :    U l t imate ly,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  i t  went  beyond jus t  the  two 

subcommi t tees.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  cor rec t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    You see,  the  reason why  I  was 

remark ing  on  the  –  unders tand ing  the  s ta tes  i s  because the  20 

Fundudz i  repor t  shows tha t  a  compos i t ion  had been 

rece ived by  the  DPE f rom bus inessman’s  emai l  in fo  por ta l  

and the  m isspe l l ings  were  l i ke  i n  your  f i rs t  ema i l .   Mr  

Zethembe Khoza is  spe l t  w i th  an  x .  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    And I  thought  tha t  was remarkab le .   

Co inc idence?     

MR TSOTSI :    I  th ink  jus t  a  co inc idence,  yes .   I t  i s  a  very  

in te res t ing  co inc idence,  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  un less  –  we l l ,  you  remember  your  

ev idence prev ious ly.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was tha t  you rece ived a  compos i t ion ,  a  

fax  or  emai l  f rom Mr  Sa l im Essa.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi th how the  commi t tees o f  the  board  

shou ld  be  composed o f .  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you were  no t  happy w i th  tha t .   You 

sent  you r  own compos i t ion  o f  the  commi t tees o f  the  board  

to  the  m in is te r.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then you sa id  –  you tes t i f ied  and 

you sa id  the  m in is te r  sent  you her  compos i t ion  and you  

sa id  he r  compos i t ion  o f  the  commi t tees o f  the  board  was  20 

exact ly  the  same.  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    As  the  compos i t ion  o f  Mr  Sa l im Essa  

tha t  you were  no t  happy w i th .  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  



29 OCTOBER 2020 – DAY 294 
 

Page 304 of 310 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    You remember  you sa id  tha t?  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  abso lu te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now i t  i s  poss ib le  –  i f  you  say your  

compos i t ion  o f  the  board  commi t tees o f  –  i s  i t  26  January?  

MR TSOTSI :    26  January,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  you  say tha t  was the  cu lm ina t ion  o f  

the  to - ing  and f ro - ing  invo lv ing  you  and the  m in is te r  and Mr  

Sa l im Essa and i f  you say tha t  tha t  compos i t ion  was what  

the  m in is te r  wanted and i f  what  the  m in is te r  had prev ious ly  

sent  you was the  same as what  you had rece ived f rom Mr  10 

Sa l im Essa,  then i t  may be tha t  the  m in is te r  sent  you a  l i s t  

w i th  those spe l l ing  e r ro rs  because those spe l l ing  er rors  

maybe were  inc luded in  Sa l im Essa ’s  l i s t ,  compos i t ion ,  and 

what  you d id  no t  do  is  to  cor rec t  those spe l l ing  er rors .   

That  i s  one po in t  o f  look ing  a t  i t .  

MR TSOTSI :    I t  seems to  be ,  yes .   Yes,  tha t  i s  qu i te  

poss ib le ,  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because fo r  you i t  rea l ly  seems very  

s t range tha t  you wou ld  spe l l  Khoza w i th  an  x .  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes,  exact ly.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  anyway,  I  th ink… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  the  end,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was tha t  you r  las t  quest ion?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  i s  the  end,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  there  a re  any  o ther  quest ions you can 
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a lways send them to  Mr  Tsots i .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi th  a  reques t  fo r  h im to  respond to  

them by way o f  an  a f f idav i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  –  ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Cer ta in ly.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Thank you very  much,  Mr  Tsots i .    

Sor ry  –  oh  yes… 

ADV SELEKA SC:    You want  to  say…? 10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  I  looked fo r  you he re  because  I  th ink  

–  I  thought  las t  t ime you were  s i t t ing  th is  s ide .   I  may have 

been mis taken so  I  d id  no t  rea l i se  you are  there .    

MR NGCEBETSHA :    No,  thank you,  unders tood,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR NGCEBETSHA :    I  have jus t  two po in t s  on ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Two quest ions?  

MR NGCEBETSHA :    Yes,  jus t… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  yes .  20 

MR NGCEBETSHA :    Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  re -examinat ion ,  hey?  

MR NGCEBETSHA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR NGCEBETSHA :    Mr  Tsots i ,  you spoke a t  length  
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regard ing  the  meet ing  o f  the  30  March in  wh ich  you f i rs t  

went  to  your  p resenta t ion ,  there  was an ad journment  and 

subsequent ly  you  were  approached by  Mr  Romeo Kumalo  

together  w i th  Dr  Ben Ngubane wh ich  cu lm inated  in  you 

go ing  back to  the  fo rmal  board  meet ing  and tendered your  

res ignat ion .    

 Now I  jus t  want  f i rs t  to  conf i rm –  te l l  the  

Cha i rperson in  your  own words whethe r  the  res ignat ion  

tendered was vo lun tary  or  no t .  

MR TSOTSI :    Cha i r,  tha t  i s  a  very  in te res t ing  quest ion  and  10 

not  an  easy quest ion  to  ac tua l l y  answer.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR TSOTSI :    Because you reca l l  tha t  the  s ta te  i f  m ind  I  

was in  was one o f  someone who is  be ing  accused o f  th ings  

tha t  were  ce r ta in ly  very  f l imsy.   I  made the  po in t  in  the  

meet ing  w i th  the  board  in  my own defence to  say tha t  

these charges were  de f in i te ly  spur ious and were  o f  no  

substance whatsoever  and th is  was conf i rmed by  my lega l  

team tha t  in  fac t  what  they were  pu t t ing  fo rward  is  rea l l y  o f  

no  substance.   20 

And I  rea l i sed tha t  i f  I  was to  cha l lenge th is  

s i tua t ion  any fu r the r,  i t  i s  go ing  to  impact  on  the  company 

and take away f rom the  focus o f  what  Eskom shou ld  be 

do ing  and tha t  i s  to  recover  f rom the  s i tua t ion  tha t  i t  i s  in  

and I  rea l l y  d id  no t  want  to  be  par ty  to  de focus ing  Eskom 
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and br ing ing  the  focus upon myse l f .  

 So my res ignat ion  in  a  sense was  –  in  a  sense was  

fo rced because I  fe l t  tha t  I  d id  no t  want  to  be  an  a lba t ross 

around the  neck o f  the  company and I  consented to  then 

res ign ing  fo r  tha t  reason not  because I  fe l t  tha t  I  d id  no t  

have a  w innab le  case nor  tha t  I  cap i tu la ted  to  the  -  you 

know,  to  the  accusat ions tha t  they were  mak ing .   Qu i te  the 

cont rary.    

As  I  say,  i t  was rea l l y  in  the  in te res t  o f  mak ing  sure  

tha t  the  bus iness does not  have  to  have a  fa l lou t  ou t  o f  10 

th is  s i tua t ion  occas ioned by  my  res is tance.   So tha t  i s  

rea l l y  the  –  to  answer  the  quest i on ,  I  fe l t  i t  was a  fo rced 

s i tua t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR NGCEBETSHA :    Thank you.   Now on go ing  th rough 

tha t ,  I  suppose  i t  i s  common cause now,  tha t  the  

res ignat ion  was  rece ived and accepted.   There  were  

cer ta in  commi tments  made to  you by  the  board  to  meet  

cer ta in  ob l iga t ions.   Wi thout  naming them,  were  any o f  

those ob l iga t ions  tha t  were  made to  you met  by  the  board  20 

or  by  the  company?  

MR TSOTSI :    No,  Cha i r,  none o f  them were  met  

a l togethe r.   None  o f  them were .   In  fac t  I  do  no t  why you 

want  to  res t r i c t  me f rom comment ing  about  what  i t  i s  I  

shou ld  say what  they are  about  bu t  one impor tan t  i ssue,  
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has  go t  to  do  w i th  my lega l  fees.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you ment ioned tha t  las t  t ime.  

MR TSOTSI :    So  I  fe l t  done  by,  by  the  a t t i tude o f  

[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR TSOTSI :    Yes.  

MR NGCEBETSHA :    Now my next  quest ion  is ,  wha t  e f fec t  

wou ld  your  remova l  –  o r  ra the r,  what  e f fec t  d id  your  

remova l  f rom the  board  as  Cha i rman o f  Eskom have on you 

see ing  tha t  you had a l ready tes t i f ied  tha t  th is  p re t ty  much  10 

was the  on ly  job  you cou ld  ho ld  because o f  the  enormi ty  o f  

the  work  tha t  you  had. . .?  

MR TSOTSI :    Cha i rman,  I  can on ly  descr ibe  i t  as  

deb i l i ta t ing ,  to  be  qu i te  honest .   I  los t ,  you know,  no t  on l y  

an  income but  I  los t  oppor tun i t ies  fo r  fu r ther  income.   I t  

became very  c lear  tha t  peop le  who were  supposed 

assoc ia ted  o r  ta in ted  w i th  S ta te  Capture ,  i f  I  may  say so ,  

were  be ing  shunned by  you know prospect ive  employers  

and there  were  a l l  sor ts  o f  s to r ies  and rumours  go ing  

around.   One in  par t i cu la r  concerned me because i t  was  20 

sa id  tha t  Gupta  fami ly  went  ou t  o f  i t s  way to  d raw up a  l i s t  

o f  a l l  those peop le  who shou ld  no t  be  engaged by  – 

cer ta in ly  by  the  pub l i c  sec tor,  and my name apparent ly  i s  

one o f  them.  

 So I  am jus t  say ing  I  wou ld  no t  want  to  re l i ve  tha t  
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s i tua t ion  aga in .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR NGCEBETSHA :    Cha i rperson I  th ink  tha t  conc ludes my 

quest ions,  I  jus t  need maybe to  p lace  i t  on  record  tha t  

wh i ls t  we may rece ive  f rom Tsots i  mat te rs  tha t  con f i rm he  

is  an  imp l ica ted  person by  some o f  the  w i tnesses,  we have 

adopted an approach tha t  says tha t  we have been fa i r l y  

sa t is f ied  w i th  the  manner  in  wh ich  the  ev idence  leader  

poses the  d i f fe ren t  vers ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

MR NGCEBETSHA :    And ins tead  o f  compl ica t ing  and in  

the  sp i r i t  o f  exped i t ion  o f  the  work  o f  th is  Commiss ion  we  

jus t  want  to  fo rmal ly  record  our  rese rva t ion  in  the  

eventua l i t y  tha t  i t  i s  abso lu te ly  needed then we w i l l  submi t  

an  app l i ca t ion  a t  tha t  po in t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR NGCEBETSHA :    Thank you,  tha t  i s  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No thank you,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  the  r igh t  

approach ja .   Okay Mr  Tsots i  thank you very  much,  I  know 

tha t  you w i l l  s t i l l  come back because –  or  Mr  Se leka knows 20 

tha t  he  th inks  he  has t roub led  you enough,  I  thought  he  

m ight  be  need ing  you fo r  the  secondments  bu t  now I  

remember  you  were  no  longer  the re  du r ing  the  

secondments ,  ja .  

 Okay,  thank you very  much Mr  Tso ts i  fo r  coming to  
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ass is t  the  Commiss ion ,  we apprec ia te  i t  very  much and 

thank you fo r  coming in  the  even ing .  

MR TSOTSI :    I  am ava i lab le  in  a  consu l t ing  capac i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much.    I t  i s  two minutes  

to  n ine ,  we ad journ ,  thank you to  eve rybody fo r  a l l  your  

coopera t ion .   Aga in  I  am sor ry  to  those who d id  no t  know 

tha t  we were  go ing  to  end up work ing  so  la te ,  next  t ime we  

w i l l  t ry  and make sure  everybody knows we l l  in  advance.  

 We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 30 OCTOBER 2020  

Wi tness Mr  Reenen Teubes  
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